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CORPORATE INTRODUCTION
DA

Shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 0268) and the Company is
headquartered in Shenzhen, the PRC. Adhering to the core values of “Acting in all Conscience, with Integrity and Righteousness”,
the Company is committed to helping businesses achieve their growth targets and let the sun shine on every company through
dedicated services. It strives to provide them with the most trusted enterprise service platform. Through persistent efforts to
explore China’s Cloud enterprise service market, Kingdee has retained the largest share in the enterprise application software
sector for fast-growing enterprises for 15 consecutive years, and has grasped the biggest share in the enterprise-grade SaaS
Cloud services industry for the second year, also the Company has grasped the biggest share in the enterprise-grade SaaS ERM
(as known as Cloud ERP) and Financial Cloud services industry for the third year.

In addition, Kingdee’s diverse Cloud services and products are the preferred choices of leading enterprises. They include “Kingdee
Cloud Cosmic” (a Cloud service platform for large enterprises), “Kingdee Cloud Galaxy” (a digital innovative Cloud service
platform for medium and large enterprises and fast-growing enterprises), “Kingdee Jingdou Cloud” (one-stop Cloud services
platform for micro and small-sized enterprises), “Cloud-Hub” (intelligent Cloud office), “Guanyi Cloud” (Cloud services for
E-commerce operators), “Cargeer” (Cloud services for auto dealers) and “Wojia Cloud”(Cloud services for Property Industry).
With its strengths in management software and Cloud services, Kingdee provides services and products to more than 6.8 million
enterprises, government agencies and other organizations around the world.
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MBIHE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB” 000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue EEH 3,325,590 2,808,658 2,303,458 1,862,207 1,516,773
Profit attributable to owners AR AR

of the Company BEAEGLERN 372,580 412,106 310,004 288,230 105,766

Dividends per share BREE HKDER#1.28  HKDBEH115  HKDEEA1 62 - -

Earnings per share SRER
- basic - 7 RMBAR¥11.528 RVMBARE1319% RMBAR®11.045  RMBARE9987  RMBARM382%
— diluted il RMBAR¥11.228 RVMBARM1245% RMBAR®10755  RMBARE94D  RMBARM360%

Earnings Per Share - Basic

BREH - £F

RMB
ARED

2015

2016

2017

2018

13.19

2019

Return on Equity
PHENRE
%

Bt

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
EEE

Revenue

RMB'000

ARMTR 3,325,590

2,808,658

2,303,458

1,862,207
1,516,773

2019

2015 2016 2017 2018

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company
FOFRESEARGERT

RMB'000
ARETT

412,106

372,580

310,004

288,230

105,766

2019

2015 2016 2017 2018
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Operating Profit
BRERN

RMB'000
ARETT

453,307

420,759 423,187

341,434

248,900

2018

2019

2015 2016 2017

Net Cash generated from Operating Activities
BEEIDEENBES

RMB'000
ARETT

905,515 g

823.690

612,093
656,440

2019

2015 2016 2017 2018
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Year ended 31 December

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—B-nE T N\F ZE—+tF ZET—RF ZT—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARETT
Revenue L 3,325,590 2,808,658 2,303,458 1,862,207 1,516,773
Gross profit EF 2,673,587 2,294,319 1,876,484 1,514,246 1,226,617
Profit before income tax MERFTE R AT & F 396,131 448,030 378,420 209,275 279,697
Profit for the year FEEFA 365,798 409,270 323,612 215,220 217,438
Assets
Non-current assets IERENEE 4,178,706 4,419,040 3,268,476 3,020,595 2,429,498
Current assets REEE 4,241,447 3,159,513 3,533,582 2,956,719 3,073,959
Total assets MEE 8,420,153 7,578,553 6,802,058 5,977,314 5,503,457
Equity and liabilities ERRAR
Equity attributable to owners AN EHERIEHE A
of the Company e 5,986,928 5,466,060 3,995,341 3,475,810 3,217,069
Non-controlling interests DHRL R S 158,743 66,607 47,739 60,356 29,649
Total equity BT 6,145,671 5,532,667 4,043,080 3,536,166 3,246,718
Non-current liabilities EREEE 276,389 179,319 1,354,101 1,518,414 1,338,024
Current liabilities REaE 1,998,093 1,866,567 1,404,877 922,734 918,715
Total liabilities wafE 2,274,482 2,045,886 2,758,978 2,441148 2,256,739
Total equity and liabilities ERERNEE 8,420,153 7,578,553 6,802,058 5,977,314 5,503,457
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FRW|E

Xu Shao Chun Chairman of the Board
B"BOE ESSEFE

2020 is destined to be an extraordinary
year for Kingdee. We are at the key step
of our cloud transformation.

2020 X FE R LH) —F » HEEED
BE - RREHE  FRIER 2%
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~ CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TEHRE

2019 was a year of great challenges for the global economy. China’s economy
maintained strong growth despite global macro slowdowns and trade frictions.
In such ever-changing environment, we were able to accelerate the cloud
transformation and take Kingdee's transformation to a new level through our 3.0
strategy. We realized that business will return to its basic principle. Kingdee
reformed its service and R&D system to be closer to our customers. Robert
Xu Shaochun’s WeChat Public Account was able to capture customer feedback
in real time, an efficient way to close the feedback loop. In 2019, the Group’s
total revenue grew by 18.4% year-on-year (yoy). Cloud business maintained
strong momentum, with 54.7% revenue growth yoy. Kingdee remained as the
No.1 enterprise SaaS ERM (Cloud ERP) and Financial Cloud vendor for three
consecutive years.

In 2019, Kingdee achieved breakthroughs in cloud business. We evidenced
that Chinese enterprises has accelerated digital transformation to provoke the
next generation of “Enterprise Business Capability”. On such basis, we released
our Kingdee Cloud Cosmic 2.0 version in 2019, an ERP platform for large
enterprises and added over 100 enterprise applications on 20 cloud services.
We also actively expanded the PaaS platform, ISV ecosystem and laaS strategic
partnership. In 2019, Kingdee gained 130 new cloud cosmic customers,
including China Southern Industries Group Corporation, WISDRI, SF Express
and Peak Group, etc., with total contract value exceeding RMB200 million. In
addition, Cosmic was selected into Gartner's Global High-Productivity PaaS
vendor list. On Kingdee Cloud Galaxy side, revenue grew 43.5% yoy to RMB868
million, with dollar retention rate of 90%. Major newly added customers for
Galaxy were Huawei Marine, Hikvision, Fotile, Sangfor, Netease Youdao and
Xiaomi Mi Stores, etc.

In 2019, Kingdee successfully achieved self-transformation to continuously
lead the market. We released the 2079 Industrial Internet White Paper in order
to expand our footprints into industrial internet. The Group formed a series
of joint ventures with industry vertical leaders, such as Guangdong Xinnong
Interconnection Technology with Wens Group for digital modern agricultural
platform, ZRCC with CRRC Zhuzhou for railway equipment platform, and
Yundee with China Unicom for industrial internet platform. Additionally, with
China’s IT localization becoming a prevailing trend, Kingdee Cloud was selected
as a strategic partner of the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology,
becoming a recommended cloud service provider for 26 cities in 17 provinces
throughout China. Kingdee Cloud also received the ITSS certification, a
recognized industry standard for IT implementation and reliable service.
Kingdee made more efforts in other key industries including healthcare, internet
finance and steel. The Group would collaborate closely with industry giants to
seek growing opportunities in China’s “Belt and Road” initiative.

095 - 2REEEEHE  EHEETE - BE[HES
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In 2019, we built a thriving corporate culture. The core value of Kingdee
Philosophy is “Kingdee strives for excellence and customer satisfaction,
ultimately fulfilling customers’ demand for growth and success.” We believe
that digitally transforming enterprises is the leading factor driving an era of
greater cloud adoption. SaaS is built upon cloud business ecosystem focusing
on customer success centered, sustainable growth and high value services.
Kingdee is committed to construct “One Kingdee, One Family, One Culture”,
bringing love and care to every customer.

Outlook

During the 2020 Chinese New Year, the pneumonia epidemic caused by the
novel coronavirus (COVID-19) affected all sectors of the society in China, but
we harbor confidence in the long-term development of enterprise cloud services
industry. The epidemic will be a catalyst to the adoption of cloud transformation
and mobile collaboration among government, enterprises and individuals. More
and more traditional enterprises will leverage information and digital technology
to integrate their online and offline businesses, evolving into platform
enterprises.

2020 is destined to be an extraordinary year for Kingdee. We are at the key step
of our cloud transformation. We firmly believe that the Kingdee Philosophy
“striving for employee excellence and customer satisfaction, ultimately
fulfilling customers’ demand for growth and success” will help us overcome all
challenges to become China’s leading platform enterprise in cloud services.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude
to all Kingdee customers, shareholders and investors for your confidence and
support. This is the engine of Kingdee’s all growth. In the meantime, | would
also like to express my heartfelt thanks to Kingdee's staff for staying true and
conscious to yourselves, and your unswerving dedication and commitment to
Kingdee.
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JIEW AND OUTLOOK

RBEOBRRRE

1.

Group Financial Results

The Group recorded total revenue of RMB3,325,590,000 (2018:
RMB2,808,658,000) in 2019, up by 18.4% year-on-year. With
increasing investments in the cloud services business, revenue from
this segment continued to climb and grew by 54.7% year-on-year
in 2019. Meanwhile, revenue from ERP business slightly increased
by 2.7% year-on-year. Cloud service business accounted for 39.5%
of total revenue. The migration of cloud business ecology has
deepened.

The profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased
by approximately 9.6% from 2018 to RMB372,580,000 (2018:
RMB412,106,000).

Basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company
for the reporting period decreased by approximately 12.7%
year-on-year to approximately RMB11.52 cents (2018: RMB13.19
cents).

Net cash generated from operating activities of the Company for the
reporting period increased by 6.3% year-on-year to approximately
RMB962,927,000 (2018: RMB905,515,000).

Group Strategy Review

Committed to becoming the most trusted enterprise service platform,
Kingdee aims to help enterprises achieve coexistence and a win-win
situation. Based on the insight into Chinese enterprise management and
digital transformation, the Group continuously pushed forward Kingdee's
cloud service ecosystem.

The Group developed the following strategic initiatives:

Promoting “Cosmic Platform + Finance & HR Application +
Ecosystem” to enhance Kingdee Cloud’s competitiveness;

Establishing industry’s best practice for SME’ sustainable growth;
Integrating project sales and execution into a unified system to
serve high-quality large enterprises’ customers;

Helping channel partners to transform into service partners to grow
collaboratively;

Building Customer Success system to enable all-around customer
services.
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' BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
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Group Business Review

As a leading innovative technology company in China’s enterprise service
market, the Group has ranked No.1 in the enterprise application software
for fast-growing enterprises for fourteen consecutive years. Kingdee held
the largest market share in SaaS ERM (Cloud ERP) for three consecutive
years, and was selected into Gartner's Global High-Productivity PaaS
vendor list and HCM (Human Capital Management) Market guide.

Cloud Services Business Review

Revenue from the cloud business grew by 54.7% year-on-year from
RMB849,256,000 in 2018 to RMB1,313,595,000 in 2019, accounting for
39.5% of total revenue.

Enterprise Cloud Services

During the reporting period, Kingdee’s enterprise cloud services
business achieved 53.3% yoy growth, from RMB605,095,000 in 2018
to RMB927,375,000 in 2019. Kingdee Cloud Cosmic made major
breakthrough in the large enterprise market, with revenue reaching RMB60
million and 130 new customers. Kingdee Cloud Galaxy also recorded
robust growth in 2019, with revenue of RMB868 million representing
43.5% yoy growth.

Kingdee Cloud Cosmic achieved breakthroughs in large enterprise
market, leveraging its highly competitive platform solution.

As the first local cloud-native platform solution, Kingdee Cloud
Cosmic has completed compatibility check with major local upstream/
downstream hardware/software solutions and was selected into Gartner’s
High-Productivity (low-code or no-code) PaaS global vendor list.
Throughout the year, Kingdee maintained biweekly update on Cosmic and
released Cosmic 2.0 version, which newly added 100 enterprise modules
on 20+ cloud services, including Finance, Supply Chain Management
(SCM), Human Resources (HR), Collaboration, Marketing, Taxation, Al Big
Data Service, Progress Management and Program Development Service
Cloud. Cosmic filed 73 invention patents and 3 design patents, 50 patents
of which are under review by the State Intellectual Property Office (SIPO).
These patents covered various aspects of technological innovation,
including cloud-native technology, application software development and
enterprise management. One of the core patents of Cosmic cloud-native
architecture won the National Patent Award. Meanwhile, Kingdee Cloud
Cosmic continued to increase investment in resources, and strived
to attract competitive partners in the industry, with the total number
of Cosmic partners increasing to 160, including 55 ISV partners, 90
developer partners and 15 content partners during the reporting period.

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

= DEEBHRE

SHRERBERTEIMERBEMSORREF AR - &
IDCHE - BEUERERRLCEERRGEMGESE
KE—  BESFEMENSaS ERM (ZERP) EFR &L
MHHERERE— WAE TCatnerER 2B £ E
J1PaaSE R HERE B kA N EAE R MISIER(HCM
Market Guide) °

(1)

Annual Report 2019

SRBHERY

BERN ERBEBRLIERMT%  REFREHD
AR #849,256,00070 2 AR #51,313,595,0007T » 15 £ EE
BRI A#939.5% ©

ERERE

BEHN - CEERBEHBRARLIERSI% {5
[ B A #5605,095,0007T 2 A K #927,375,0007T © &
BEESERCETHNERE  ERUAARE
MO000ETT - BEINRKHEF - LT ¢ EERER
FEPERRY  ERNAARBIGBET ALER
43.5% °

SRE-EFSFREYNE  XERTRRFRY

SRZ e ESEARNENETUERERERENK
PEERBETE BATEFTEARI  WEAR
Gartner 2 3R/ A = NPaaSHEERI B 8% - WIIF ESEM
EHENERGREILHOERy FIEXE6G T &5
FV2ORA « T T EZRBERENSREBE - &
XENE - HERE ANE - BRE - EHE BB
EAREERBE  RERBE  HERBEZ2NH
BERBMIGRCERR - BEHRN SR B
EHABEREFBIRR TTIELAEFHAF - MEINE
FETEF  HPBBEECEAEF RERRE - 5L
HRRETERERN - BREMHE  CEEREE
HERABITAE - B ESERE RMERN —EZD
BHEBRAREFE - b SBZ e BESHEMAE
BN ZENREIBLBTERFNNEENABET
BERBR - REHAN  ESEEBHLAEEINR
(ISVEFERSR - MEEBHIOR - RABHR) o



* BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
(¥ROERRE

During the reporting period, Kingdee Cloud Cosmic achieved around
RMBG60 million in revenue. Kingdee signed 130 new Cosmic customers,
including central State Owned Enterprises (SOE) such as China South
Industries Group Corporation, WISDRI, Guodian Finance Leasing, CISRI,
CITIC Consumer Finance, BP PetroChina, China Mobile loT, and large
enterprises such as SF Express, Tianjin Steel, Tiantie Group, Conch
Cement Info, Peak Group, Xiamen ITG, Guangdong Yihao Foodstuff and
Jingye Group. Total new contract value exceeded RMB200 million. For
determinants of demand were IT localization, management upgrade, value
chain transformation and IT architecture upgrade. In addition, Kingdee
signed strategic partnership with Delong Holdings, Hesteel Group, Hubei
Jierui and Jiangsu Fu-Comme Technology to promote the reconstruction
of the industry value chain.

Kingdee Cloud Galaxy Expedited to Strengthen Industry Modules,
to Boost Cloud Adoption in China.

Since the initial launch in 2015, Kingdee Cloud Galaxy remained
focusing on product upgrade and improving service. Galaxy was chosen
as a recommended cloud service vendor for 26 cities in 17 provinces.
It was picked as a strategic partner of the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology and received the ITSS certification. Galaxy was
also recognized by Amazon AWS as the exclusive best SaaS partner.
Kingdee released the Galaxy V7.5 version, China’s first intelligent
manufacturing cloud with PLM+ERP+MES applications. This product was
awarded as the “2019 CEIA Best Smart Factory Lite MES”. Meanwhile, a
high-performance & low-cost smart manufacturing solution was integrated
on Galaxy MES Cloud and Huawei ROMA platform. Galaxy added a few
industry leading modules, including Omni-channel management through
WeChat Mini-program, Financial Shared Service Lite version, Expense
Reimbursement Mobile version, Multi-language option and Smart
Operating Dashboard, etc. Thanks to Galaxy, Kingdee was named as
China’s Top-100 Smart Maintenance Service Providers and Top-20 Cloud
Computing Application Innovators.

During the reporting period, Galaxy maintained robust growth, with
its revenue increased by over 43.5% year-on-year to RMB868 million.
Customer dollar retention rate was 90%. By end-2019, Galaxy
accumulated over 13,800 customers. Kingdee renewed with major
customers including Huawei, Tencent, Samsung, Haier, LG, Bliss Cake,
Oppein Home and Muwu BBQ, also signed new renowned customers
including Huawei Marine, Hikvision, Fotile, Sangfor, Netease Youdao,
Xiaomi Mi Stores, Chucheng, Wuzhen Travel, Jissbon and Shiseido
(Guangdong). The Group continued to transform channel partners into
service partners, and migrated existing customers to cloud. Indirect sales
of Galaxy Public Cloud increased by nearly 98% year-on-year, with its
customers accumulating to approximately 4,000.
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Finance Cloud Services

Kingdee’s finance cloud services business recorded RMB169,873,000 in
revenue, representing 98.2% yoy growth comparing to RMB85,724,000 in
2018.

Jingdou Cloud Achieved Robust Revenue Growth and Propelled
the Growth of Ecological Partner.

During the reporting period, Jingdou Cloud achieved revenue growth of
87.8% year-on-year. Paying customers grew by 45% yoy, bringing total
number of customers to over 117,000. Dollar retention rate remained
at approximately 80%. On Jingdou ecosystem, Kingdee built strategic
partnership with a few SaaS players throughout the year. Through
Kingdee’s sales network, these SaaS partners gained over 850 customers
in total. The Group made significant progress in cooperation with telecom
operators. Jingdou Cloud entered China Mobile Cloud’s market place and
signed 13,000 new customers cumulatively.

Industry Specific Cloud Services and Other Cloud Services

Industry specific cloud services recorded RMB142,901,000 revenue in
2019, representing 33.5% yoy growth comparing to RMB107,081,000 in
2018. Other cloud services recorded RMB73,446,000 revenue in 2019, up
43.0% yoy comparing to RMB51,356,000 in 2018.

Guanyi Cloud Continuously Made Optimizations and Promoted
Competitiveness of its Products.

During the reporting period, revenue from Guanyi Cloud increased 14.0%
year-on-year with dollar retention rate over 80%. Kingdee consistently
improved user experience for C-ERP, which was connected to other
Kingdee Cloud products to combine e-commerce and finance module. On
the 2019's Double 11 Day, Guanyi Cloud processed over RMB69.9 billion
of GMV, and 328 million transaction orders which increased 22.8%
year-on-year.

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

@)

(3)

Annual Report 2019

MHEERY

HHEERRAARK69,873,0007 - R=ZFT—N\FIK
AANEH85,724,0007T * [RILE3ER98.2% °

SREFASKARREY  WHEEBBEER

RERR - 2EBAZERRARLIER8%  FE
RPRLEREYS - R EPBBIT0R  EEXY
80% » FARFAEERS KSaaSHEEK ERBMA %
BHERBHARMNOEBRRHEAERRERT
P850 AL - ELHAFLAMRE - FEBHRE
AREFERF2HEPBIB13000K

TRERBRARGBERBRE

TEERBERRAARB142901,000C (ZF— N\
F+ AR107,081,000T) © FLLIER335%  HbERR
BEERAA RT3 446,0007T (ZE—N\F - AR
51,356,0007C) + [RIELIER43.0%

SRERSERFMEEL  ERRSHRA

BREHN 2HREHERARLERI FFREE
KiBiB80%  Em A E - C-ERPHEIGER PR - 1
MERSEYR ARESKRERNE  BEREY
—Bit - TERAEZERNROBRT N < 019FE+
— BHERHIHENET  2HTES3BEE
EERHER28% -



* BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
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Cloud Ecosystem Grew to Maturity with Cloud Businesses in
Various Fields.

EAS Cloud was built for the cloud transformation of large enterprises.
Within two months of initial launch, Kingdee signed a few public
cloud customers, including Huawei Marine, Shanghai Huangpu
Urban Development and Evercan Group. KIS Cloud led its partners
to promote SMEs’ cloud migration. With 7,200 new customers, it
established strategic cooperation with SaaS players, such as FXiaoKe and
Yunpiaotong. CloudHub was strengthened by adding enterprise-grade
OTA (Over-the-Air Technology) to improve mobile collaboration function,
with new contracts with industry leaders such as Country Garden, Hisense
and Central China. Kingdee Finance focused on building applications
for financial scenes and data mining. In pursuit of compliance and digital
loan innovation, it was awarded "2019 China Leading FinTech 50" by
KPMG. Automotive cloud Cargeer and property management Wojia
Cloud also registered robust growth. On the industry cloud side, Kingdee
jointly established Xinnong Interconnection Technology with Wens
Group for modern agricultural solution, and Yundee with China Unicom
for industrial internet platform solution. China CITIC, CITIC Trust and
Kingdee jointly funded the establishment of CITIC Consumer Finance
Co., Ltd. to stimulate domestic demand and consumption.

ERP Business Review

During the reporting period, revenue from ERP business increased
by 2.7% year-on-year from RMB1,959,402,000 in 2018 to
RMB2,011,995,000 in 2019.

Kingdee EAS business recorded flat revenue with financial sharing
business providing a full coverage of 10 major industries; s-HR business
delivered an outstanding performance in the large enterprises market
with new customers from China Top 500 Enterprises and Fortune Global
500 Enterprises including CRRC Zhuzhou, Hesteel Group, Xiamen
C&D, Wanxiang Group, Vanke Service, Tencent CSIG and WeSure, to
achieve local substitution; Smart manufacturing business launched
“The Brain of Enterprise Operation” solution to meet the rising need
of on-site intelligent decisions from large manufacturing enterprises;
tax management solutions achieved breakthroughs in its growth with a
year-on-year increase of nearly 300%.

Kingdee K/3 WISE mainly focused on three business areas: smart finance
and tax, smart supply chain and smart factory, aiming to transform
traditional enterprises to digitalized enterprises. KIS recorded steady
growth with over 100,000 new customers. In 2020, K/3 WISE and KIS will
lead its existing customers to use cloud services of Kingdee instead of
attracting new customers.
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Kingdee Apusic further improved its market share in domestic middleware
market and worked closely with upstream and downstream software
and hardware players, now fully compatible with domestic mainstream
products. Apusic remained as the top brand in the most preferred
middleware survey for the 6th consecutive time.

Investment Property Business

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had carrying amount of
investment properties of RMB1,856,200,000 (as of 31 December 2018:
RMB1,816,206,000). During the reporting period, the Group leased
available space in software parks in Beijing, Shanghai and Shenzhen.
The Group generated net rental income of RMB73,243,000 in 2019
(RMB72,941,000 in 2018), and fair value gains on investment properties
of RMB39,994,000 in 2019 (RMB94,516,000 in 2018).

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited  Annual Report 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
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AND ANALYSIS

Major Financial Information 1. FEMBRH
Revenue BxN
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded total revenue BE_T-NFTA=+—HIt  AEEHERE
of RMB3,325,590,000, representing a year-on-year growth of 18.4% ¥3 ARMES325590,0007T + RLIER184% (ZF—N
(2018: RMB2,808,658,000). Revenue from the ERP business amounted to F: AR2,808,658,0007T) © RECEERERTEZE
RMB2,011,995,000 (2018: RMB1,959,402,000), up by 2.7% year-on-year. BHWABARE2011995000T (ZZ2—N\F: AR
Revenue from Cloud services increased by 54.7% year-on-year to #:1,959,402,0007T) © RILLIE&2.7% ° ZERISWA R LL
RMB1,313,595,000 (2018: RMB849,256,000). R54.7% 2 AR 1313595000 (ZE—NF: ARE
849,256,0007C) °
Revenue included the following:
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
ERP business CEERERNSEK 2,011,995 1,959,402
— Sales of software and hardware products —HEHMLEHESR 945,631 936,620
~ Software implementation services — B RS 488,476 482,209
— Software solution consulting, maintenance, —BRAR - Fif B
upgrade and other supporting services TR EMTIRRS 577,888 540,673
Cloud business ERBER 1,313,595 849,256
— Enterprise cloud services - EERE 927,375 605,095
~ Finance cloud services — B ER 169,873 85,724
~ Industry cloud services - TEERS 142,901 107,081
— Other cloud services - HtERS 73,446 91,356
3,325,590 2,808,658

The abovementioned increase in revenue in ERP business was mainly
attributable to the increase in sales of software license and software
solution consulting, maintenance, upgrade and other supporting
services. The increase in revenue from cloud services business was
mainly attributable to the increase in revenue from subscription services
of Kingdee Cloud Cosmic, Kingdee Cloud Galaxy and Jingdou Cloud
products.

Gross profit

During the reporting period, the Group recorded gross profit of
RMB2,673,587,000 (2018: RMB2,294,319,000), up by 16.5%
year-on-year. The gross profit margin declined 1.3 percentage point yoy to
approximately 80.4% (2018: approximately 81.7%). The decline in gross
profit margin was mainly attributable to the increase in laaS cost along
with the expansion of cloud customer base.

il $ AR R BN E B e R
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B - REEBBRBOUNENIEAL (25 2
=) [0 FE] [SHAAZ] OTHRBERA
-

E7

AEEGEENRARE2673587,00T (ZZF— N
F 0 AR2294319,0007T) + [FILL S K 4916.5%  EF
ZRRBTREIMEE DS K150804% (ZT—N\F:
£981.7%) - ENETREIEHRERFFHSERTRE
laaSpX A SE AIFRER ©

TE-NEER SRERB4KEERAT 17



A

NAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFWE DT

18

Selling and marketing expenses

During the reporting period, selling and marketing expenses amounted
to approximately RMB1,644,384,000 (2018: RMB1,491,302,000). This
represented year-on-year increase of 10.3%, mainly due to the increase in
selling and marketing expenses resulted from the increase in revenue. As
a percentage of revenue, the percentage of selling and marketing expenses
decreased slightly from 53.1% in 2018 to 49.4% in 2019, mainly resulted
from the implementation of the Group’s cost control measures.

Administrative expenses and Net impairment losses on
financial assets

During the reporting period, administrative expenses and net impairment
losses on financial assets and contract assets were RMB434,740,000
in aggregate, representing a year-on-year increase of 13.8% (2018:
RMB382,039,000). In terms of revenue percentage, the percentage of
administrative expenses and net impairment losses on financial assets
decreased slightly from 13.6% in 2018 to 13.1% in 2019, mainly resulted
from the implementation of the Group’s cost control measures.

Research and development expenses

In 2019, total research and development costs were RMB650,499,000,
representing a year-on-year increase of 30.0% (2018: RMB500,301,000),
the ratio of which to revenue increased from 17.8% in 2018 to 19.6%
in 2019. The capitalized amount in 2019 was RMB477,654,000, up by
26.0% year-on-year (2018: RMB379,237,000). Amortisation of research
and development costs was RMB413,982,000 in 2019, representing
a year-on-year increase of 45.7% (2018: RMB284,094,000), and the
research and development costs recognised in the consolidated income
statement was RMB586,827,000 in 2019, up by 44.8% year-on-year
(2018: RMB405,158,000). The Group continued to invest in the
development of Cloud products, resulting in further increase in total
research and development costs during the year.

Fair value gains on investment properties

In 2019, fair value gains on investment properties was RMB39,994,000,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 57.7% (2018: RMB94,516,000).
Fair value of investment properties are determined by management based
on the valuations performed by independent professional valuer primarily
using the income approach. The relevant key assumptions include term
yields, reversionary yields and fair market rents.

Other income and gains-net

In 2019 other income and gains-net was RMB376,157,000, representing
a slight year-on-year increase of 9.7% (2018: RMB342,971,000), mainly
due to the gains on disposal of associates of RMB47,426,000.

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited
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Operating profit

In 2019, operating profit decreased 6.5% year-on-year to
RMB423,787,000 (2018: RMB453,307,000). The change in operating
profit margin is due to the Group accelerated the development of
Kingdee Cloud Cosmic and the R&D expense increased by 44.8%
yoy. ERP business’ operating profit increased 16.2% year-on-year
to RMB505,615,000 (2018: RMB435,052,000). Cloud business’
operating loss increased 30.7% year-on-year to RMB195,065,000
(2018: RMB149,202,000). Investment properties operating business’
operating profit declined 32.4% year-on-year to RMB113,237,000 (2018:
RMB167,457,000), due to the decrease in fair value gains on investment
properties.

Finance income/costs -net

In 2019, the finance income — net value amounted to RMB5,370,000. In
2018, finance costs — net value was RMB1,037,000.

Income tax expense

In 2019, the income tax expense amounted to RMB30,333,000,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 21.7% (2018: RMB38,760,000),
mainly due to the decrease in pre-tax profit.

Net Profit and Basic Earnings per Share

In 2019, net profit attributable to owners of the Company was
RMB372,580,000 (2018: RMB412,106,000). Net profit margin was 11.2%
(2018: 14.7%). Basic earnings per share was RMB11.52 cents (2018:
RMB13.19 cents).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss amounted to RMB1,024,942,000, representing
an increase of RMB386,056,000 as compared with 31 December 2018,
including the non-current portion of RMB428,791,000 (31 December
2018: RMB427,456,000) and the current portion of RMB596,151,000 (31
December 2018: RMB211,430,000).
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss included the following: AR BEGEEEZDTABRNEREEDTEUT
BH :

2019 2018
—2-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTIL

Investments designated at fair value through profit or loss BEAABEEHENEZNRE
Wealth management products (i) BEEEEM() 687,312 288,347
Preferred shares (i) B 5T AR (i) 254,491 253,456
Listed stock ERE 59,139 66,480
Unlisted equity investment FELTRERE 24,000 24,000
Unlisted convertible bonds FLETHAERES = 6,603
1,024,942 638,886
Less: non-current portion B FEREE A (428,791) (427 456)
596,151 211430

(i)

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

This represented the Group’s investments in various wealth management
products issued by commercial banks and state-owned financial institutions.
These products have a term ranging from 3 months to 36 months. They
have an expected annual return rate ranging from 2.36% to 5.00%. No
single wealth management product investment accounted for over 5% of the
Group’s total assets. The fair values of these investments were determined
based on income approach.

It mainly represented the Group’s investment of 535,643,887 Series E
Preferred Shares issued by Facishare Co., Ltd., which is mainly engaged
in the business of social network working platform for precise interactive
marketing and enterprise collaborative management. The fair value of the
investment was determined based on market approach.

Annual Report 2019
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Investments in associates

The carrying amount of the Group’s investments in associates as at
31 December 2019 was RMB282,649,000 (as at 31 December 2018:

BERR

RBEHARENTEERE ARNERNBARE
282,649,000 (=Z—\F : ARH234,403,0007C)

RMB234,403,000).
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
At 1 January »—HA—H 234,403 31,420
Additions (a) Zn(a) 110,241 185,191
Disposal (b) BE(b) (26,401) -
Conversion from a subsidiary to an associate (c) FREIREBA() - 16,000
Dilution gain (c) HRFIE(©) - 714
Revaluation gain upon losing of control (c) RAREIEGIR R E () - 5318
Dividend received Lellal (50) -
Share of losses of associates (d) FRBERENBBHE) (35,544) (4,240)
At 31 December ®B+-A=+—H 282,649 234,403
(a) It mainly included the following investments in associates during the year: () FREEFRYUTIMERANEE
Investment  Equity interest
Principle activities amount acquired by Measurement
Name of associate and place of operation (RMB ’000) the Group  method
RELHE FHREWE
BREAREE FETDMEERM (AE¥®TT) ke HERHE
Citic Consumer Finance Co., Ltd. Provision of consumer
financing service in the PRC 90,000 30.0%  Equity method
REHESRAERAT TEHBREEEERE RS EmE
Shenzhen Kuaixue Education Development Co., Ltd. Provision of online education
service in the PRC 15,000 5.0%  Equity method
FYRBHERRERDF THERMER BB RS Bt

IZRRAKERESHRBEYEE - —T-NEN
A SEBAEEEEBARNRN 2 BHERBLE
=7

It mainly represented the disposal of the Group’s 45% interest in Qingdao (b)
Xinrun. In September 2019, the Group disposed of all its 45% interest in
Qingdao Xinrun to an independent third party.

© —T-N\F+-f FEEFEFAREESERES
FEEEENTINNTARY £AEBEEEE
BB 34 0% TR IR Z545% + TR FEUA 3 4978 A R IET14.000
T RERBEAAEEAATHEERRYE
BliE - BHFERANGEATESETRYE - £2H
EREREAAEHEREBNAAEHENRE - %
EREWO A4 BEETE - BHER 753180007
AR B E3s o

In December 2018, Qingdao Xinrun, a then subsidiary of the Group, received
RMB17,111,000 of capital injection from certain third parties and as a result,
the Group’s interest in Qingdao Xinrun diluted from 80% to 45%, resulting
in a dilution gain of RMB714,000; in addition, the Group lost control over
Qingdao Xinrun upon the dilution and the investment had been accounted
for as an associate since then. The Group’s interest in Qingdao Xinrun after
the dilution was re-measured to fair value upon losing of control and a
revaluation gain of RMB5,318,000 was recognised accordingly.
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(d)  During the year, RMB2,518,000 of the Group’s share of loss of an associate
in excess of its investment cost which was recognised against the loan to the
associate in prior years was fully recovered as a result of the full settlement
of the loan to the associate during the year.

() FA- ARTEERER A R %2,518,0007T 4R E K E
FAEHBEERRED  RERABK I ERERE
e -

Loans to third parties BPE=HER
2019 2018
—Z-hE ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARBFIL

Loans to third parties BFE=HER

— Current portion - REEHMH 230,869 88,720
— Non-current portion — JEnEhEin 12,350 18,940
243,219 107,660

The loans to third parties represented loans made under the micro-credit
business, which bear interest from 4.28% to 24.00% (2018: 4.28% to
18.00%) per annum and are repayable with fixed terms agreed with the
customers, and all denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2019, RMB50,690,000 of loan to third parties was
pledged for a short-term borrowings.

The fair values of the loans to third parties approximated their carrying
amounts and the fair value hierarchy is level 2. The interest accrued was
due within 12 months and presented in interest receivables.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of
asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on
an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition.

As at 31 December 2019, due to the actual loss rate of loans was less
than 0.1% and no significant change in credit quality, the Group performs
collective impairment assessment of loans to third parties by grouping
together all its loans to third parties with similar credit risk characteristics,
a general provision of 1% of the principal was provided against the loan
principals.
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Loans to related parties

As of 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of loans to related parties
was nil (as at 31 December 2018: RMB721,513,000). All loans to related

parties were collected during the year.

RPRBAER

ARARZE-NEF+ A=+ —-BHEETHES
EXERAT (ZE-N\Ft-A=T-0: ' ARE
721,513,0007T) © 4 TR T MBS 2K -

2019 2018
0¥ —T-\§
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT
Loans fo related parties BYEH A ER
~ Current portion — REEHH - 256,976
~ Non-current portion — JEmEE = 464,537
- 721513
Contract assets and Contract obtaining costs ERBERGADBRE
Assets and related to contracts with customers HEFPARAEBNERE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE¥TT ARBFT
Current contract assets relating to software BHEBERERBANRSEREE
implementation contracts 451,685 494,662
Costs for obtaining contracts (i) A RIBUSBCA() 60,667 -
Loss allowance BREE - -
Total M=t 512,352 494,662

Contract liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s contract liabilities amounted to
RMB996,996,000. The corresponding contract liabilities amounted to
RMB846,755,000 as at 31 December 2018. The increase in contract
liabilities during the year was mainly due to the growth of the Group’s
cloud business.

SRR

BEBAN RZZ-NFTA=T—H rEENE
FafEmsARK9699600T - RZB-NF+=A=
T-BHEEASRARBRARESE7550007T - FHE
FAEEENEERARAREEXIERME -

“TNEFR SHERSHEEERAT 23



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIDN AND ANALYSI
EEENRR DT

24

"ﬁH

Event occurring after the reporting period

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19 outbreak”)
in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control measures have been
and continued to be implemented across the country/region. The Group
will pay close attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak
and evaluate its impact on the financial position and operating results
of the Group. As at the date on which this set of financial statements
were authorised for issue, the Group was not aware of any material
adverse effects on the consolidated financial statements as a result of the
COVID-19 outbreak.

Liquidity, financial and capital resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a total cash and bank
deposits of RMB2,586,565,000 (31 December 2018: RMB1,812,674,000).
As at 31 December 2019, the Group held wealth management products
of RMB687,312,000 (31 December 2018: RMB288,347,000). A
substantial part of the Group’s cash, bank deposit and wealth management
products were denominated in RMB and the RMB-equivalent of the
part denominated in foreign currencies were RMB180,074,000 as at 31
December 2019 (31 December 2018: RMB170,579,000), which were
mainly denominated in US dollar and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD").

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to approximately RMB2,243,354,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB1,292,946,000). As at 31 December 2019, the current ratio being
current assets over current liabilities was approximately 2.12, improving
from 1.69 as at 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowings amounted to
RMB199,625,000 (31 December 2018: RMB301,125,000), representing
a year-on-year decrease of 33.7%. Gearing ratio is calculated as net debt
(representing total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents) over total
capital (representing total equity plus net debt). The Group was at net
cash position as of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable to
its borrowings, details of which have been disclosed in note 22 of note to
the consolidated financial statements. Borrowings carried at floating rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk whereas those carried at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk.
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The Group currently does not use any interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk. However, the Group will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2019, borrowings of the Group which were bearing
at floating rates amounted to approximately RMB85,625,000 (2018: nil).
As at 31 December 2019, if the interest rates had been 50 basis point
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the years ended 31 December 2019 would has been
approximately RMB385,000 (2018: nil) lower/higher.

Foreign exchange risk

The functional currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries
is RMB. The majority of the revenues of the Group are derived from
operations in the PRC.

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss resulting from changes in foreign
currency exchange rates. Fluctuations in exchange rates between RMB
and other currencies in which the Group conducts business may affect
its financial position and results of operations. The foreign exchange
risk facing the Group mainly comes from movements in the US dollars
(“USD”)/RMB and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”)/RMB exchange rates.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

At 31 December 2019, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
HKD with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year
would have been higher/lower by RMB6,279,000(2018: RMB4,723,000),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of HKD
denominated cash at bank and in hand.

At 31 December 2019, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
USD with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year
would have been higher/lower by RMB18,332,000 (2018: RMB7,058,000
higher/lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of USD denominated borrowing and cash at bank and in hand.
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Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash flows
of debt instruments carried at amortised cost, at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL) and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well
as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables.

The management manages the credit risk of cash and cash equivalents,
pledged and short-term bank deposits and wealth management products
(classified as financial assets at FVPL) by transacting with state-owned
financial institutions and reputable commercial banks which are all
high-credit-quality financial institutions in the PRC and Hong Kong.

In relation to trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has two
kinds of distribution channels, one is sales to distributors and the other is
sales to end customers.

For distributors, the Group has assessed the credit quality of the
distributors, taking into account their financial position, past experience
and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The
compliance with credit limits by distributors is regularly monitored by
management.

For sales to end customers, the Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk in trade receivables since the balance of trade receivables is
composed of numerous individual small items and the exposure spreads
over a large number of customers.

The Group’s investments in debt instruments, including loans to third
parties and related parties are considered to be low risk investments. The
credit ratings of the investments are monitored for credit deterioration.

For other receivables, management makes periodic collective assessment
as well as individual assessment on the recoverability of the receivables
based on historical settlement record and past experience. The directors
of the Company beligve that there is no material credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding balances of other receivables.
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Fund and working capital management

Our funds and liquidity management are centrally carried out by our fund
management department. Our fund management department is generally
responsible for overall management and implementation of funds,
including formulating the capital management policy for our Group,
guiding, coordinating and standardizing the fund management of regional
companies, making annual funding plans, reviewing and summarizing
annual capital budget, overseeing and assessing fund management of
each regional company. Our finance departments of regional companies
are committed to implementing the fund management policies formulated
by our headquarters and are responsible for making funding plans and
executing capital operations at subsidiary level. We have also adopted
sophisticated fund management policies and implemented a set of rules
and guidelines on fund management, such as the Group Capital Internal
Control Management Measures ((SEEE & EMANIZEENIE))
and Fund Settlement Of Branch Offices Management Measures (€% Xz
B S EEEIEIL) ), to enhance the effectiveness and efficiency
of fund management, thereby ensuring our financial security and reducing
cost of capital.

To manage our idle cash on hand, we purchase and redeem wealth
management products using them as our “cash pool” from which we
could readily access cash as needed and generate higher yield than bank
deposits. The underlying financial assets of the wealth management
products in which we invested primarily consist of the low- risk wealth
management products issued by financial institutions. The amount
of the purchase will be determined based on our surplus funds. Our
main treasury policy on fund management is the Wealth Management
Administration Solution (<& & 32 8 & 2 ##%) ). We consistently
comply with our treasury policy during the procedures of purchasing the
wealth management products and managing the relevant departments, as
well as in conducting business, accounting and filing.

We are committed to safeguarding overall financial security and
maintaining a strong cash position and a healthy debt profile with
strong repayment ability. By adopting a full, reasonable and professional
assessment mechanism, preparing annual and monthly funding plans, we
have established disciplined fund management principal, which allows us
to efficiently manage market risks.

For budget management, we have established a monthly, quarterly and
annual budget management system, then seek approval from our chief
financial officer. The capital budget plans should be made based on the
objective basis of the Group’s business plans, project schedules, and
contractual payment terms to ensure that the plan accurately matches the
actual business needs.
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Major properties TEME
The following table sets forth the details of the major properties held by TRERTASEHE-Z-NE+-A=1+—HLLF
the Group as of 31 December 2019. =R EL:0F TN
Fair value of
Occupancy
portion
Property name Location Existing use Lease term HiBn
WERR ik RHERE HBHR HEEE
RMB'000
ARETT
Beijing Kingdee Software Park Valley No. 4 Fuxing Street, Mapo Town, Shunyi District, Beijing Offices Long-term 732,200
IERE R City, the PRC BOE =H
F B R IEE R SR AR E A
Shanghai Kingdee Development Center No. 88 Chenhui Road, Zhangjiang High Technology WRE & 371,900
HEBEHR Park, Pudong District, Shanghai City, the PRC Offices Long-term
FE ETERR IR E R R EKE85
Shenzhen Kingdee Development Center ~ No. 2, No.12 Technology Road South, High Technology Offices Long-term 680,200
| R HR Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong BOE =H
Province, the PRC
FEIER A AT I E R R R 125525
Shenzhen W1-B Level 4, Building W1, High-tech Industrial Village, Offices Long-term 71,900
AYIW1-B No. 1 Technology Road South, Nanshan District, N $23:1
Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, the PRC
FEEREFITMELERRE —Ke R ENW
BEEME
1,856,200
2. Employee and Remuneration Policy 2. RBARWMBE
During the reporting period, total number of employees in the Group REAN %E:E\IA%”%&%M: ZK;%M f@ﬁ(ﬁ
reached 8,903. Based on core value of “Acting in all Conscience, with A if‘t@ CTEEIRROEERR  BREEE
Integrity and Righteousness”, the Group was committed to implementing BB BREIOATHE  BEIZFZENEEA
ED S e =gt
the strategy of “talent activation, talent introduction, talent development”, Za ﬁ,ﬁ@lﬁﬁ&)\z‘%ﬂ /ﬁﬁ%@@%i ° [l - SE
to attract elite talent, top-class professionals and graduates for Kingdee’s ﬂﬂﬂ\ﬁﬁ“%ﬁl@' ﬂﬁﬂé‘/\%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ'\%ﬁﬁb1tﬁﬁ4 I ¢C)
cloud transformation. Meanwhile, the Group strategically raised incentives THBRAMABIER - z\%giﬁﬁfiféﬂt © EmIRE
for R&D staffs to effectively retain talents. In order to enhance platform fe @éfﬁfgﬁ{? ARBEDTEBET  BLREY
management, product & service integration and operation & management %}5 ’ g#a@,ﬂmgg EHT(KRER) g&@g@a
integration, Kingdee commenced organization restructuring to strengthen g5 %ﬁﬁwﬁgfmjf%)gmﬁl EETUES AT
its Platform-as-a-Service for its customers and partners. The Group also DEERRXE  ReGNSHEREBRRE -

released Kingdee Philosophy to promote leadership and praise customer
success-focused employees. This fortified the customer-centric value and
brought benefits to all Kingdee stakeholders.
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Social Responsibility

During the reporting period, the Group continued to support public welfare
activities. Kingdee has contributed to the “Siyuan-Kingdee Education
Relocation Class Project”, “Siyuan Foundation Ya'an Poor Students
Phase Il Project” and “China Management Model 50", which promoted
theoretical and practical dialogues, communication and cooperation.

During the epidemic of COVID-19, the Group donated RMB10 million
through China Siyuan Foundation for Poverty Alleviation to support
frontline medical staff fighting against COVID-19 in Wuhan and
surrounding areas, also to pay tribute to these Wuhan heroes. Moreover,
Kingdee provided a number of preferential policies to help affected
enterprises and organized online sharing expert events on enterprise
management topics to advice on business operations. During this period,
Kingdee actively participated in the epidemic prevention and control, and
postponed the return date after the Chinese New Year holiday. Kingdee
guaranteed its phone and online customer services around the clock, and
provided priority services to enterprises in affected areas.

Outlook

During the COVID-19 outbreak, the Group timely responded to all-sided
demand and fought the virus in all-ways in the beginning of 2020. To
carry out enterprise social responsibility, Kingdee utilized all kinds of
technology to minimize impact on business operation. With sufficient
reserves in cash and funding, the Group believes the impact remained
under control.

In 2020, we see rising demand for cloud transformation in the COVID-19
epidemic, similar to the development of consumer mobile internet in
the 2003 SARS crisis. Cloud service market in China is going through
leaping development with accelerating enterprise cloud transformation
and mainstream adoption of mobile office, online procurement and
cloud-based enterprise management. The Group will also be benefited
from the rising IT localization trend. After the epidemic, “businesses will
return to its basic principle, and will primarily focus on the success of
customers.” The Group will further accelerate its cloud transformation,
focusing on the collective strategy of “Platform + Finance & HR
Application + Ecosystem” to enhance product competitiveness, setting
industry best practices to enable growth for enterprise. The Group
will effectively set footprint into large enterprise market and transform
partners’ service-oriented business model. Kingdee will continue to build
its customer success system, to bring cloud technology for Chinese

itERE
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enterprises and win with Kingdee in cloud. Meanwhile, 2020 is the first
year of all-product cloud transformation for Kingdee, of which profitability
may be under pressure. Look forward, the cloud business will greatly
enhance the Group’s profitability and further consolidate Company’s
leadership in the enterprise-grade SaaS services.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

XU Shao Chun (#2 %), aged 57, is the founder of the Group, chairman
of the Board, chief executive officer and the Government Special Allowance
Expert awarded by the State Council. Mr. XU graduated from the Southeast
University in Computer Science and obtained a Master of Accounting from the
Research Institute for Fiscal Science, Ministry of Finance (now known as the
Chinese Academy of Fiscal Sciences) and an Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA) from China Europe International Business School. Mr.
XU is a member of the Accounting and Information Technology Commission
of the Ministry of Finance. He has served as a member of each of the Ninth
and Tenth Central Committee of China Democratic National Construction
Association, a director of the China Siyuan Foundation for Poverty Alleviation,
and the vice president of the China Software Industry Association. By virtue
of the profound understanding of the corporate strategy and operation
management, the forward-looking technology sensitivity and keen insight on
the development trend of the global software industry, Mr. XU has been actively
promoting the objective of “Enable the Chinese management model to rise
in the world”, and is committed to leading the Group to become the world’s
leading service provider of management and IT integrated solutions. Owing to
his outstanding achievements in implementation of this undertaking, Mr. XU
was awarded frequently. He has been awarded “World Indigenous Entrepreneur
Award of the United Nations”, “10 Outstanding Youths of China’s Software”, “10
Outstanding Entrepreneur Award”, “Outstanding Leader of China’s Information
Industry”, “30 Effective People who Contributed to the Success of Shenzhen's 3
Decades of Reform and Opening”, “Meritorious Shenzhen Business Leaders who
Contributed to the Success of Shenzhen’s 4 Decades of Reform and Opening”
and “Shenzhen Science and Technology Innovation Mayor’s Award”.

LIN Bo (# %), aged 47, is an executive Director. Mr. LIN obtained a bachelor’s
degree of Computer Science from the Xiamen University. He is currently the
chief financial officer of the Company. After joining the Company in 1997, Mr.
LIN has served as the general manager of the Company in the Fujian Province
Region, the general manager of the Operation Management Department and
the director of the Strategic Development Department of the Group. Mr. LIN
has extensive experiences in strategic planning, marketing management and
financial management.
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Non-executive Directors

DONG Ming Zhu (ZEBA®E), aged 65, is a non-executive Director. Ms. DONG
obtained a Master Degree of Business Administration from the Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law. She is now the chairman of the board and
President of Gree Electric Appliances, Inc. of Zhuhai Co., Ltd (stock code
S7000651), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and a member
of the 13™ National People’s Congress of the PRC. Ms. DONG had been awarded
the “National May Day Labor Prize”, and had been elected as a member of
gach of the 10" 11" and 12" National People’s Congress, a member of the
Standing Committee of the China National Democratic Construction Association
and a member of the 10" Executive Committee of All-China Women’s
Federation. Ms. DONG has solid experience in marketing and management of
household appliances, and the Regional Sales Model that she developed has
been commended as an “Excellent Achievement of Modernizing Enterprises’
Management of Guangdong Province”. Ms. DONG has been dedicating to
creating local Chinese brands and was granted the “Innovation Award of CCTV’s
China’s Economic Figures of the Year 2010”.

ZHOU Bo Wen (F{B3Z), aged 44, is a non-executive Director (appointed
on 18 March 2020). Mr. ZHOU received a Ph.D. in Electrical & Computer
Engineering from the University of Colorado at Boulder, the United States of
America and a bachelor's degree from the University of Science & Technology
of China. Mr. ZHOU serves as the president of JD Cloud and Al, a group
which integrates the charter and responsibilities of three major former
business departments under JD.com, Cloud, Al and loT. Mr. ZHOU is a fellow
of the Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers (abbreviated as IEEE)
and an expert member of the National New Generation Artificial Intelligence
Development Research Center. Mr. ZHOU formerly was also a director of the
Al Foundations Lab at International Business Machines Corporation (“IBM”)
Research in New York and the chief scientist of the IBM Watson Group. Mr.
ZHOU has decades of experience in natural language technology, machine
learning and artificial intelligence.

FRITEE
EWH 6055 FUTES - NPEMEBEAENEIA
ERBLEM - EXTRERNZZM ETRRRERNE
BRMH BB AR (FHAHK: S2000051) EFR KA -+
EARKNBEE T =ZEARKEAGRE  GRET [2H
I-S$HRE | RREBRFEARKNEAETE £+

FT_BARRRAGAR TERIBEEHRE
L EXARLZHAEE TENZERE -EXLARE
ENRAERTHEBELREELR RANREHE
BAIBARBRECEERRRMESKR] - Bt~
ERNRNMTETBERKERIE - G2 A (2010 CCTVRER
BEEEAMAIE] -

BIAX 457 FBTEF (RS -SF=A+/\BEZ
f£) e BAERPENERTASREELEMTREERE
NS AREREEETHENERTRELBN - ARERTRE
FREEBANEE  BERBRATLER  RERE - ZEROH(T)
SARMEEDS  RSAIEEGEEEE RITEREK B AR
T RAIZHEERRERLOERENZREE - Ah Ll
A1 2 1 International Business Machines Corporation ([1BM |) 48 &B4E
FERA LT ERFERE R « BME BWatson AT 8 E
BHER - AEXETBAES AN - RBEBFMALE
EHBAEHTENEER -

SENEER SREBERAREERAT 31



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEE

Independent non-executive Directors

Gary Clark BIDDLE (EE#), aged 68, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. BIDDLE is the Professor of Financial Accounting at the University
of Melbourne, and a visiting professor at each of the Columbia University
Business School, The University of Hong Kong and the London Business
School. Mr. BIDDLE earned his MBA and PhD degrees at University of Chicago.
He has served as a professor at each of the University of Chicago and the
University of Washington, the dean of the Faculty of Business and Economics
at The University of Hong Kong, a chair professor at each of the Accounting
Department of The University of Hong Kong and PCCW, and an associate dean
of the School of Business and Management of The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology, where he was also a member of the Council, Court,
Senate and held the title of Synergis-Geoffrey Yeh Chair Professor. He has
served or is serving as visiting professor at globally leading business schools,
including the Columbia Business School of the Columbia University in the
United States of America, the London Business School in the United Kingdom,
the International Institute for Management Development in Switzerland, the
China Europe International Business School in China and the Moscow School
of Management SKOLKOVO in Russia. Mr. BIDDLE is a member of each of
the American Accounting Association, American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Hong Kong Business and Professionals Federation, Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Directors,
and he is the former president and co-founding council member of the Hong
Kong Academic Accounting Association. He is a leading expert in financial
accounting, financial markets, valuation, value creation, corporate management
and performance metrics, including economic value appreciation rate. Mr.
BIDDLE is also an independent non-executive director of Shui On Land
Limited (stock code HK-272), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange").

CAO Yang Feng (& {% #8) aged 47, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. CAQ is the director of Institute of Global Entrepreneurship
& Innovation (Hong Kong) and the management practice professor of the
Guanghua School of Management, Peking University. Mr. CAO obtained a
doctoral degree in International Entrepreneurship and Strategic Management
from Copenhagen Business School, and a doctoral degree in Human Resource
Management from the Renmin University of China. Mr. CAO previously engaged
postdoctoral research in the Department of Strategic Management from the
Guanghua School of Management, Peking University. Mr. CAO is a member of
each of the Academy of Management, The Academy of International Business
and The International Association for Chinese Management Research, and Mr.
CAO has previously provided strategy counselling services and training services
for some large enterprises. Mr. CAO has published many enterprise management
articles in the academic field with profound insights and has won a number of
awards. Mr. Cao is also an independent director of Wens Foodstuff Group Co.,
Ltd. (stock code SZ300498) and a non-independent director of JA Solar Co.,
Ltd. (stock code S7002459), which are companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange.
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LIU Chia Yung (2] % %), aged 61, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. LIU obtained a Master Degree of Business Administration from
the University of Missouri in the United States of America. Mr. LIU joined
Trend Micro Inc., a company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange (stock code
TY0-4704) in 2002, and served as the president of the Asia Pacific region and
then the general manager of global services business group, being responsible
for the overall business operation in Asia Pacific region, research and
development, and Trend Micro’s global enterprises cyber security outsourcing
service planning. Mr. LIU joined Green and Associates in 2007 and has served
as the general manager, focusing on strategic human resources consulting
since then. Mr. LIU has rich experience in Hi-Tech marketing, business strategy
planning and global corporation management. Mr. LIU has acted as the adjunct
professor at the Soochow University in Taiwan and a visiting professor at the
Peter F. Drucker Academy in Beijing.

COMPANY SECRETARY

SIU Man Ho, Simon (F3 %), aged 46, is a practicing solicitor of the
High Court of Hong Kong. He obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree from The
University of Hong Kong in 1996 and is a partner of a law firm, namely Sit,
Fung, Kwong & Shum. Mr. SIU is also a China Appointed Attesting Officer
appointed by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC. His areas of practice include
corporate finance, capital markets, securities, mergers and acquisitions, joint
ventures and general commercial matters. He also actively participates in
charitable and social services in Hong Kong. He was previously appointed as
the director of Hong Kong Pok Qi Hospital. He is currently acting as the legal
adviser for United Hearts Youth Foundation, VQ Foundation and Hong Kong
Taekwondo Association as well as the school manger of The Association of
Directors and Former Director of Pok Oi Hospital Ltd. Leung Sing Tak College.
He is also the member of the Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference in Yangjiang City of Guangdong Province, the PRC.
Mr. SIU was an independent non-executive director of each of Weiye Holdings
Limited (stock code HK-1570) from March 2016 to December 2018 and Jiashili
Group Limited (stock code HK-1285) from June 2015 to December 2015. Mr.
SIU is currently an independent non-executive director of each of Wai Yuen
Tong Medicine Holdings Limited (stock code HK-897), Brilliant Circle Holdings
International Limited (stock code HK-1008), Shuang Yun Holdings Limited
(stock code HK-1706) and HKE Holdings Limited (stock code HK-1726), which
are companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

XU Shao Chun (#& 2 %), chief executive officer of the Company — see the
paragraph under “Executive Directors” above.

LIN Bo (#ki), chief financial officer of the Company — see the paragraph
under “Executive Directors” above.

SHEN Chong Feng (3L5288), aged 49, is the president of Kingdee Software
(China) Co., Ltd (“Kingdee China”). Mr. SHEN is mainly in charge of the
management software business in the Company. Mr. SHEN graduated from
the Changchun University of Science and Technology (now known as the Jilin
University) with a master’s degree in engineering. Before joining Kingdee, Mr.
SHEN was a lecturer at the Changchun University of Science and Technology.
He joined Kingdee in 1998 and has served as the department manager of
Shenzhen Branch, the general manager of Dongguan Branch, the general
manager of Shenzhen Branch, the general manager of South China and the
senior vice president of Kingdee China. He is currently the president of
Shanghai Guanyi. Since joining Kingdee in the past 21 years, Mr. SHEN has
made important contributions in the key management positions of Kingdee, and
has rich theoretical and practical experiences in business management.
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The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of Operations

Shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0268) and the Company is headquartered in Shenzhen,
the PRC. Adhering to the core values of “Acting in all Conscience, with Integrity
and Righteousness”, the Company is committed to helping businesses achieve
their growth targets and let the sun shine on every company through dedicated
services. It strives to provide them with the most trusted enterprise service
platform. Through persistent efforts to explore China’s Cloud enterprise service
market, Kingdee has retained the largest share in the enterprise application
software sector for fast-growing enterprises for 15 consecutive years, and has
grasped the biggest share in the enterprise-grade SaaS Cloud services industry
for the second year, also the Company has grasped the biggest share in the
enterprise-grade SaaS ERM (as known as Cloud ERP) and Financial Cloud
services industry for the third year.

In addition, Kingdee's diverse Cloud services and products are the preferred
choices of leading enterprises. They include “Kingdee Cloud eCosmic” (a
Cloud service platform for large enterprises), “Kingdee CloudeGalaxy” (a
digital innovative Cloud service platform for medium and large enterprises and
fast-growing enterprises), “Kingdee Jingdou Cloud” (one-stop Cloud services
platform for micro and small-sized enterprises), “Cloud-Hub” (intelligent Cloud
office), “Guanyi Cloud” (Cloud services for E-commerce operators), “Cargeer”
(Cloud services for auto dealers) and “Wojia Cloud”(Cloud services for Property
Industry). With its strengths in management software and Cloud services,
Kingdee provides services and products to more than 6.8 million enterprises,
government agencies and other organizations around the world.

The revenue and profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019 were approximately RMB3,325,590,000 and
RMB372,580,000, respectively. Of such revenue, approximately 60.5% was
derived from the sales of ERP business and approximately 39.5% was derived
from the Cloud services business. For details, please refer to the consolidated
income statement set out on page 91.

The Group has established three software parks which are located in Shenzhen,
Shanghai and Beijing, respectively. As at 31 December 2019, the Group
had nearly 50 branches mainly engaging in marketing and service and had
approximately over 2,000 cooperation partners providing consultation, technical
support, implementation services and distribution of its products and after-sale
services to the customers of the Group.
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Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year as required by Schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”), including (i) a discussion of the principal business risks and
uncertainties facing the Group; (i) an indication of likely future developments
of the Group’s business; and (iii) the key financial performance indicators of the
development, performance and position of the Group’s business are provided in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section, on pages 17 to 29 of this
annual report and Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Final Dividend

The performance for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 91. The Board recommended the
declaration and payment of a final dividend of RMB1.1 cents (equivalent to
approximately HKD1.2 cents) per share out of the share premium account of the
Company (the “Share Premium Account”) for the year ended 31 December 2019
(the “Final Dividend”) (2018: RMB1.00 cent). Such declaration and payment of
the Final Dividend out of the Share Premium Account is subject to the approval
of the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company (the “AGM”) and it is expected that the Final Dividend will be
paid in cash on or about 1 June 2020.

For further details of the proposed declaration and payment of the Final
Dividend out of the Share Premium Account, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 18 March 2020 and the circular of the Company dated 9
April 2020.

Dividend Policy

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution ratio.
The declaration of future dividend will be subject to the Directors’ decision
and will depend on, among other things, the earnings, financial condition,
cash requirements and availability, and any other factors that the Directors may
consider relevant. Any declaration and payment as well as the amount of the
dividends will be subject to any restrictions under the applicable laws and the
Company’s constitutional documents. The historical dividend distribution record
of the Group should not be used as a reference or basis to determine the level
of dividends that may be declared or paid by the Group in future.
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Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2019, the retained earnings of the Company were
approximately RMB16,395,000 (2018: approximately RMB42,340,000); and the
amount standing to the credit of the Share Premium Account was approximately
RMB2,963,096,000 (2018: approximately RMB2,903,459,000). Under
Chapter 22 of the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman islands, the share
premium of the Company is available for paying distributions or dividends
to shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of
Association and provided that immediately following the distribution of dividend
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Closures of Register

The register of members of the Company will be closed from (i) Thursday, 7
May 2020 to Tuesday, 12 May 2020 (both days inclusive) and (ii) Monday, 18
May 2020 to Wednesday, 20 May 2020 (both days inclusive), during which
periods no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be qualified to (i)
attend, participate in and vote at the AGM to be held on 12 May 2020 and (ii)
receive the Final Dividend, respectively, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Room 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on (i) Wednesday, 6 May 2020 and (ii)
Friday, 15 May 2020, respectively.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Details of bank loans and other borrowings for the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in the statement of changes in equity on page 93 of
the annual report.

Donations

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounted to approximately RMB1,000,000 (2018: approximately
RMB4,000,000).

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 7 of the annual report.

Fixed Assets

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Interests of the Directors in Contracts

Save as disclosed under the heading “Continuing Connected Transactions” and
“Related Party Transactions” in this report, no Director or an entity connected
with a Director has or had a material interest in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December
2019 in which the Group was a party.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions regarding pre-emptive rights under the laws of
Cayman Islands or the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”), which would oblige the Company to issue new shares to its
existing shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholdings.

Principal Properties

Details of the principal properties held for development and/or sale and for
investment purposes are set out on page 28 of the annual report.

Tax Relief

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to its
shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

Share Capital and Options
e  Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements. Shares were issued during the year as a result of the
exercise of share options. Details about the issue of shares are also set
out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements

e  Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company, nor any
of its subsidiaries, had purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.

Share Option Schemes

The share option schemes were adopted by the Company to encourage and
reward the contribution of eligible persons to the Company. Eligible persons
include employees, directors, partners, consultants, suppliers and customers of
the Group.
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Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 11 July 2005
(the “2005 Scheme”) and the adjustment made due to the bonus issue in 2011,
an aggregate of 529,501,600 share options were granted, of which 305,534,193
share options were exercised and 178,833,307 share options lapsed since its
adoption. During the year ended 31 December 2019, 13,693,175 share options
were exercised and 17,416,500 share options were lapsed, thus, 45,134,100
share options remained outstanding as at 31 December 2019.

At the AGM of the Company convened on 8 May 2015, the Company terminated
the 2005 Scheme and adopted a new share option scheme (the “2015 Scheme”)
with a validity period of ten years. The remaining life of the 2015 Scheme
was around 5 years as at the date of this report. As at 31 December 2019, the
Company had granted 40,000,000 share options pursuant to the 2015 Scheme,
of which 11,999,500 shares options were exercised and 4,510,000 share
options lapsed since its adoption. Hence, 23,490,500 share options remained
outstanding. According to the scheme mandate limit of the 2015 Scheme, the
Company may further grant 219,264,096 share options (being 259,264,096
share options less the 40,000,000 share options granted), representing
approximately 6.6% of the total number of issued shares of the Company as at
the date of this report.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the share options
granted under the 2015 Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company (including exercised and outstanding share options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of share options
in excess of such 1% limit shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the
Company and the approval of the shareholders of the Company at a general
meeting.

The grant of share options to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder, or to any of their respective associates, is subject to the approval
in advance by the independent non-executive Directors, excluding the
independent non-executive Director(s) who is/are the grantee(s) of the share
options. In addition, the grant of any share option to a substantial shareholder
of the Company or an independent non-executive Director, or to any of their
respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of grant and with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the shares of the Company as at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, is subject to the issue of a circular by
the Company and the approval of the shareholders of the Company in advance
at a general meeting. The grantee, his associates and all core connected
persons of the Company must abstain from voting at such general meeting. The
granted options can be exercised during its respective validity period under the
respective share option schemes.

BEAREAR -_ZZAF LA+ - BARNBRIBRAS L
R E (220 F48) RE-S——F4d
RARBETMELNAR - BB BREAAR - R
£ Fis AR P2 48 B0 /5529,501,600f% - HL 305,534,193 0% i AR A B 1%
T6 17883 0TRBREEAK - R-ZZE-NFFERS
HY N - 13,693,175MR PR AR IE AT (2 - 17,416,500 BB AR 2 %
MeBIE-F-AF+-A=1—HIL 451341005 M2
HARITEE ©

E-Z-AFIA\BARORREFAEL  ARACR
- ZTREHELRAT —RANBRESS (2T~
HFEE] - BRBRIEF - BEARERMHA - T~
IFFHEANBHROARE BE_T-NF+T_A=1—
Bl ARRAZF—RFFEIRMIAR - & 140,000,000
BERE- B —E-NF+t-A=1t—HI APET
511,999,500 - 23,490,500%5 & A #E i R AT 12 B BB R ET
BIBIRA 450,000 B RED KM - RE-_F—AFHA
NBBREAFASHAEN S AFHEIRE  AREIHA
15 1H219,264,006 A% & AR 12 (B1259,264,096/% B2 [ 12 6l & 1% 1 9
40,000,000 858 18) - (EBERRELAMHZE  ARADHET
B 17 496.6% °

REETZEASER - RRE-F-nFHEREARAME
MEMmBRESERE BIRE (BRETRRHATRZ
B BTEMANAMSAER2EERTZRSRHE
B UREERARFEETRNIBAR - MBRELBBZ
1REBRE - ARRRASETRBIRRBRAEH
KARRBRLLAE ©

MARRIZEE RSTRAERTIERRIARERAZE
MHEARNERE SLLARGELFNTESIE
(G RBREARAZBUIFRTESRIN o 4o - REM
T EABRARRR T RRRIBUFNTESTARSE
FREABBEARL 2 BREMSZRG - PHRARHER
ARREETRMDIRRAE (BRERHEBARFRD 2K
miEFHE) 18500000087 - MIARBATEBERELR
BRAGHRADARR A - BERARAREBEA
URADBNMAEGLOBEALAEZRRASG LHER
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The exercise price of the share options is determined by the Board, but may not ~ BEREZTHERMESSET  BTEERATI=Z38255
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as % : (\ARARORENE B (WEARXHA) EHRTEH
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,  HBREXRFIZKHE : (NEARABRGHREERTE BRI AE
which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of the ~ R ZBEMIHMNEBREXRMIZFHRHE  R(i)KAF
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five — B2 ®E(E °

trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value

of the shares of the Company.

Details of the movements of the share options pursuant to the 2005 Scheme and &It =T—AF+-A=+—HI BRE_TTHFERE

the 2015 Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows: FERZT-RFHEMNEEFBER RO TRE
Options
Exercise Exercise  Options held at Options granted exercised during Options lapsed ~ Options held at
Date of period price per 31 December during the ~ the reporting during the 31 December
grant (Note 3)  share (HKD) 2018 reporting period period (Note 2) reporting period 2019
BEHm
RIS-N\E BEHM fTHEs BEHR RIB-nF
Name or category of 34 e fiém® +-R=1-A Rty BRENA %4 +ZB=+-A
participants SREFN g (H&E3) (B7) <HREME  BREBE (Wi2) WERE®E <HRRENE
Oriental Gold Limited (Note 1) Origntal Gold Limited (F£E1) 20042014
23412014 fo0 22/04/2024 266 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
12/06/2015
12/5/2015 {0 11/06/2025 46 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
Sub-total ait 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
LinBo TR 16/03/2011
16/3/2011 10 15/03/2021 427 400,000 - - 400,000
12/06/2015
120512015 {0 11/06/2025 46 300,000 - - 300,000
Sub-total ait 700,000 700,000
Gary Clark Biddle Gary Clark Biddle 12/05/2015
12/5/2015 {0 11/06/2025 46 50,000 - 50,000 - 0
Dong Ming Zhu i) 20032013
21312013 10 21/03/2023 13 200,000 - - 200,000
12/05/2015
12/5/2015 {0 11/05/2025 46 200,000 200,000
Sub-fotal &t 400,000 400,000
Liu Chia Yung A5E 12/06/2015
12/5/2015 fo 11/05/2025 46 200,000 - 200,000 - 0
Other employees in aggregate EfEELY
14/0412009
141412009 {0 13/04/2019 0.9667 85,000 - 8,000 - 0
17/09/2009
17/9/2009 0 16/09/2019 1417 3,410,000 - 1,506,000 1,904000 0
2300412010
23042010 10 22/04/2020 25017 10,978,000 - 3.257,000 - 7,721,000

40 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited  Annual Report 2019



Options

Exercise  Options held at Options granted exercised during Options lapsed  Options held at

Date of price per 31 December during the ~ the reporting during the 31 December
grant share (HKD) 2018 reporting period period (Note 2) reporting period 2019
HEmm
RIB-I\E BEDR ffEgy GEER RIZ-0E
Name or category of 1] iR t-A=1-A i BRERE %4 +ZA=+-A
participants SHERN g (87) CHREWE  BREBE (Wi2) WRE®E <HBREHE
16/3/2011 4275 3,560,000 - 1,620,000 - 1,940,000
197812011 30 6,066,000 - 509,000 - 6,157,000
30302012 187 3,125,000 - 1,250,000 1,875,000 0
22082012 11 15,881,425 - 224392 13,637,500 0
22032013 134 17,639,600 - 1,768,000 - 15,871,600
23142014 266 11,798,750 - 1,454,250 - 10,344,500
1205201 46 30,462,500 - 6,812,000 3410000 20,240,500
Other employees in aggregate  EMESHH (44)
(subtotal) 103,606,275 - 20,265,175 20,826,500 62,524,600
TOTAL ait 109,956,275 - 20,505,175 20,826,500 68,624,600
Notes: BisE -

(1) Mr. Xu Shao Chun, an executive Director, the chairman of the Board, the president (1) RARTEE EXCIRRERNTERIELELERS

and the chief executive officer of the Company, holds 100% interests in Easy Key
Holdings Limited, which in turn holds 100% interests in Oriental Gold Limited.

(2)  During the reporting period,

Easy Key Holdings Limited + 5% 73 &2 & 2% Oriental Gold Limited ©

@ EREHA-

a. M. Gary Clark Biddle had exercised 50,000 options on 24 May 2019, and a.  Gary Clark BiddeS EER =2~ NERTA=FTHATE

the closing price of the shares immediately before the date on which the
options were exercised was HKD8.38;

TR EE R50, 0008 - EREERETEASZA
M B AE 8387 ¢

b.  Mr Liu Chia Yung had exercised 200,000 options, of which (i) 150,000 b, BIREERETETERELE 22000008 - AFRZT

options was exercised on 25 March 2019 and (ii) 50,000 options was
exercised on 25 October 2019, and the weighted average closing price of
the shares immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised
was HKD8.91

—NEZRZTH BT 7150,0000HEMAE - ARE=
T-NFTAZTHRTTRE T50,0008MHEE - ERE
BRGETRE BB A mE T RTEAEBIT -

(3)  The vesting period of the share options granted is four years and the vesting () BRESRTWEEHANT BEIEAERNBHR12ER

schedule is 25% after 12 months from the date of grant, 25% after 24 months from
the date of grant, 25% after 36 months from the date of grant, and 25% after 48

months from the date of grant.

FE25% - BRI AHRMEAREL% - BRH A HHE36E A
FE25% & BRI B B ie48(E A B 25%

For further details, please refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial ~ BZHMEER - FL2REHABRKMTT2 -

statements.
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Share Award Scheme

The share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was adopted by
the Company on 4 December 2015 to provide incentives and reward the
contributions of certain employees and directors of the Group. The Share Award
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing from
the adoption date. For details of the Share Award Scheme, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 18 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company had granted 19,178,000
award shares pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, of which a total of 6,450,000
awarded shares granted to the Directors were still outstanding, details of which
are as follows:

R {7 & Myt &

ARRAZT—RF+ - ANBRH 2K R 8 ([ %
B E]) UREBBUARRBASEETEERESME
MER - BRORBFAERAZBRERBSTFE - FHAK
DRBHEZHEELEANR T RF T ATNBEZ
N

RBE-Z-NFT-A=+—-RLLEFE - RERK EDE
BRI HET19.178 000 BB - ARRERNAHARE
&) 22 B 7 $£6,450,0000 - BRIFIEAT -

As at 31 Granted during Vested during As at 31

December 2018  the reporting period the reporting period December 2019

AZE—\E R_E—-RE

Name of Director EEnS +ZA=+—-H BEPAEH BEMNRE TZA=1+—H
Xu Shao Chun ®LE 4,750,000 1,200,000 1,750,000 4,200,000
LinBo WOR 2,162,500 800,000 712,500 2,250,000

For further details, please refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors

The composition of the Board during the financial year ended 31 December
2019 and up to the date of this report is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Shao Chun (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lin Bo (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Dong Ming Zhu
Mr. Shen Yuen Ching (resigned on 18 March 2020)
Mr. Zhou Bo Wen (appointed on 18 March 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Gary Clark Biddle
Mr. Liu Chia Yung
Mr. Cao Yang Feng
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According to the Articles of Association, each Director shall retire by rotation
at least once every three years and all the retiring Directors are eligible for
re-election at the AGM in that year. At the AGM, three Directors, namely Mr. Lin
Bo, Mr. Gary Clark Biddle and Mr. Liu Chia Yung shall be retired by rotation and
be eligible for re-election. Additionally, Mr. Zhou Bo Wen, who was appointed
as a non-executive Director on 18 March 2020, shall hold office only until the
AGM and shall also be eligible for re-election at the AGM.

None of the Directors who shall be retired and proposed for re-glection at the
forthcoming AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company received a written confirmation from each independent
non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
The Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests or Short Positions
in the Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFQ")), which will be required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or
which will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which will be required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

REAFMRERMAEI6E SUESEE)F=FRE
BRI MEREESHRERREFBRRBFAE LE
BEE - REERRAE - AREAL - Gary Clark BiddleSE 4 K
AXELRLERERBESRISERBEEL - %I BA
XEER-Z-_ZF=A+\BEZERFATES  EBE
BERERRAGITNASSERBERET -

IRREERRAGRERRABENESHEEAEER
HEFAMBART AR —FREARE (ZEBERN)
TR L Z DR E RIS 1555 o

RE(EABARBABRDAZSF LRI (T ETHAA)
FIBE ARFCHIBEBUFNTESRRLBUME L
EHHER - ARARREWBUFNTESREBUAL -

EERERTHRARRES HREHRNFESHES
Hike

RIZB-NE+ZA=1T—F  ARAIGNEEREHITH
ABEARAFZEEAEE (FER(ESRBEEID (B
BEDIENE) ([FHRBEGD) EXVERR) W, - 4
BRmREEETAERREE SRS ROEXVE D ET
FOEMRER BBAMARREMEBRN - REEF LD
FIGOIEB2MR T AT E 2 B sk - SRE TR
RIS+ 2 (LM RARERETEFRINBETAD ([FE
SR ORTEREBARRAMBBH I EEIAEN
T
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Long positions/short positions in shares/underlying shares of the

Company

FAFHEREHARRHRZEE

Number of shares/
underlying shares
(where appropriate)

Types of interests

Percentage of
total number of
issued shares
(approximate)

HERTRE
Bin / HERBR R HEEAL
Name of Directors EEgS BB (mER) #aNE i
Xu Shao Chun BLE 715,198,624(L)  Interests of controlled corporation (Note 1)
PR AR s ()
4,200,000(L)  Beneficiary of a trust (Note 2)
EaxamA (M)
17,255,034(L)  Beneficial owner
EREBA
Aggregate: A&t 736,653,658 22.18%
Lin Bo W 1,786,438(L)  Beneficial owner
BEmBEAA
2,250,000(L)  Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3)
EiaxamA (fiFs)
Aggregate: At 4,036,428 0.12%
Gary Clark Biddle Gary Clark Biddle 1,180,000(L)  Beneficial owner 0.04%
ERBAA
Dong Ming Zhu EL TR 400,000(L)  Share option (Note 4) 0.01%
e ALY
Liu Chia Yung 2R%E 200,000(L)  Beneficial owner 0.01%

BREAA
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Notes:

The percentage of the total number of issued shares was calculated by the number of the
aforesaid interests or short positions divided by the total number of issued shares as at
31 December 2019 of 3,320,690,571.

1. 0f the 715,198,624 shares, 419,312,000 shares (of which 5,000,000 were share
options) were held through Oriental Gold Limited and 295,886,624 shares were
held through Billion Ocean Limited. Easy Key Holdings Limited is wholly owned
by Mr. Xu Shao Chun, which wholly owns Oriental Gold Limited and Billion
Ocean Limited. Therefore, Mr. Xu Shao Chun is deemed to be interested in those
715,198,624 shares.

2. The 4,200,000 shares are the awarded shares granted to Mr. Xu Shao Chun and
held by the trustee to the Share Award Scheme — Bank of Communications Trustee
Limited. Details of the awarded shares are set out in the section headed “Share
Award Scheme” of this report.

3. The 2,250,000 shares are the awarded shares granted to Mr. Lin Bo and held by
the trustee to the Share Award Scheme — Bank of Communications Trustee Limited.
Details of the awarded shares are set out in the section headed “Share Award
Scheme” of this report.

4. Details of the share options are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Schemes” of this report.

5. (L) denotes long position and (S) denotes short position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which will be required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or which will be required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which will be
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” above, none
of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) was granted by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, any rights or
options to acquire shares or debentures in the Company during the year ended
31 December 2019.

GEX

LREARRERTERANBD L IREMABERARNHE
DHBRUARARZE-AF T A=+ —BNBERITARNHEE
3,320,690,571Ff1 5% ©

1. 1££715,198,6244% A% 15 7+ 419,312,0000% B 17 (£ F5,000,0000% A
BEAR#E) £ Oriental Gold Limited¥574 - 295,886,624A% A% {7 FaBillion
Ocean Limited#57 © Easy Key Holdings Limited B #4 A &R £ 2 &
B E2E MK Oriental Gold Limited XBillion Ocean Limited + #%
DESFEERE R LT15,198 642 B HE B #E RS o

2. BRI REEE] - RTHRDEEE 242000008 ZE A
HETRBRBRITERERDANSE - ZEDBRHNFEHR
ARE [ ZEEE] -

3. RIR I SRENEHEI] - PO SE A 2 2,250,0008% BRI Ak 17
ERBBZBRITEAERAANE - ZRBRHOFEHRN
Ad [ty ZEEtEl]

4 RBBENFEBRNARS [ERET S 26 -

5. (DRRER - MOBIRTAA -

BRABRMRENONRZIN BE-Z-NE+T-A=t—H
It ARFREEERESTHRARRAREE S LML
PIEXVEI EBAME AR R RB X AR ARE KRB E AT
(REEFRAEEOIEXVBNES) 2BH - AERHOK
ErmED  ZAERERBEFLAEEIIFEXVEHET - 56
B BAEGARERBRA - RREES RS GHIE06214%
REATHREOECMALEE  IREFETAAMNER
DR R R R o

EFUMEHRRFOET

WX TR 8 REES REE-T-NE+-A
Zt—HUEFE  ARERENBRAMEAARAESER
FEBEA (TR LTAR) TARTEBAARARL X
B E RV R -
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REPORT OF ﬁlRECTOﬂS
EFEERE

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests FERRRETATIREBEFBSRESHERARE
and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2019, as far as the Directors were aware, the following  BEZEFRM R-Z—AE+-A=1+—8 U TAL (K
persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) had ~ RARZEZBR&ETHAERIN) RAAR KM REERGF
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the — BEBRBEFLAEHEOIEXNVINETTERADAIHTE R
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions — {RIEZE ARSI SR TRBEFE 2 BTk
of Part XV of the SFO and required to be recorded in the register required to be ~ Z#EzmHAE

kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Interests in shares/underlying shares of the Company FAFRG HRBHFZES
Number of shares/ Percentage of total
underlying shares number of issued share
(where appropriate)  Capacity (approximate)
HERTRA
[ ] ] #yEskt
Name BEER B A (MERA) #EIKH #i
Easy Key Holdings Limited Easy Key Holdings Limited 715,198,624(L)  Interests of controlled corporation 21.54%
(Note 1) (P&ET) RIERAR 2 s
Oriental Gold Limited (Note 1) Oriental Gold Limited 419,312,000 (L) ~ Beneficial owner 12.63 %
(BtEE1) ESHBA
Billion Ocean Limited (Note 1) Billion Ocean Limited 295,886,624(L)  Beneficial owner 8.91%
(PH&ET) ERAERA
The Capital Group Companies, Inc.  The Capital Group Companies, 326,739,761(L)  Interests of controlled corporation 9.84%
(Note 2) Inc. (FiH5E2) RERAE 2 s
Capital Research and Management  Capital Research and 326,739,761(L)  Investment manager 9.84%
Company (Note 2) Management Company WEKE
(Bt5E2)
JPMorgan Chase & Co. (Note 3)  JPMorgan Chase & Co. 28,685,014(L)  Interests of controlled corporation
(Fi5E3) 19,505,855(5)  PAMEMR AR 2 KR
99,901,000(L)  Investment manager
REEE
101,861,927(L)  Approved lending agent
R HRIEA
5,972,000(L)  Person having a security interest in
shares
BERMIRBEEROA
SUBTOTAL: I 236,419,941(L) 7.12%
19,505,855(S) 0.59%
101,861,927(P) 3.07%

46

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2019



Number of shares/
underlying shares

Percentage of total
number of issued share

(where appropriate)  Capacity (approximate)
HERTERR
B{n /485 HEESL
Name BRER B8 H (MER) #EEIKE i
JD Oriental Investment Limited JD Oriental Investment Limited 288,526,000(L)  Investment manager 8.69%
(Note 4) (P 5E4) REKE
FMR LLC FMR LLC 209,200,485(L)  Investment manager 6.30%
Rage
BlackRock, Inc. (Note 5) BlackRock, Inc. (Ki#E5) 185,743,505(L)  Interests of controlled corporation 5.59%
10,166,000(5)  AIERR AR 2w 0.31%
Citigroup Inc. (Note 6) Citigroup Inc. (PFZE6) 2,567,908(L)  Interests of controlled corporation
i NI
50,000(S)
165,759,113(L)  Approved lending agent
BAEREREA
12,789,000(L)  Person having a security interest in
shares
RERMORBFRZHA
SUBTOTAL: AT 181,116,021(L) 5.45%
50,000(S) 0.00%
165,759,113(P) 4.99%
Notes: BizE -

LEARRERTERAN B L HREMLEERARNHA
ARBARRRR - NET A=+ - BNERTARRNEKA
3,320,690,57 151 % ©

The percentage of the total issued shares was calculated by the number of the aforesaid
interests or short positions divided by the total number of issued shares as at 31
December 2019 of 3,320,690,571.

FE715,198,624 0 B 1 7 » (1)419,312,0000% A% 15 (£ 5,000,0008%
AEERLHE) e Oriental Gold Limited ( FiFasy Key Holding Limited % &
HA) 58 - (ii) 295,886,624A% A7 EBillion Ocean Limited ( F3Easy
Key Holdings Limited 2 &5 ) #75 -

1. Of the 715,198,624 shares, (i) 419,312,000 shares (of which 5,000,000 share 1.
options) were held by Oriental Gold Limited; and (ii) 295,886,624 shares were
held through Billion QOcean Limited, each a company wholly owned by Easy Key
Holdings Limited.

RE=ZF — LE N A M A mThe Capital Group Companies, Inc.
JERX WM 2 B & - %326,739,7610% {7 F Capital Research and
Management Company ( £ The Capital Group Companies, Inc. 2 &%)
B -

2. According to the disclosure of interest form filed by The Capital Group Companies, 2.
Inc. on 4 September 2019, those 326,739,761 shares were held by Capital
Research and Management Company which is wholly owned by The Capital Group
Companies, Inc.
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48

According to the disclosure of interests form filed by JPMorgan Chase & Co. on 26 3 BREZZT-NF+=A=+/SHAJIPMorgan Chase & CoiERH

December 2019:

WAHER

(@)  JPMorgan Chase & Co. was deemed to be interested in the shares of the (a)

Company as follows:

JPMorgan Chase & Cot & {ER I T AR 17 A 2

Direct interest
Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling person % control (Y/N)  Number of shares
HEH#R
RREENER BEALHER BHES % (R/%) 1.1
JPMorgan Asset Management (Taiwan) Limited JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc. 100.00 Y 6,253,000(L)
JPMorgan Asset Management (Taiwan) Limited JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc. 3
J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A. - Amsterdam Branch J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A. 100.00 Y 378,000(L)
J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A. - Amsterdam Branch JP. Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A. 7
J. P Morgan AG J.P- Morgan International Finance Limited 100.00 Y 18,000(L)
J.P. Morgan AG J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited T
J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A.- Stockholm Bankilial JP Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A. 100.00 Y 2,045,000(L)
J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A.- Stockholm Bankilial J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A. =
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC J.P Morgan Broker-Dealer Holdings Inc. 100.00 Y 2,885,613(L)
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC J.P. Morgan Broker-Dealer Holdings Inc. T 2,885,613(S)
JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT (UK) LIMITED JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT HOLDINGS (UK) LIMITED 100.00 Y 415,000(L)
JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT (UK) LIMITED JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT HOLDINGS (UK) LIMITED =
J.P. Morgan nvestment Management Inc. JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc. 100.00 Y 6,070,000(L)
J.P- Morgan Investment Management Inc. JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc. T
J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A. - Oslo Branch J.P Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A. 100.00 Y 76,000(L)
J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A. - Oslo Branch J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A. =
JPMaorgan Chase Bank, N.A. - Sydney Branch JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association 100.00 Y 531,000(L)
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. - Sydney Branch JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association =
J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg SA. J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited 100.00 Y 80,000(L)
J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg SA. J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited =
JPMorgan Asset Management (Japan) Limited JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc. 100.00 Y 875,000(L)
JPMorgan Asset Management (Japan) Limited JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc. =
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. - Hong Kong Branch JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association 100.00 Y 1.444.000(L)
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. - Hong Kong Branch JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association a3
JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association JPMorgan Chase & Co. 100.00 Y 99,982,927()
JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association JPMorgan Chase & Co. =
JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia Pacific) Limited JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc. 99.99 Y 62,185,000(L)
JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia Pacific) Limited JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc. =
J.P MORGAN SECURITIES PLC J.P. MORGAN CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 100.00 Y 31,753.401(L)
J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES PLC J.P MORGAN CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED = 16,620,242(S)
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Direct interest

Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling person % control (Y/N)  Number of shares
EEHEG

RREENER BEALHER BHES % (/%) 11

J.P. Morgan (Suisse) SA J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited 100.00 Y 1,428,000(L)

J.P- Morgan (Suisse) SA J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited =

JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc. JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc. 100.00 N 89,313,000(L)

JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia) Inc. JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc. &

JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc. JPMorgan Chase Holdings LLC 100.00 N 95,798,000(L)

JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc. JPMorgan Chase Holdings LLC &

JPMorgan Chase Holdings LLC JPMorgan Chase & Co. 100.00 N 98,683,613(L)

JPMorgan Chase Holdings LLC JPMorgan Chase & Co. & 2,885,613(S)

J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A. J.P- Morgan International Finance Limited 100.00 N 2,499,000(L)

J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A. J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited &

J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association 100.00 N 35,778, 401(L)

J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association & 16,620,242(S)

JPMaorgan Chase Bank, National Association JPMorgan Chase & Co. 100.00 N 37,753,401(1)

JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association JPMorgan Chase & Co. & 16,620,242(5)

J.P. Morgan Broker-Dealer Holdings Inc. JPMorgan Chase Holdings LLC 100.00 N 2,885,613(L)

J.P. Morgan Broker-Dealer Holdings Inc. JPMorgan Chase Holdings LLC & 2,885,613(S)

JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT HOLDINGS (UK) LIMITED JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 100.00 N 415,000(L)

JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT HOLDINGS (UK) LIMITED JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED &

JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc. 100.00 N 415,000(L)

JPMORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc. &

J.P. MORGAN CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED J.P- Morgan International Finance Limited 100.00 N 31,753 401(L)

J.P. MORGAN CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED J.P Morgan International Finance Limited & 16,620,242(S)

details of JPMorgan Chase & Co.’s derivatives interests are as follows: AR (b)

° Listed derivatives — Cash settled: 203,000(S)

° Unlisted derivatives — Cash settled: 26,150,000(L) and 3,116,269(S)

JPMorgan Chase & Co. 2 fT4 MEZMFHBENT ¢

LT — T EBRE 5203,000)

FEEMOTER -4 E B £ R26,150,000(L)% &

3,116,269(5)
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According to the disclosure of interests forms filed by JD Oriental Investment 4.
Limited, Max Smart Limited, JD.com, Inc., JD.com Investment Limited and Liu
Qiangdong Richard on 26 May 2015, Max Smart Limited, JD.com, Inc., JD.com
Investment Limited and Liu Qiangdong Richard were deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company as follows:

WE-Z—HER A —+758JD Oriental Investment Limited * Max
Smart Limited + JD.com, Inc. * JD.com Investment Limited 22238 5 4 5=
TEZRAGIRE + Max Smart Limited + JD.com, Inc. » JD.com Investment
Limited B2IR R E ERZR OB RES - T -

Direct interest

Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling Person % control (Y/N)  Number of shares
EE#ER

REENER BEALHER BHES% (/&) i1

Max Smart Limited Liu Qiangdong Richard 100.00 N 268,526,000 (1)

Max Smart Limited EIES 5

JD.com, Inc. Max Smart Limited and Fortung Rising Holdings Limited 82.80 N 288,526,000 (L)

JD.com, Inc. Max Smart Limited and Fortune Rising Holdings Limited E

JD.com Investment Limited JD.com, Inc. 100.00 N 288,526,000 (L)

JD.com Investment Limited JD.com, Inc. i

JD Oriental Investment Limited JD.com Investment Limited 100.00 Y 268,526,000 (L)

JD Oriental Investment Limited JD.com Investment Limited =
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5.

According to the disclosure of interests form filed by BlackRock, Inc. on 24
December 2019:

(@)

BlackRock, Inc. was deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company

as follows:

5.

BB =T —NF+ = A=/ BBlackRock, Inc. B B A EE K
&

(a)

BlackRock, Inc. 4 & fERZ IR D A 12 - 10T ¢

Direct interest

Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling person % control (Y/N)  Number of shares
EEHER
RREENAR BEALHER BHEsE (/%) .1
Trident Merger, LLC BlackRock, Inc. 100.00 N 3,138,000(L)
Trident Merger, LLC BlackRock, Inc. &
BlackRock Investment Management, LLC Trident Merger, LLC 100.00 Y 3,138,000(L)
BlackRock Investment Management, LLC Trident Merger, LLC i
BlackRock Holdco 2, Inc. BlackRock, Inc. 100.00 N 182,605,505(L)
BlackRock Holdco 2, Inc. BlackRock, Inc. i 10,166,000(5)
BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. BlackRock Holdco 2, Inc. 100.00 N 179,406,505(L)
BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. BlackRock Holdco 2, Inc. i 10,166,000(5)
BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. BlackRock Holdco 2, Inc. 100.00 Y 3,199,000(L)
BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. BlackRock Holdco 2, Inc. i
BlackRock Holdco 4, LLC BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. 100.00 N 71,425,000(L)
BlackRock Holdco 4, LLC BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. i 5,329,000(S)
BlackRock Holdco 6, LLC BlackRock Holdco 4, LLC 90.00 N 71,425,000(L)
BlackRock Holdco 6, LLC BlackRock Holdco 4, LLC S 5,329,000(S)
BlackRock Delaware Holdings Inc. BlackRock Holdco 6, LLC 100.00 N 71,425,000(L)
BlackRock Delaware Holdings Inc. BlackRock Holdco 6, LLC & 5,329,000(S)
BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, National Association BlackRock Delaware Holdings Inc. 100.00 Y 26,916,000(L)
BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, National Association BlackRock Delaware Holdings Inc. T 5,329,000()
BlackRock Fund Advisors BlackRock Delaware Holdings Inc. 100.00 Y 44.509,000(L)
BlackRock Fund Advisors BlackRock Delaware Holdings Inc. 3
BlackRock Capital Holdings, Inc. BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. 100.00 N 42,231,000(L)
BlackRock Capital Holdings, Inc. BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. & 4,570,000(5)
BlackRock Advisors, LLC BlackRock Capital Holdings, Inc. 100.00 Y 42,231,000(1)
BlackRock Advisors, LLC BlackRock Capital Holdings, Inc. = 4,570,000(S)
BlackRock International Holdings, Inc. BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. 100.00 N 65,750,505(L)
BlackRock International Holdings, Inc. BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. i 267,000(5)
BR Jersey International Holdings L.P. BlackRock International Holdings, Inc. 86.00 N 65,750,505(L)
BR Jersey International Holdings L.P. BlackRock International Holdings, Inc. & 267,000(S)
BlackRock Lux Finco Sarl. BlackRock HK Holdco Limited 100.00 N 7,953,968(L)
BlackRock Lux Finco S, BlackRock HK Holdco Limited i
BlackRock Japan Holdings GK BlackRock Lux Finco S.4 . 100.00 N 7,953,968(L)
BlackRock Japan Holdings GK BlackRock Lux Finco Sa . &
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Direct interest

Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling person % control (Y/N)  Number of shares
EE#ES

REEENAR BEATHER BHEAE (/%) B&

BlackRock Japan Co., Ltd. BlackRock Japan Holdings GK 100.00 Y 7,953,968(L)

BlackRock Japan Co., Ltd. BlackRock Japan Holdings GK T

BlackRock Holdco 3, LLC BR Jersey International Holdings L.P. 100.00 N 55,286,398(L)

BlackRock Holdco 3, LLC BR Jersey International Holdings L.P. & 267,000(S)

BlackRock Canada Holdings LP BlackRock Holdco 3, LLC 99.90 N 861,000(L)

BlackRock Canada Holdings LP BlackRock Holdco 3, LLC &

BlackRock Canada Holdings ULC BlackRock Canada Holdings LP 100.00 N 861,000(L)

BlackRock Canada Holdings ULC BlackRock Canada Holdings LP T

BlackRock Asset Management Canada Limited BlackRock Canada Holdings ULC 100.00 Y 861,000(L)

BlackRock Asset Management Canada Limited BlackRock Canada Holdings ULC &

BlackRock Australia Holdco Pty. Lid. BR Jersey International Holdings L.P. 100.00 N 983,400(L)

BlackRock Australia Holdco Pty. Ltd. BR Jersey International Holdings L.P. &

BlackRock Investment Management (Australia) Limited BlackRock Australia Holdco Pty. Ltd. 100.00 Y 983,400(L)

BlackRock Investment Management (Australia) Limited BlackRock Australia Holdco Pty. Lid. R

BlackRock (Singapore) Holdco Pte. Ltd. BR Jersey International Holdings L.P. 100.00 N 9,480,707(L)

BlackRock (Singapore) Holdco Pte. Ltd. BR Jersey International Holdings L.P. i

BlackRock HK Holdco Limited BlackRock (Singapore) Holdco Pte. Lid. 100.00 N 9,480.707(L)

BlackRock HK Holdco Limited BlackRock (Singapore) Holdco Pte. Ltd. &

BlackRock Asset Management North Asia Limited BlackRock HK Holdco Limited 100.00 Y 1,526,739(L)

BlackRock Asset Management North Asia Limited BlackRock HK Holdco Limited i

BlackRock Cayman 1LP BlackRock Holdco 3, LLC 100.00 N 54,425,398(L)

BlackRock Cayman 1 LP BlackRock Holdco 3, LLC i 267,000(S)

BlackRock Cayman West Bay Finco Limited BlackRock Cayman 1 LP 100.00 N 54,425,39(L)

BlackRock Cayman West Bay Finco Limited BlackRock Cayman 1 LP S 267,000(5)

BlackRock Cayman West Bay IV Limited BlackRock Cayman West Bay Finco Limited 100.00 N 54,425,398(L)

BlackRock Cayman West Bay IV Limited BlackRock Cayman West Bay Finco Limited % 267,000(5)

BlackRock Group Limited BlackRock Cayman West Bay IV Limited 90.00 N 54,425,398(L)

BlackRock Group Limited BlackRock Cayman West Bay IV Limited E 267,000(5)

BlackRock Finance Europe Limited BlackRock Group Limited 100.00 N 16,516,340(L)

BlackRock Finance Europe Limited BlackRock Group Limited F

BlackRock (Netherlands) B.V. BlackRock Finance Europe Limited 100.00 Y 406,000(L)

BlackRock (Netherlands) B.V. BlackRock Finance Europe Limited =

BlackRock Advisors (UK) Limited BlackRock Finance Europe Limited 100.00 Y 244.000(L)

BlackRock Advisors (UK) Limited BlackRock Finance Europe Limited 2
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(b)

Direct interest

Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling person % control (Y/N)  Number of shares
EE#ER

RREENER BEALHER BHES % (/%) i1

BlackRock International Limited BlackRock Group Limited 100.00 N 4224 203(L)

BlackRock International Limited BlackRock Group Limited 5

BlackRock International Limited BlackRock Group Limited 100.00 \ 256,000(L)

BlackRock International Limited BlackRock Group Limited E

BlackRock Group Limited-Luxembourg Branch BlackRock Group Limited 100.00 N 33,428,855(L)

BlackRock Group Limited-Luxembourg Branch BlackRock Group Limited T 267,000(S)

BlackRock Luxembourg Holdco S.arl. BlackRock Group Limited-Luxembourg Branch 100.00 N 33,428855(L)

BlackRock Luxembourg Holdco S.a r. BlackRock Group Limited-Luxembourg Branch & 267,000(S)

BlackRock Investment Management Ireland Holdings Limited BlackRock Luxembourg Holdco S.a .. 100.00 N 13,229.855(L)

BlackRock Investment Management Ireland Holdings Limited BlackRock Luxembourg Holdco S.ar.. E

BlackRock Asset Management Ireland Limited BlackRock Investment Management Ireland Holdings Limited 100.00 Y 13,229,855(L)

BlackRock Asset Management Ireland Limited BlackRock Investment Management Ireland Holdings Limited 3

BLACKROCK (Luxembourg) S.A. BlackRock Luxembourg Holdco S.a r. 100.00 Y 20,180,000(L)

BLACKROCK (Luxembourg) S.A. BlackRock Luxembourg Holdco S.a r. E 267,000(S)

BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited BlackRock Finance Europe Limited 100.00 N 1.371,000()

BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited BlackRock Finance Europe Limited &

BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited BlackRock Finance Europe Limited 100.00 Y 14,495, 340(L)

BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited BlackRock Finance Europe Limited =

BlackRock Fund Managers Limited BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited 100.00 Y 1,371,000(1)

BlackRock Fund Managers Limited BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited i

BlackRock Life Limited BlackRock International Limited 100.00 Y 4244203(L)

BlackRock Life Limited BlackRock International Limited =

BlackRock UK Holdco Limited BlackRock Luxembourg Holdco S.a r. 100.00 N 19,000(L)

BlackRock UK Holdco Limited BlackRock Luxembourg Holdco S, T

BlackRock Asset Management (Schweiz) AG BlackRock UK Holdco Limited 100.00 Y 19,000(L)

BlackRock Asset Management (Schweiz) AG BlackRock UK Holdco Limited =

details of BlackRock, Inc.’s derivatives interests are as follows:

o Unlisted derivatives — Cash settled: 4,875,000(S)

MR (b)

BlackRock, Inc. 2 074 i BIFFHIBAT

- FLETITER - FERER - 48750009)
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and

7.

54

According to the disclosure of interests form filed by Citigroup Inc. on 28 6.
November 2019:

(a)

Citigroup Inc. was deemed to be interested in the shares of the

Company as follows:

RIE=F—NF+— B =1/\BCitigroup Inc. 3 FE MMEE R :

Direct interest
Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling person % control (Y/N)  Number of shares
HEHES
REEENER BEALTHER BHEsE (/&) B&
Citicorp LLC Citigroup Inc. 100.00 N 165,759, 113(L)
Citicorp LLC Citigroup Inc. Y
Citibank, NA. Citicorp LLC 100.00 Y 165,759,113(L)
Citibank, NA. Citicorp LLC 7
Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. Citigroup Inc. 100.00 N 15,356,908(L)
Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. Citigroup Inc. ) 50,000()
Citigroup Financial Products Inc. Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. 100.00 N 15,356,908(L)
Citigroup Financial Products Inc. Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Inc. & 50,000(S)
Citigroup Global Markets Hong Kong Limited Citigroup Financial Products Inc. 100.00 Y 828,000(L)
Citigroup Global Markets Hong Kong Limited Citigroup Financial Products Inc. T 50,000(5)
Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Bahamas Limited Citigroup Financial Products Inc. 90.00 N 14528,908(L)
Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Bahamas Limited Citigroup Financial Products Inc. &
Citigroup Global Markets Limited Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Bahamas Limited 100.00 Y 14,528 908(L)
Citigroup Global Markets Limited Citigroup Global Markets Holdings Bahams Limited T
(b)  details of Citigroup Inc.’s derivatives interests are as follows: PAK (b)  Citigroup Inc. 2 HTE B FFEWMT ¢
e Unlisted derivatives — Cash settled: 702,000(L) - FEMITER-FERLA : 702,000(L)
(L) denotes long position, (S) denotes short position and (P) denotes lending pool. 7. (DRTEE - OFRRKE  MEPEREE.
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Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules during the reporting period and as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of the annual report.

Equity-linked Agreement

There was no equity-linked agreement being entered into during the year or
subsisting at the end of the year.

Continuing Connected Transactions

(1) Strategic Cooperation Framework agreement and Product
Promotion Cooperation Framework Agreement hetween
Kingdee China and CloudHub

As the 2018 strategic cooperation framework agreement expired on 31
December 2018 and the transactions contemplated thereunder would
continue to be entered into on a recurring basis, on 1 January 2019,
Kingdee China (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and
Shenzhen CloudHub Network Co., Ltd.* (“Shenzhen CloudHub”) entered
into: (a) the 2019 Strategic Cooperation Framework Agreement: Shenzhen
CloudHub appoints Kingdee China as a distributor (the “Cloud-Hub
Products Distributorship”); and Shenzhen CloudHub agrees to use the
strengths of its mobile office platform to provide sales support, business
consultation and other services for the sale of Kingdee collaborative
office software in consideration of a service fee payable by Kingdee
China to Shenzhen CloudHub (the “Kingdee Products Sales Support
Services”). The pricing for the transactions under the Cloud-Hub Products
Distributorship and the Kingdee Products Sales Support Services should
be determined by reference to market prices offered to any independent
third party by Shenzhen Cloud-Hub and/or Kingdee China (as the case
may be) for the distribution of similar products and provision of similar
services. The annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2019 approved
by the Board was RMB60,000,000 and the actual transaction amount
was RMB36,959,000; and (b) the 2020 Product Promotion Cooperation
Framework Agreement: Kingdee China agrees to use its channels and
networks to promote the PublicCloud Products of Shenzhen Cloud-Hub
in consideration for a promotion fee payable by Shenzhen CloudHub to
Kingdee China. The annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2019
approved by the Board was RMB30,000,000 and the actual transaction
amount was RMB6,871,000. The term of the two agreements was both one
year from 1 January 2019.
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As both the 2019 strategic cooperation framework agreement and the
2019 product promotion cooperation framework agreement have expired
on 31 December 2019 and the transactions contemplated thereunder shall
continue to be entered into on a recurring basis, on 31 December 2019,
Kingdee China and Shenzhen CloudHub entered into the 2020 strategic
cooperation framework agreement and the 2020 product promotion
cooperation framework agreement, pursuant to which the parties agreed
to continue the existing cooperation as disclosed above with each other
for a term of one year commencing from 31 December 2019. The annual
caps for the year ending 31 December 2020 approved by the Board are
(a) RMB60,000,000 under the 2020 strategic cooperation framework
agreement; and (b) RMB15,000,000 under the 2020 product promotion
cooperation framework agreement.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 10 March 2017,
30 June 2017, 2 January 2018, 2 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and 2
January 2020, respectively, for further details.

2020 Partnership Agreement between Kingdee China and
Kingdee Medical

On 31 December 2019, Kingdee China (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Kingdee Medical Software Technology Co., Ltd.* (“Kingdee
Medical”) entered into the 2020 Partnership Agreement, pursuant to which
Kingdee China agreed to authorise Kingdee Medical to be its sale partner
so that Kingdee Medical can purchase products from Kingdee China
and then distribute those products in the PRC for a term of one year
commencing from 1 January 2020. The annual cap for the year ending 31
December 2020 approved by the Board, which is the maximum aggregate
amount payable by Kingdee Medical to Kingdee China regarding the
distribution of Kingdee China’s products is RMB3,300,000.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 31 December
2019 for further details.
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(4)

Lease Agreements between Kingdee China and Suishou
Technology

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 1 January 2018 entered into between
Kingdee China (a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
and Shenzhen Suishou Technology Co., Ltd. (“Suishou Technology”),
with regard to renting of offices to Suishou Technology for a term
commencing from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. The annual
cap for the continuing connected transactions approved by the Board is
RMB13,420,146 for each of the years ended/ending 31 December 2018,
2019 and 2020.

On 1 January 2019, Kingdee China and Suishou Technology also entered
into another lease agreement (together with the lease agreement dated 1
January 2018 above, the “Lease Agreements”) under which Kingdee China
agreed to lease an additional office to Suishou Technology for a term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2019. The aggregate annual caps
for the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the Lease
Agreements (being the aggregate of the annual rentals and charges) are
RMB14,327,900 for each of the years ended/ending 31 December 2019,
2020 and 2021 as approved by the Board.

The actual rental paid by Suishou Technology to the Kingdee China for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was RMB14,124,000.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 30 June 2017, 2
January 2018 and 2 January 2019 for further details.

Loan Extension Agreements

Reference is made to the announcement dated 28 July 2016 in respect
of, inter alia, the loans in the principal amount of RMB61,679,000 and
RMB104,979,000, respectively advanced to CloudHub and Shanghai Jinyi
Medical Health Software Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Jinyi Medical”) by Kingdee
China (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), both with a term of
three years from 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2019. On 14 December
2018, Kingdee China entered into the loan extension agreements (the
“Loan Extension Agreements”) with each of CloudHub and Shanghai Jinyi
Medical, respectively, pursuant to which Kingdee China agreed to extend
the maturity date of the outstanding loans of RMB31,679,000 (CloudHub)
and RMB104,979,000 (Shanghai Jinyi Medical) to 31 December 2021 at
an annual interest rate of 5%.

The aggregate annual cap under the Loan Extension Agreements is
RMB143,490,900 for each of the years ending 31 December 2019, 2020
and 2021 (i.e. RMB33,262,950 for CloudHub and RMB110,227,950 for
Shanghai Jinyi Medical).

(3)

(4)
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As at 31 December 2019, there was no outstanding loans under the Loan
Extension Agreements as CloudHub and Shanghai Jinyi Medical had paid off all
the outstanding loans and its interests under the Loan Extension Agreements in
July 2019.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 28 July 2016 and 14
December 2018 for further details.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) considered that the terms of the
transactions and their respective annual caps discussed above have been
entered into (i) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable, (ii) on normal commercial terms and in the interests of the
Company and shareholders of the Company as a whole, and (iii) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the Company’s
auditor to perform certain agreed-upon procedures in respect of the continuing
connected transactions set out above on a sample basis. The auditor has
reported their factual findings on the selected samples based on the agreed
procedures to the Board and has confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions set out above have complied with the requirements under Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements of Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules in respect of the abovementioned connected transactions.
Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2019, there were
no other connected transactions or continuing connected transactions of the
Company which require the compliance with any of the reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the usual course of
business of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as otherwise disclosed in “Continuing Connected Transactions” above,
the related party transactions set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements did not fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Competing Interest

None of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had an interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.
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Management Contracts

No management contracts concerning the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the Reporting
Period.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year atributable to the Group’s
major customers and suppliers, respectively, are as follows:

Sales

- the largest customer 0.63%
- the five largest customers in aggregate 2.15%
Purchases

- the largest supplier 14.55%
- the five largest suppliers in aggregate 29.63%

At no time during the year had the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the major customers or
suppliers set out above.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in Section 469 of the Companies
Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout this year.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report, the
Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the places
where the Group operates in all material respects.

Environmental, Social and Governance

Details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance as well as the
Group’s relationships with its stakeholders during the reporting period will
be included in the 2019 Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be
published the Company.

Retirement Scheme

Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are set out in Note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the external auditor of the Company
for the year of 2019, and there has been no change in the Company’s auditor
in any of the preceding three years. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company's auditor will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.
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Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere thanks to all our
managements and staff for their dedication during the period. Also, | would like
to thank our shareholders for their continuous support.

By order of the Board

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited
Chairman

Xu Shao Chun

Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China, 18 March 2020.

This report, for which the Directors collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing
Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Group consistently promotes good corporate governance, pursuing the
five principles of ensuring the rights and interests of shareholders, abiding
by the directives of the Board and management, promoting full disclosure and
transparency, ensuring the equal treatment of stakeholders, and strengthening
internal controls and supervision. The Company endeavors to enhance its
enterprise value, ensure the Company’s long-term and stable development
and safeguard the interests of its shareholders. The details of the corporate
governance practices of the Company are set out below.

The Company has applied and complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2019 except for
code provision A.2.1. For details and reasons for the deviation, please refer to
the section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”.

Board of Directors
I.  The responsibilities of the Board

The Board is the core of corporate governance of the Company. Its major
responsibilities are as follows:

(1) to convene general meetings, report to shareholders and implement
the resolutions of general meetings;

(2) to review and approve the mid- and long-term strategic plans and
management strategies of the Group;

(3) to review and approve critical investment and acquisition projects,
the issuance and repurchase of securities, and other plans
for financings, amalgamation, compensation, recruitment and
dismissals;

(4) to review and approve the Group’s budget plans, profit distribution
plans and loss remedy plans;

(5) to draft amendments to the Articles of Association, and to propose
changes in registered capital;

(6) to approve Directors’ remuneration plans as authorized by
shareholders;

(7) to listen to the working report of the Chief Executive Officer and to
review the work of the Chief Executive Officer; and

(8) to review and approve the Share Award Scheme, the Share Option
Scheme and the Share Incentive Scheme.
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The Board shall empower the senior management of the Group to
implement the decisions of the Board and all members of the senior
management of the Group shall be appointed by the Board. In entrusting
management and administrative functions to the senior management, the
Board provides clear instructions regarding the powers delegated to them,
and prior approval of the Board is required before the senior management
makes any key decisions and commitments on behalf of the Group. The
senior management and the Company Secretary will report to the Board
on updates on legal and regulatory developments, business and market
changes and the strategic development of the Group to facilitate the
performance of the Board's duties. The Board has maintained effective
supervision over the Group’s strategic plans and key policies, management
and assessment of risks, and effective controls over business operations.
The members of the Board and senior management have fully committed
to their roles, ensured that the Group’s development strategies are in line
with the changes in the economy and market, and acted in good faith with
a view to furthering the Shareholders’ long-term interests.

Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2019, the Board comprised seven members,
including two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The Directors during the year ended
31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Shao Chun (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lin Bo (Chief Financial Officer)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Dong Ming Zhu
Mr. Shen Yuan Ching (resigned on 18 March 2020)
Mr. Zhou Bo Wen (appointed on 18 March 2020)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Gary Clark Biddle
Mr. Liu Chia Yung
Mr. Cao Yang Feng
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Throughout the reporting period, the number of independent
non-executive Directors exceeds one-third of the Board. The Directors
have professional background in finance, technology and management,
respectively. They have extensive experience and independent views in
their respective areas of expertise so that they can provide professional
advice in respect of the long-term development of the Company. The
biographies of the Directors are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section on page 30 to 34 of this annual report.

The term of appointment of each of the Directors (including non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) is two years.
According to the Articles of Association, each Director shall retire by
rotation at least once every three years and all the retiring Directors
are eligible for re-glection at the AGM in that year. At the AGM, three
Directors, namely Mr. Lin Bo, Mr. Gary Clark Biddle and Mr. Liu
Chia Yung shall be retired by rotation and be eligible for re-glection.
Additionally, Mr. Zhou Bo Wen who was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 18 March 2020, shall hold office only until the AGM and shall
also be eligible for re-election at the AGM.

None of the Directors who shall be retired and proposed for re-glection
has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

As at the date of this annual report, to the best knowledge of the Board,
save as disclosed in this report there is no financial, business or family
relationship among the members of the Board or the chief executives

Board Meeting/General Meeting

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company convened 7 Board
meetings and one AGM. The following table shows the details of the
Directors’ attendance:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEER FHRE

Board Meetings AGM
Directors Ex EEgel BREAFEXY
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Xu Shao Chun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) %A &F%4 (EF €I FHRERHITE) i 1N
Mr. Lin Bo (Chief Financial Officer) WEEE (BRFHBE) 1 il
Non-executive Directors FRITESR
Ms. Dong Ming Zhu ERKLL 37 0n
Mr. Shen Yuan Ching (resigned on 18 March 2020) RTELE (R-Z-TE=F+/\BEHT) 1 0/1
Independent non-executive Directors BIUEBTES
Mr. Gary Clark Biddle Gary Clark Biddlet & 1 0/1
Mr. Liu Chia Yung FIRELE 1 17
Mr. Cao Yang Feng B E 1 0/
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Directors were given sufficient notice of Board meetings in accordance
with the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association. Directors were
consulted in advance regarding the agenda of Board meetings. Notices
of regular Board meetings were given to all Directors at least 14 days
in advance of the meetings. For all other Board meetings, reasonable
notices were given. The agenda and other relevant, complete and reliable
accompanying materials were sent to the Directors at least three days
before each meeting. Each Director is aware of his/her obligation to
allocate adequate time to deal with the Company'’s affairs.

At the meetings of the Board held during the year ended 31 December
2019, the matters dealt with by the Directors include but not limited to the
following: formulating the overall development strategy of the Company,
considering and approving the Company’s 2018 annual report and the
2019 interim report, approving grant of award shares and discussing other
major matters. The secretary of the Board has recorded the proceedings of
each Board meeting by keeping detailed minutes, including all decisions
made by the Board together with concerns raised and dissenting views
expressed (if any) by the Directors. All minutes are kept by the secretariat
of the Board and any relevant files including the agenda, documents and
minutes are open for any Directors’ inspection.

Continuous professional development of Directors

To fully comply with the requirements of the Code on the continuous
professional development of Directors, the Company has provided all
Directors with documents and information aiming at developing and
refreshing their professional knowledge and skills, together with other
information (including monthly updates) on the development of business,
operation, activities and corporate governance of the Company from
time to time to assist them to fulfill their responsibilities. Each of the
Directors has been provided with induction to ensure that they are fully
aware of the business and operation of the Group, and the responsibilities
and obligations of Directors under the Listing Rules and other rules and
regulations. The Company has organized regular trainings for Directors
regarding their roles, functions and duties to assist them in understanding
their responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other related laws and
regulations through real case study; and to ensure the Directors are timely
and completely informed of the operations of the Company. Pursuant to
the requirements of the Code, all Directors should provide their training
record to the Company. According to the training records provided by the
Directors, the trainings attended by them during the reporting period are
summarized as follows:
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Corporate Governance,
Regulatory Development
and Trainings on

other Relevant Topics

LEER EERRR
Director EF H {48 5 £ BB
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Xu Shao Chun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) BROERE (BEERIREERITE) v
Mr. Lin Bo (Chief Financial Officer) WEEE (BRIHBE) v
Non-executive Directors FRITES
Ms. Dong Ming Zhu ERRLT 4
Mr. Shen Yuan Ching (resigned on 18 March 2020) BrELE (RZE-TF=F+/\HEFT) v/
Independent non-executive Directors BIAERTESE
Mr. Gary Clark Biddle Gary Clark Biddlest 4 4
Mr. Cao Yang Feng EPgEE 4
Mr. Liu Chia Yung ARERE 4

(2)  When Directors are asked to express their views on the Company’s
connected transactions (if any), incentive schemes, internal controls, etc.,
the Company retains auditors, financial advisers and/or lawyers and other
relevant independent professionals to provide independent professional
advice to assist the Directors in fulfilling their responsibilities.

(3)  With regard to insurance coverage in respect of possible legal actions
against the Directors when performing their duties, the Board had entered
into a “Liability Insurance Contract of Directors, Supervisors and Officers”
with Zurich General Insurance Company (China) Limited.

Board Committees

The Board has set up four specialized committees, namely the audit committee,
the remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the corporate
governance and strategy committee to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. The compositions of these committees are set out below. The
meeting procedures of the committees follow the statutory procedures and the
respective Terms of Reference and Modus Operandi.
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Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2019, the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) comprised three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Gary Clark Biddle (chairman), Mr. Cao Yang Feng and Mr. Liu Chia Yung.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(1)

66

making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors, and
any questions of resignation or dismissal of the auditors, reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor’s independence, the objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable standards
and acting as key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the auditor;

developing and implementing policy on engaging an external auditor to
supply non-audit services, and identifying and making recommendations
on any matters where action or improvement is needed;

meeting with the Company’s auditors at least twice a year to review and to
monitor completeness of the Company’s financial statements and annual
reports and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports, and reviewing significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them;

reviewing the management letter to the management issued by the
auditor, any material queries raised by the auditor to management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response, and ensuring that the Board responds promptly
to the matters raised by the external auditor in the management letter;

considering any significant or unusual items that are, or may need to be,
reflected in the report and accounts;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems, the Group’s financial and accounting policies
and practices, and discussing the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that management has performed its
duty to have effective systems;

considering major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters;

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

FREAE

w=

F-NF+T-A=1+—R FRAREKLZEE ((BKZ

&) A=ZBIUFHNTEREN  B1F6ary Clark Biddlest £

(X%

) EMBERERIRERL

ERZEEZRARNEIERS

Annual Report 2019

PINERBRINZ(E  EFRIRERAEFERER
& BHINEREAOFMEERER - MEEREFE
BRGS B BRBEZ R EMAEE  RERNRE
B RERIECHMR B L RE LB EARSE
M REGENEL TEMMAT T RINER BT B
PUELERERAARRET  YEABRAREER
RIEZ A FEE

RINEZBEIRGEIABRIGHERE - LT UBAT -
ZEERMANARRIPINENTANESERS
WiRLEE

SBeAZVEBFEARNANOGEMHAEMA - EEX
AIMMBHREANRFERSLER  FFEHRER
(BHTE) FEREHTBL - TEBBRERBER
HEMVBRBNEAER

z
n

BENEZEMGE TEERNEEZEE  SHHHE
AHE - MBREAERARATEERINEFNER
REALEREFLHOOE  BRESSUINERHEY
REBRRERENEZEFLRBOE

BERREEHE LR R ARR S ERROEHEA
SRBHEE

RAARTNTHEE - URRIAAANEARER -
AEEZEG  KENTHRETHRRIEN - BER
ErmaEREERNBERRS  RREEEDETR
BRVABNER

REBRREERAREEEENERHTHARETH

o



(8)  performing the internal audit function by ensuring co-ordination between
the internal and external auditors, and by ensuring that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

(9) reporting to the Board on the matters in the provision of the Code; and

(10) reviewing arrangements employees of the Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters.

Please refer to the Terms of Reference and Modus Operandi of the Audit
Committee published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
for further details on the roles and functions of the Audit Committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee held
three meetings, at which the Audit Committee:

(1) reviewed the Company’s annual financial report and internal control report
for the year 2018, and submitted them to the Board for approval;

(2) discussed the Company’s internal control system and reviewed the
Company’s interim financial report of 2019, and submitted it to the Board

for approval;

(3) communicated with the auditor regarding the 2019 annual audit work and
audit plans; and

(4) reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
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control systems, including financial, operational and compliance contrals, HADENERER  NHEERS  SENHBERE
with the senior management and the auditors of the Company. IR ER
Details of attendance at the Audit Committee meetings during year ended 31  HE-Z—NF+-_A=-t+—BFEEZZE8ERNFT
December 2019 are set out below: ﬁ%zﬁ\JZZDT :
2019
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
—E-hE
Audit Committee Members BRESH HEFERE
Mr. Gary Clark Biddle (Chairman) Gary Clark BiddleZt & (£/%) 33
Mr. Cao Yang Feng kS 313
Mr. Liu Chia Yung ARELE 33

The Audit Committee, having reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, was satisfied with the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal audit function.
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Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2019, the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) comprised two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Liu Chia Yung (Chairman) and Mr. Cao Yang Feng, and
one executive Director, namely Mr. Xu Shao Chun.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(1)

68

make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure of remuneration, long-term incentive and performance
management of the Directors and senior management, and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing such
policy and structure, and on the principles and criteria of remuneration
and on long-term incentive modes, implement such policy and review the
same periodically;

as authorized by the Board, draw up proposals for and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of directors, and
salary of individual executive directors and senior management;

review and assess the annual performance of directors and senior
management, and review and approve their remuneration, by reference to
the corporate goals and objectives set up by the Board;

draw up and review proposals for remuneration and make
recommendations to the Board on the adjustment of such remuneration
from time to time, by reference to the Company’s development strategies
and goals approved by the Board and the operating strategies as adjusted
by the Board from time to time;

consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;

review and ensure that the appointment and termination terms for the
directors and senior management are fair;

review and approve compensation arrangements (if any) relating to
any loss or termination of their office or appointment, or dismissal or
removal for misconduct to executive directors and senior management to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved in deciding
his/her own remuneration, and that the remuneration of a non-executive
Director who is a member of the Remuneration Committee shall be
determined by the other members of the Remuneration Committee.
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Please refer to the Terms of Reference and Modus Operandi of the Remuneration — HMZEEMEZAEKINEF2BRE R T LA M £
Committee published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company ~ AfRBEEHEEFEER ARG ZE—FHE -

for further details on the principal roles and functions of the Remuneration

Committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration  HHMZEEREBE_T-—NF+_A=+—RALFEANLR
Committee held two meetings to review the remuneration package of Directors T TR g% BEEFATEESRAREEAS ZHH
and senior management, discuss the grant of awarded shares pursuant to the & &l FwBREAR RO EBTIRLRN  THESS
Company’s share award scheme, and submit proposals to the Board. RXBEZAR

Details of attendance at the Remuneration Committee meetings during year EHE-T—-hE+-_A=+-BEEHFHZE e LE+

ended 31 December 2019 are set out below: BEIIT -
2019
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
—Z-hE
Remuneration Committee Members BRENSE HEZERRY
Mr. Liu Chia Yung (Chairman) ARERE (£F) 22
Mr. Xu Shao Chun BRI ELE 212
Mr. Cao Yang Feng =SS 212
Nomination Committee REEZRE

As at 31 December 2019, the nomination committee of the Company (the R-Z—-AF+-A=+—80 ARFARELEZE2 ([1ELZ
“Nomination Committee”) comprised of one executive Director, namely Mr. Xu B &) HARF—LHNTEERLERE (XF)  RRLE
Shao Chun (Chairman), and two independent non-executive Directors, namely M IFER{TEEE (D854 BRI B LA -

Mr. Cao Yang Feng and Mr. Liu Chia Yung.

“TNEFR SHERSHEEERAT 69



EEERRE

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy ( “Board Diversity Policy” )
since August 2013. The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity in
the Board which will include and make good use of the differences in skills,
experience background and industry experience, gender, knowledge and other
qualities of the members of the Board. These differences will be considered in
determining the optimum composition of the Board and all Board appointments
will be based on merit, having due regard to the overall effective functioning
of the Board as a whole. The Company believes that diversity can strengthen
the performance of the Board, promote effective decision-making and better
corporate governance and monitoring. The Nomination Committee also monitors
the implementation of this policy and reports to the Board on the achievement
of the measurable objectives for achieving diversity under this policy. All Board
appointments are made on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of
diversity of the Board members. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy this year
and was satisfied that the diversity of the Board was optimal.

Nomination Policy

The nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) was adopted by the
Company on 16 March 2012.

The Company embraces high transparency in the Board member selection
process. The Nomination Policy aims to ensure the Board maintains a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. The Nomination Committee has
been delegated to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships. The Board is ultimately responsible for
selection and appointment of new Directors.
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The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(1)

formulate nomination policy for the identification, selection and
nomination of candidates for the role of Directors for the Board’s
consideration and implement and review the Nomination Policy;

formulate, review and update, as appropriate, the diversity policy for the
Board's approval having due regard to the requirements of the Listing
Rules, review and update the objectives that the Board has set for
implementing such policy, and monitor the progress made;

review the structure, size, composition and the balance of skills,
knowledge, experience, length of service and diversity (including as to
gender and ethnicity) of the Board and other factors which may be relevant
to its effectiveness at least annually;

identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors, and to select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships, having due regard to the Board’s diversity
policy and composition profile requirements and ensuring that such
individuals will be considered on merit and against objective criteria and
have the time and ability to contribute to the Board;

make recommendations to the Board with regard to its composition profile
including, where appropriate, preparing a description of the capabilities
required for any particular appointment and on any proposed changes to
the Board to implement the Company’s corporate objectives and strategy;

assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors
including any conflict which a Director may have with the interests of
the Group and review the independent non-executive Directors’ annual
confirmations on their independence; and make disclosure of its review
results in the corporate governance report in the annual report of the
Company; and

review annually the time commitment required from a Director (especially
independent non-executive Director) to perform his or her responsibilities;
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(8) give full consideration and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors and review such plan periodically;

(9) develop the procedures for the performance evaluation of the Board and
the committees of the Board, evaluate the performance of the Nomination
Committee following such procedure and review these terms of reference
to ensure that the Nomination Committee is operating at its maximum
effectiveness;

(10) recommend candidates to the Board to fill vacancies or new positions on
the committees of the Board as necessary or desirable; and

(11) review the feedback in relation to the role and effectiveness of the
committees of the Board arising from the evaluation of the Board and/or
any committees of the Board and make recommendations of any changes.

Please refer to the Terms of Reference and Modus Operandi of the Nomination
Committee published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
for further details on the roles and functions of the Nomination Committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting, at which the Nomination Committee: reviewed the structure,
size, composition and the balance of skills, knowledge, experience, length of
service and diversity of the Board, reviewed the time commitment required from
a Director (especially independent non-executive Director) to perform his or her
responsibilities, and made recommendations to the Board on the nomination
of the non-executive Director. The criteria of selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship adopted by the Nomination Committee are the
qualifications and skills of talent, coupled with goals and development strategy
of the Company.
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Details of attendance at the Nomination Committee meetings during the year HE-ZT—-hEF+-_A=+HBEEREZEee3HE+
ended 31 December 2019 are set out below: BEEIMT

Year 2019
Attendance/
Number of
Meeting
ZE-hE
Nomination Committee Members BENA HEFRRE
Mr. Xu Shao Chun (Chairman) BOEEE (F) n
Mr. Cao Yang Feng ENREE 7
Mr. Liu Chia Yung ARERE n
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Corporate Governance and Strategy Committee

As at 31 December 2019, the corporate governance and strategy committee of
the Company (the “Strategy Committee”) comprised two executive Directors,
namely Mr. Xu Shao Chun (Chairman) and Mr. Lin Bo, and one non-executive
Director, namely Ms. Dong Ming Zhu.

The main responsibilities of the Strategy Committee set out in the rules of the
Board are as follows:

(1) considering and formulating the mid- and long-term strategies of the
Company;

assessing the effects of the implementation of the Company’s strategies;

making recommendations on critical issues prescribed in the Articles of
Association and other issues requiring approval from the Board, including
those related to investments, financings, etc.; and

(4)  performing the duties in relation to the compliance with code provision
D.3.1 of the Code.

During the year under review, the Strategy Committee had reviewed and
performed the corporate governance duties as mentioned in (1)-(4) above.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the reporting period, Mr. Xu Shao Chun assumed the roles of both the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company which deviated from code
provision A.2.1 of the Code that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The Board considers that Mr. Xu Shao Chun, as one of the main founders of
the Group, has abundant knowledge of the IT industry and unique strategic
perspectives. The Board believes that he can lead the Group to formulate
effective strategies and react promptly to market changes. His continual
service in both roles is beneficial to the stable and healthy development of the
Company. However, the Board will review and make appropriate changes when
necessary in order to enhance the level of corporate governance.

Adoption of Code of Conduct Regarding Director’s Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (the “Code of Conduct”) regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers of Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). The
Company, having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, confirms that
the Directors have complied with the Code of Conduct and the Model Code
throughout the accounting period covered by this annual report. The Code
of Conduct and the Model Code are also applicable to other specified senior
management of the Company.
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The details relating to the securities of the Company held by the Directors are
set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests or Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures” of the “Report of
Directors” on pages 43 to 45 of this annual report.

Internal Control and Risk Management

1.

74

Risk Management and Internal Control Governance Framework

The Company has an internal audit function that is used to safeguard the
Group’s establishment and maintenance of an appropriate and effective
system for risk management and internal control, which is a system
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board is responsible for the said system for risk management and
internal control and reviewing its effectiveness. The Board reviews the
Company’s risk management and internal control system annually and
will take necessary and appropriate measures to maintain such system
and control the effect of risk management for the purpose of safeguarding
shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets.

The management has specially established an internal audit department,
which is responsible for supervising and auditing the Company’s risk
management, internal control system and business operation and using
internal audit procedures to conduct independent assessment. At the same
time, business organization and functional operation departments identify,
assess and handle the risks in their charge according to their duties and
carry out risk management procedures and internal control measures
within their respective business and functional operation scope, and the
management reports to the Board.

Risk Management
Risk Management Procedure

The Company has designed its major risk management steps, including
risk identification, risk assessment, risk response and risk control and
reporting:

e Risk identification: The Audit Committee reviews the effect of the
Group’s internal control each year and will urge all the business
units and functional departments to identify the internal and external
risks that may exist in the course of operation;

e Risk assessment: All the business units and functional departments

assess the possibility of occurrence of identified risks and the extent
of their impact and screen out major risks;
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2.2

2.3

e  Risk response: The risk responsibility department properly uses
risk avoidance, reduction, sharing or tolerance to draw up a risk
response scheme according to identified major risks and the Group’s
risk tolerance, so that the Group can reasonably allocate resources
for risk response and reduce its overall risk level to an acceptable
level;

e Risk control and reporting: The Group’s risks are controlled and
reported through comprehensive use of risk pre-warning indicators,
internal audit and regular risk summarization reports.

Internal Control

The Company has designed an internal control system according
to the Group’s business management features and has established
an internal audit department that is responsible for internal control,
conducts risk-oriented internal control evaluation with respect to daily
fund management, financial report management, purchase and asset
management, business operation and collection flow on an annual
basis and to follow up the completion of any rectification discovered in
internal control on a regular basis. The management has reviewed and
assessed the effectiveness of the Group’s system for risk management and
internal control and such review includes financial monitoring, operation
monitoring, compliance control and other major monitoring and risk
management functions.

Response to Major Risks

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group audited and
assessed the Company’s annual risk according to the enterprise’s risk
management framework and finalized measures for major risk response
and control to prevent or appease the possibility of occurrence of any
major risk to the Company.

The Company has steadily developed its operational business in the past
year. Due to the fierce market competition of the industry, the Company’s
market competition in terms of key customers and cloud services may
be intensified and customers may continue to change their preference
and have a higher expectation of cloud services; marketing costs of the
Company’s cloud service are high and the launch of new business is
faced with inherent market risks; at the same time, as the Company’s
brand influence is enhanced, its intellectual property rights are infringed
more frequently and infringers conceal or destroy tort evidence so that
it becomes more difficult for the Company to safeguard its intellectual
property rights and a certain financial loss may be caused to the
Company.

2.2

2.3
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In order to respond to possible operational risks and guarantee the
healthy and sustained development of operational business, the
Company has formed a cloud service development framework based
on mutually synergetic development by optimizing and adjusting its
strategic organization, has allocated a lot of resources to research and
develop new technologies and enhance product value, has encouraged its
employees to conduct constant product innovation and optimize customer
experience, has improved the ecological chain of customer service and
has committed to creating a very competitive cloud platform. In order to
reduce the marketing risk of new business, the Company has established
a major marketing review procedure to strictly review marketing schemes,
reasonably control promotional costs and budget, conduct internal control
over promotional effect and decrease the operational risk caused by
marketing. To strengthen the protection of its intellectual property rights,
the Company has enhanced the entire staff's consciousness of such
protection through legal advocacy and training, has further reinforced the
market monitoring for the protection of intellectual property rights and has
preserved and notarized tort evidence to prevent its intellectual property
rights from being infringed.

Since January 2020, the new strain of Coronavirus (2019-nCoV) has
spread over the Country, National Health Commission of PRC classify
the new strain of virus as second-level infectious diseases and will take
first-level prevention and control measures. In the face of these significant
risks, the company took appropriate and reasonable measures to early
warning, monitor and prevent the risks, including formulating epidemic
prevention and control mechanism, completely cooperating with the
Government, informing and training employees, disinfecting workplaces
and public areas, collecting employees’ information related to the outbreak
epidemic, strictly complying with National and local government’s relevant
instructions and notices.

During the period of the epidemic, the company are continuing doing
its business by the ways of mobile officing, video broadcast training by
invited experts, video/voice conference, online purchase, management
and service platform management and cloud management and services,
continuing to offer efficient and innovative solutions to help more
enterprises to solve management, financial management, personnel
management and industrial transformation problems, rather than being
stagnated in course of the epidemic striking.
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Inside Information and connected transaction

With respect to the procedure and internal control measures for handling
and disclosing inside information, the Company understands its liabilities
under the Listing Rules and the SFO and the major principle that any
inside information must be announced on a timely basis. The Company
has formed comprehensive and proper procedures for internal processing
and announcement of information and comprehensive and proper internal
control measures according to the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information as promulgated by the Securities and Futures Commission, so
as to disclose relevant information to its shareholders and the regulator in
a timely, accurate and appropriate manner.

The Company is committed to strengthening the internal promotion and
education of its internal control relating to connected transactions and
the development of a proper internal control system. The Company has
published the Management Requirements for Regulating the Disclosure
of the Information on the Group’s Connected Transactions and has
established a standard management system for the internal control relating
to connected transactions in a multi-level and comprehensive manner
through pre-transaction reporting, information disclosure, sustained
monitoring of transactions and regular exchange meetings as well as
mutual cooperation of the Company’s departments.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board, after reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal control
system, considered that such internal control system was adequate and
effective, and the Company had complied with the code provisions relating
to internal control under the Code and had not discovered any material
matter that may affect the Group’s financial, operational and compliance
control and risk management functions.

ARRRRMERS
BRREREHARESORENANELEE - A2
ARAERECETRRD R (EHRAEHA) Ak
BOWMEE  WRAAREEHANELARNERR
Bl- ARARTEEGHN [RBHERERS W
K- EXEREENRBERERAMMESHREEAS
ELIRIEE - ARERADGT  BRE - EEBARRNEEHR
BERERRES -

ARBERBARNEEHHER ZNAZEELHE K
BENABEHREORSR  ARREMBT (ARRE
SERMERSEERBENEERER) HXHAER
EERE RPTHERE THXRERFIEE
FREET AREHMEEMRRS  ZER 2@
I REY TEARBNEREERSNAZERES

BE_Z-NF+ZA=+—HILFE  ETRET AR
AEZHEGNER 2%  EFERARRANARE
EHENRRERER  MARRATEETTRDERH
MERERZ RIS - RERITM A e ER B E
T BERE AREENLRERERRENERS
Ig o

TE-NEER SRERBGREERAR 77



i

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERRE

Investor Relations

The Company is committed to maintaining good relations with investors. The
Company has set up a specialized department with staff to attend to investor
relations affairs. The Company actively participates in various investor forums
physically or via conference calls, provides investors with the information
necessary for them to form their views on the Company’s performance and
reports investors’ feedback to management in a timely manner in order to
improve operations and corporate governance of the Company. To promote
transparency, the Company has announced its operating performance to
shareholders and other stakeholders. These disclosures include: (1) publishing
interim and annual reports; (2) making press releases; (3) meeting regularly
with investors; (4) publishing analysts’ reports on the Company; and (5)
conducting market consultations.

The Company firmly believes that increased transparency in the capital market
will improve corporate governance and will be beneficial to the long-term
development of the Company. The Company welcomes suggestions from
investors and shareholders in relation to the development of the Company to the
Company’s investor relations team via email or telephone.

Shareholders’ Rights

The shareholders’ rights are set out in the Articles of Association. Pursuant to
Article 72 of the Articles of Association, general meetings shall be convened on
the written requisition of any two or more members of the Company deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying
the objects of the meetings and signed by the requisitionists, provided that
such requisitionists hold as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of
the total voting rights, may convene the general meeting in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) in convening the meeting as a result
of the failure of the Board to convene the meeting shall be reimbursed to them
by the Company.
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CWRPURATET:}OVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

Any inquiry is welcome to be presented to the Board by shareholders and any
proposal relating to the business, strategy and management of the Company
is welcome to be presented at general meeting for review and discussion.
Shareholders’ inquiries and relevant proposals to the Board can be submitted
in written form to the Company Secretary, and will be dealt with by the Chief
Executive Officer or the chairman of the relevant board committees or other
senior management members.

The contact information of the Company Secretary is as follows:

9/F, York House, The Landmark, 15 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2845 9292

Email: Simonsiu@sfks.com.hk

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company held the AGM on 15
May 2019. All shareholders were given at least 21 days’ (and 20 business days’)
notice for such AGM. The chairman of the Board, executive Directors and the
auditor attended such annual general meeting to communicate with shareholders
and answer questions from shareholders.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all resolutions of the general meetings should
be voted on by poll on the basis that one vote is attached to one share (except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates
purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of
hands), and the poll results would be published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.kingdee.com).

Amendments to the Articles of Association

During the reporting period, no amendment had been made to the Articles of
Association.

External Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the external auditor of the Company
for the year of 2019, and there has been no change in the Company’s auditor
in any of the preceding three years. During the year ended 31 December 2019
PricewaterhouseCoopers provided audit and non-audit services to the Company,
the remuneration paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers was RMB3,400,000
for audit service, RMB3,230,000 for non-audit services which included financial
due diligence services and group strategic consulting service. A resolution for
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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The Board is responsible for ensuring the appropriate preparation of accounts,
and the accuracy, fairness and comprehensiveness of the financial statements of
the Company. The statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities
is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report” section on pages 81 to 88 of
this annual report.

Company Secretary

The Company engages an external service provider to provide company
secretary services, and Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon being the main contact person
of the external service provider, has been appointed as the Company Secretary.
The Company Secretary may contact Ms. Yi Wei, the Board secretary of the
Company pursuant to code provision F.1.1 of the Code.

Improving Corporate Governance

The Company will continue to regularly review its corporate governance
measures and practices to ensure that they are on par with the corporate
governance standards of international corporations and in light of the changing
regulatory requirements and investors’ needs. This will also help in the long
term to continuously develop the Company, and enhance its corporate value.

Appreciation

The Board would like to express its sincere appreciation to its shareholders,
customers, suppliers and bankers for their continued support to the Group. The
Board also wishes to thank the Group’s management and staff for achieving
remarkable progress in the Group’s business and their dedication and
commitment to improving the Group’s management.

On behalf of the Board

KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Chairman

Xu Shao Chun

Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China, 18 March 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Kingdee International Software Group
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 89 to 204, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019;
e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants” Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the I[ESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were

of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

e Recognition of software implementation revenue

e Valuation of the fair value of investment properties

e |mpairment assessment of goodwill
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BAZBE®RE

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HEEHER

EFHhMAENRREHER

Recognition of software implementation revenue

Refer to Note 4.1(b) and Note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue from software implementation
contracts recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
RMB488,476,000 which represented
approximately 15% of total revenue.

Revenue of software implementation
contract is recognised over the period
of the contract by reference to the
progress of work performed and
acknowledged by the customers. The
corresponding implementation costs
are recognised as incurred under cost
of sales.

We focus on this area due to
the significance of software
implementation revenue to the
consolidated financial statements
and the significant judgments and
estimates made by management in
determining the progress of work
performed.

We have performed the following procedures to
address this key audit matter:

Understood, evaluated and tested the key controls
over revenue and cost recognition of software
implementation contracts.

Selected some contracts, on a sample basis, to
perform the following audit procedures:

(i)

(i)

Examined the terms and conditions of the
contracts and checked the accuracy of
contract price and relevant work progress of
software implementation contract recorded by
management;

Agreed the progress of work performed
recorded by management to the position set
out in the progress reports acknowledged by
the customers;

Obtained confirmations from selected
customers in respect of the progress of the
implementation as stipulated in the contracts
and compared such to the progress reports
used by the management in estimating the
progress of work performed; and

Checked the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the progress of work performed
and the revenue recognised based on that.

We found the significant judgments and estimates
applied in determining the progress of work performed
were supported by the evidence we obtained.
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BAZBERE

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the it Matter

REEHER

EFHhMAENRREHER

Valuation of the fair value of investment properties

Refer to Note 4.1(a) and Note 10 to We have performed the following procedures to
address this key audit matter:

the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's investment properties
were measured at fair value of
RMB1,856,200,000 as at 31
December 2019, which represented
approximately 22% of total assets.
There was a fair value gain of
RMB39,994,000 recorded in the
consolidated income statement, which
represented approximately 10% of
profit before income tax for the year.

The Group's investment property
portfolio comprised completed
properties in Mainland China.

Fair value of investment properties
are determined by management
based on the valuations performed
by independent professional valuer
primarily using the income approach.
The relevant key assumptions include
term yields, reversionary yields and
fair market rents.

All the relevant key assumptions are
influenced by the prevailing market
conditions and the characteristics of
the Group’s properties including but
not limited to location and property
Size.

We focus on this area due to the
significance of investment properties
to the consolidated financial
statements and the relevant key
assumptions applied in the valuation
involving significant judgments and
estimates.

(i)

(i)

Assessed the competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the external valuer engaged by
the Group.

Obtained the valuation report of the investment
properties and engaged our in-house valuation
experts to perform the following procedures:

assess the appropriateness of the
valuation method applied; and

assess the reasonableness of the key
assumptions applied in the valuations,
including term yields, reversionary
yields and fair market rents, by
comparing them to our internally
developed benchmarks, which are
based on our recent experience and
market research in the locations and
segments of the Group’s investment
properties.

We found the key assumptions applied in the
valuation were supported by the evidence we

obtained.
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BAZBE®RE

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the it Matter REENEER EFHPMAEHRRENER
Impairment assessment of goodwill 8 (E AT 1

Refer to Note 4.1(d) and Note 9 to the We have performed the following procedures to 2R &M B BBREN T BRMEHITUTEHET - bE
consolidated financial statements. ~address this key audit mater: 4.1(d) B 9 © HE—HRNSTER

As at 31 December 2019, the Group ()  Assessed the appropriateness of the Group's  #E-ZT—-HAE+-A= () BEEENSHEENR

had goodwill of RMB181,245,000
which was arisen from the acquisition
of Shanghai Guanyi Cloud computing
Software Co., Ltd. (“Guanyi”).
Impairment charge of RMB31,187,000
was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Management engaged an independent
valuer to assist them in carrying out
the goodwill impairment assessment.
For the purpose of assessing
impairment, the Group considered
that Guanyi is a separate group of
cash-generated-units (the “Guanyi
CGU") and the goodwill is allocated
to the Guanyi CGU. Management
assessed the impairment of goodwill
by determining the recoverable
amount of the Guanyi CGU which
was assessed based on value-in-
use calculations using cash flow
forecasts based on the financial
budgets approved by management.
The goodwill impairment assessment
involves significant judgements and
estimates which include the adoption
of appropriate valuation method and
the use of key assumptions (mainly
revenue growth rate and earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (“EBITDA") margin
during the forecast period, terminal
growth rate and pre-tax discount rate).

We focus on this area due to that
the goodwill impairment assessment
involves significant judgements and
estimates.

identification of cash-generated-units and
allocation of goodwill based on Group’s
accounting policy and our understanding of
the Group’s business;

(i) Assessed the competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the external valuer engaged by
the Group;

(iii) ~ Obtained the valuation report of goodwill
impairment and engaged our in-house
valuation experts to assess the appropriateness
of valuation method adopted by management
and the reasonableness of pre-tax discount
rate used by management;

(iv)  Challenged and assessed the reasonableness
of the key assumptions used in the assessment
with the involvement of our in-house valuation
experts. For revenue growth rate and EBITDA
margin during the forecast period, we
compared them with the relevant historical data
and the approved financial budgets of Guanyi;
for terminal growth rate, we assessed it with
reference to the long-term expected inflation
rate based on our independent research;

(v)  Performed a retrospective review by comparing
the prior year's cash flow forecasts with the
current year's results to assess the reliability
and historical accuracy of management's
forecasting process;

(vi)  Evaluated the reasonableness of sensitivity
analysis performed by the Group on the key
assumptions to understand the impact of
reasonable changes in assumptions on the
estimated recoverable amount; and

(vii)  Checked the mathematical accuracy of the

calculations of the goodwill impairment

assessment.

We found the significant judgements and estimates
applied in the goodwill impairment assessment were
supported by the evidence we obtained.
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BAZBERE

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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~ INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAZBE®RE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

e  (onclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e  Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e (Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's
report is Tong Yu Keung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 0F FINANCIAL POSITION

B BIRR R

As at 31 December
®+=B=+-H
2019 2018
ZE-hE —T)\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt ABR®FRT ARETT
Assets H"E
Non-current assets FRBEE
Land use rights + 3t {5 F A 6 - 67 545
Property, plant and equipment TEYE - THREHE 7 546,524 490,236
Right-of-use assets FREEE 8 106,869 -
Intangible assets BREE 9 923,323 899,668
Investment properties REMHYE 10 1,856,200 1,816,206
Investments in associates HERE M 282,649 234,403
Deferred income tax assets BIEFEHEE 23 = 49
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AR BETEEEZH:TAERN
TREE 13 428,791 427,456
Trade and other receivables M BR 5 T L R MR 14 22,000
Loans to related parties KRTYBEFER 14 - 464,537
Loans to third parties BYE=FEX 14 12,350 18,940
4,178,706 4,419,040
Current assets mEEE
Inventories & 15 1,357 8,436
Trade and other receivables FEJJ&EE o e EL fh 8 i 2k 14 308,153 286,615
Loans to related parties %Eﬁ@ﬁ% 14 - 256,976
Loans to third parties E=HER 14 230,869 88,720
Contract assets and contract obtaining costs é Al éE&’\ RIES A 5 512,352 494,662
Financial assets at fair valug through profit or loss URnBEE8EZETABEN
TREE 13 596,151 211,430
Pledged bank deposits BEWRFITER 16 128 152
Short-term bank deposits RERITIER 16 687,667 359,674
Cash and cash equivalents BeRHRSEED 16 1,898,770 1,452,848
4,241,447 3,159,513
Total assets HEE 8,420,153 7,578,553
Liabilities &R
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Lease liabilities MEBE 8 20,282 -
Trade and other payables FERT AR B H A FE 3R 24 69,028 -
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFEHARE 23 187,079 179,319
276,389 179,319
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i VAAN —_— m VY - 1 —TT - &\ A
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
a oM BARRE
As at 31 December
R+=RA=+—H
2019 2018
—B-nE -—TN\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR®FR ARETR
Current liabilities nREBAE
Trade and other payables JE IR 0 R E At FE A 3% 24 615,596 580,716
Contract liabilities &RaE 5 996,996 846,755
Borrowings N 22 199,625 301,125
Lease liabilities HERRE 8 21,341 -
Current income tax liabilities SHFSHAaRE 39,085 35,890
Deferred income A 25 125,450 102,081
1,998,093 1,866,567
Total liabilities HER 2,274,482 2,045,886
Net assets PEE 6,145,671 5,532,667
Equity #a
Equity attributable to owners of the Company NFIREEES
Share capital AR 18 80,037 79,585
Share premium WA B 18 2,963,096 2,903,459
Other reserves HAb 19 686,532 565,259
Retained earnings Bl 20 2,257,263 1,917,757
5,986,928 5,466,060
Non-controlling interests FEIEGIMER 158,743 66,607
Total equity HEs 6,145,671 5,532,667

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in  ERAHIHRARESTERM T —GHE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 89 to 204 were approved by the Board of — E8IEZ204EMHBHRECEHEFER _TTF=A TN

Directors on 18 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf. Bt URRESEEE -
Xu Shaochun Lin Bo
3% - ik
Director Director
EZ EZ
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
BHfREER

Year ended 31 December
HEE+-A=1+—HLEE

2019 2018
ZE-hE —T)\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
izt ABR®FRT ARETT
Revenue from contracts with customers HEF 2 FNEREENRA 5,26 3,325,590 2,808,658
Cost of sales SHERAR 2 (652,003) (514,339)
Gross profit EF 2,673,587 2,294,319
Selling and marketing expenses HEREEER 27 (1,644,384) (1,491,302)
Administrative expenses THE A 2 (386,324) (334,342)
Net impairment losses on financial assets and contract assets CREERERKFE 27 (48,416) (47,697)
Research and development costs T REERA 27 (586,827) (405,158)
Fair value gains on investment properties REMMEDABEEZD NS 10 39,994 94,516
Other income and gains — net H A RFIE — 58 28 376,157 342,971
Operating profit wERH 423,787 453,307
Finance income B s 19,768 29,444
Finance costs HSER (14,398) (30,481)
Finance income/(costs) — net BiisUEs /(BR) - 348 30 5,370 (1,037)
Share of losses of associates FEBRERENBENE 1 (33,026) (4,240)
Profit before income tax HERFR&EREFE 396,131 448,030
Income tax expense FriStER 31 (30,333) (38,760)
Profit for the year FERT 365,798 409,270
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FE(BR) BBR :
Owners of the Company RARERFEA 372,580 412,106
Non-controlling interests EiauklLgr s (6,782) (2,836)
365,798 409,270
Earnings per share for profit atiributable to owners FARESRBTARGRTN
of the Company (expressed in RMB cents per share) SRET (LUSRAR%SH)
- Basic — &K 33 11.52 13.19
- Diluted it 33 11.22 12.45
The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with ~ Eil&HHERERERM T —HHE -
the accompanying notes.
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Year ended 31 December
#E+—-_BA=+—HILEE

2019 2018
—2-0F —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR AEETFT
Profit for the year EERT 365,798 409,270
Other comprehensive income: HEiizama :
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: HGrjgte B2 RmmEE
Currency translation differences NI EETE 284 67,029
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax FEEMSSEF - MBRE 284 67,029
Total comprehensive income for the year TEEGEKE 366,082 476,299
Total comprehensive income/(losses) attributable to: #iFSWE (E5i8) BER :
Owners of the Company EN/NS EESEEUN 372,864 479,135
Non-controlling interests FEPE R RS (6,782) (2,836)
366,082 476,299

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Pryvivpiih

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRRERE AL
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capial premium TEServes gamings Total interests equity
BE BREE  HEpEE  SRkE Ai FEREREE  GER
Notes RMB000 RVB 000 RMB000 RVBO000 RMB000 RVB1000 RMB000
B AREBTT ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2018 ~E-\5-B-RER 11599 1681269 694,402 1,548,051 3995341 4739 4,043,060
Profit for the year EEEA - - - 412,106 12,106 (2.83) 409,270
Other comprehensive income Ko Ei
Currency translation diferences NENEEE - - 67029 - 67,029 - 67,029
Total comprehensive income RERER - - 67,029 412106 47913 (2.836) 476,299
Transactions with owners REGREANTS
Employees share option scheme; BTRARESE
- Valug of employes servioes received -BIRBEE - 5290 - - 5,290 - 529
-~ Procegds from shares issued - BB EER %7 9,367 - - 96,354 - 96,354
Share award plan: T teErE -
—Valug of employee services received - H&%IH&WE - §1628 - - 81,628 - §1,628
-~ Transfer shares to the awardegs upon vesting REERERNEVLERBA - (29047) 14937 - (14.110) - (14.110)
-~ Shares purchased for share award plan - RO RE B R D 19 - - (224.405) - (224 405) - (224 405)
Transactions with non-controlling interests B HERNR 5 % - - 13.2% - 13,29 21,704 35,000
Divdend disrbuton BHAE - - S (a0 - (Rdw)
Conversion of convertible bonds EREREER 2 6399 106892 - SR L ER - 1R
Total transactions with owners, HERKTANRBEANSH
recognised directly in equity EiNTANEN 96 12210 (617 (dad0) 991584 AT 1013268
Balance at 31 December 2018 ZE-\EtZRZT-AER 79585 2903459 565250 191775 546,060 66607 5532667
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in  FGHEGEERFERM T O -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EOREREER
Attributable to owners of the Company
FORERREARLN
Non-
Share Share Other ~ Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves garnings Total interests equity
k% RFEE KRG HHE At EEEMER #Hs
Notes RMB'OOD  RMB'0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
i ABWTT ARMTRT ARBTR ARMTR AERTT ABMTR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2019 —E-NE-B-RER 79585 2,903,450 565,250 1,917,757 5,466,060 66,607 5,532,667
Proft for the year EEEA = - - 312,50 372,580 (6,782) 365,798
Other comprehensive income s ER
Currency translation difeences HETEER - - 284 - 284 - 284
Total comprehensive income FEREN - - 200 312,580 372,864 (6,782) 366,082
Transactions with owners HERKEADTS
Employees share option scheme: BIRMRENS
~ Value of employeg Services received -BIREEE - 1,082 - - 1,032 - 1,032
—Proceeds from shares issued -EaRh G 452 53,732 - - 54,184 - 54,184
Share award plan: R REE -
—Value of employee services received -BIR%EER - 86,660 - - 86,660 = 86,660
- Transfer shares to the awardegs upon vesting ~ — BB ERNERLERE A - (81,787) 56,207 - (25,580) - (25,580)
Transactions with non-controlling inferests iﬁiiﬂ“%\J HESNR S 3 - - 64,782 - 64,782 45,218 110,000
Dividend distrbution RAInE - - - (33074  (33,014) - (33,074
Contribution from non-conirolling inferests i \ﬂgﬁﬁ@iﬁ;ﬁ& A - - - - - 53,700 53,700
Total transactions with owners, recognised B &HHALEREEADS RET
directly in equity HRANEH 452 59,637 120,989 (33,074) 148,004 98,918 246,922
Balance at 31 December 2019 ZE-NE+ZA=T-BER 80,037 2,963,096 686,932 2,257,263 5,986,928 158,743 6,145,671

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in  LilAHHEREZ B RFERME—OE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EHBEERER

Year ended 31 December
HEE+-A=1+—HLEE

2019 2018
ZE-hE —T)\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
izt ABR®FR ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities BEZDMASRE
Cash generated from operations excluding net cash outflow in REELNRE (Fe/\BEEEBAT
loans to third parties from the micro-credit business E=HERMERSRL) 34 1,092,951 1,009,904
Net cash outflow in loans to third parties from the micro-credit NEEEXERREZFEROFRSRL
business (95,318) (44,293)
Interest paid ENFE (15,377) (25,946)
Income tax paid BRI PREH (19,329) (34,150)
Net cash inflow from operating activities BEIHELRHS 962,927 905,515
Cash flows from investing activities RETEDNREARE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BETHE  THREE (38,612) (34,505)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment HEREE - THREEHMER 34 6,064 941
Purchases of intangible assets BEEWAE (476,145) (372,217)
Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary WEEFARIMY HEER B (6,200) (2,688)
Pledged bank deposits and short-term bank deposits BRRITERAREERITER
(placed)/withdrawn — net (BEA)/ Wit — %8 (327,969) 738,248
Interest received BUFIE 57,942 43,269
Repayments received from entrusted loans ZE A = 49,600
Purchases of financial assets at fair value through profitor loss BB AL BED 28 ABED
SHEE (3,068,500) (3,865,845)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through BEUAAEBENEEH T ABEMN
profit or loss TREE 2,708,664 3,743,450
Loans provided to related parties RELBE T ER 37(e) (300,000) (987,374)
Repayments of loans from related parties 14 R 7 W B B IE R 37(e) 1,024,031 30,000
Investments in associates BENEIRE (177,763) (128,668)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate EEBE A RIME R 45,702 -
Dividend received from an associate W B B & 1 B AR A " 50 -
Net cash outflow from investing activities REZHMABRE (552,736) (385,789)
Cash flows from financing activities MEETHNRERE
Proceeds from issue of shares as a result of exercise of options P 1T REETIS 3N 18 54,184 96,354
Transactions with non-controlling interests EIRITE| RN S 100,000 35,000
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests FEEHIEERANEREA 41,700 -
Proceeds from borrowings EEGIESEN 34(c) 263,625 328,500
Repayments of borrowings EEER 34(c) (365,125) (258,226)
Principal elements of lease payments MERTHMAS N (22,312) -
Dividend paid HIERE (33,056) (42,358)
Payments for purchase of shares for share award plan BERMNEEFERE 2 RHOZTHIE 18 = (224,405)
Payments for acquisition of non-controlling interests WEFARFEE s
in subsidiaries (6,283) (74,530)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities REZHEE (FRA) $2H& 32,733 (139,665)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Fe&RASFSENSENM 442,924 380,061
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents [EREEFE 2,998 16,112
(Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FOHRERBELEED 16 1,452,848 1,056,675
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ERFERBEEED 16 1,898,770 1,452,848

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.
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NOTE

K

S TO THE CONS

BOTM B BRRME

2.1

96

General information

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands in 1999 as an exempted company
with limited liability. The address of its place of business is Kingdee
Software Park, 2 Keji 12th Road South, Hi-tech Industrial Park, Nanshan
District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC").

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) business, including development
and sales of software products, sales of hardware products, provision
of implementation services, software solution consulting services,
maintenance services, upgrade services and other supporting services;
and cloud services, including enterprise cloud services, finance cloud
services, industry cloud services and other cloud services.

The Company has its primary listing on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) since 15 February 2001.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless
otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the Group consisting of
the Company and its subsidiaries.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and investment properties, which
are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4,

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited
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2.1
(a)

(b)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)
New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the
first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2019:

e |FRS 16 Leases

e Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation — Amendments to
IFRS 9

e |ong-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures — Amendments
to 1AS 28

e Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015 — 2017 Cycle

e Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement — Amendments to IAS
19

e |nterpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments.

The Group had to change its accounting policies as a result of adopting
IFRS 16. The Group elected to adopt the new rules retrospectively but
recognised the cumulative effect of initially applying the new standard
on 1 January 2019. This is disclosed in Note 2.2. Most of the other
amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published
that are not mandatory for 31 December 2019 reporting periods and have
not been early adopted by the Group. These standards are not expected
to have a material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

2.1
(a)

(b)

EEEHRREE (])

BREE (W)
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98

NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ORI RME

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases on the
Group’s financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1 above, the Group has adopted IFRS 16 Leases
retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but has not restated comparatives
for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under the specific transition
provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the opening
consolidated statement of financial position on 1 January 2019. The new
accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2.31.

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation
to leases which had previously been classified as ‘operating leases’” under
the principles of IAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019. The weighted
average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities
on 1 January 2019 was 4.78%.

The Group did not enter into any leases arrangement which previously
classified as finance leases.

Practical expedients applied

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the following
practical expedients permitted by the standard:

e applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics

e relying on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous as
an alternative to performing an impairment review — there were no
onerous contracts as at 1 January 2019

e accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less
than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 as short-term leases

e excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use
asset at the date of initial application, and

e using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract
contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or
contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date the Group relied on its assessment
made applying IAS 17 and Interpretation 4 Defermining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease.

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORI ERRME

2.2
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)
Measurement of lease liabilities

2

2.2

(b)

EESHBREHE (W)
BHBEEE (#)
HRARMTE

2019

—Z-nE

RMB’000

AEBBTT

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018 —E-N\F+ZA=1— HT&E@E’J*“%@%%&E 39,405
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate of at BARA A AABRANEEE XA EETIIR

the date of initial application (1,896)

Less: short-term leases not recognised as a liability (R%) : AERABENEHEE (6,295)

Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019 —E-AF-A—HREENERAR 31,214

Of which are: B

Current lease liabilities nEEERE 15,608

Non-current lease liabilities FERBHEERE 15,606

31,214

Measurement of right-of-use assets

The associated right-of-use assets for property leases were measured
at the amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018.

Adjustments recognised in the statement of financial position
on 1 January 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following items in the
statement of financial position on 1 January 2019:

e right-of-use assets — increased by RMB99,322,000
e land use right — decreased by RMB67,545,000

e |ease liabilities — increased by RMB31,214,000

e frade and other receivables — decreased by RMB432,000
e trade and other payables — increased by RMB131,000.

There was no impact on retained earnings on 1 January 2019.

Lessor accounting

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting for
assets held as lessor under operating leases as a result of the adoption of
IFRS 16.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
2.3.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business
combinations by the Group (refer to Note 2.4).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of financial position respectively.

2.3.2 Associates

100 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence
but not control or joint control. This is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting (see
Note 2.3.3 below), after initially being recognised at cost.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.3 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss,
and the Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment
equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured
long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity-accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for
impairment in accordance with the policy described in Note 2.13.

2.3.4 Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the Group.
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2.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Subsidiaries (continued)

2.3.4 Changes in ownership interests (continued)

2.4

102 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment
because of a loss of control or significant influence, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but joint control or
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred
e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business
e equity interests issued by the Group

e  fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.5

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations (continued)
The excess of the:

e consideration transferred,
e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquired entity

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the
amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value
as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing
could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or
losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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2.7
(a)

(b)

104 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as
the executive directors of the Company that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are presented
in the income statement, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the income statement on a net basis
within “Other income and gains — net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at
fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences
on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

2
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2.7
(c)

2.8

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currency translation (continued)
Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated
at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly offices. Property, plant and equipment is stated
at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged in the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Buildings 15-40 years
— Computer and related equipment 5 years
— (ffice equipment 5 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years

— Leasehold improvements the shorter of the lease term or the useful life

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting period.
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2.9

106 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction,
which is stated at actual construction cost less any impairment loss.
Construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.13).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised within “Other income and
gains — net” in the income statement.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land and buildings,
is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and
that is not occupied by the Group. It also includes properties that are
being constructed or developed for future use as investment properties.
Land held under operating leases are accounted for as investment
properties when the rest of the definition of an investment property is
met. In such cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted for as
if they were finance leases. Investment property is initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each reporting date
by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted,
if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If the information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets
or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded
in the consolidated income statement as part of a valuation gain or loss in
“fair value gains on investment properties”.

If an item of owner-occupied property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is treated in
the same way as a revaluation under IAS 16. Any resulting increase in
the carrying amount of the property is recognised in profit or loss to the
extent that it reverses a previous impairment loss, with any remaining
increase recognised in other comprehensive income and increase directly
to equity in revaluation surplus within equity. Any resulting decrease
in the carrying amount of the property is initially charged in other
comprehensive income against any previously recognised revaluation
surplus, with any remaining decrease charged to profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.10 Land-use rights

Land-use rights represent lease payments paid or payable for the land use
rights less accumulated amortisation and are recognised as an expense in
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease
period of the land use rights.

2.11 Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill
is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.11 Intangible assets (continued)

(b)

108 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Research and development expenditure and web site
development costs

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design and testing of
new and improved products) or expenditures incurred in the development
of a web site related to the application and infrastructure development are
recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

— itis technically feasible to complete the software product so that it
will be available for use;

—  management intends to complete the software product and use or
sell it;

—  there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

— it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate
probable future economic benefits;

— adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the software product are available;
and

— the expenditure attributable to the software product during its
development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised include the software
development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense is not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and
amortised from when the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives not exceeding 5 years.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.11 Intangible assets (continued)
(c) Acquired trademarks, licenses and copyrights

Separately acquired trademarks, licenses and copyrights are shown
at historical cost. Trademarks, licenses and copyrights acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Trademarks, licenses and copyrights have a finite useful life and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of Trademarks, licenses
and copyrights over their estimated useful lives not exceeding 5 years.

(d) Computer software for own use

Computer software licenses for own use are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. These
costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives not exceeding 5
years.

(e) Acquired customer relationship

Customer relationship acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. Customer relationship is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation, amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of customer relationship over 5
years.

2.12 Shares held for share award plan

The consideration paid by the share award plan (Note 21(b)) for
purchasing the Company’s shares from the market, including any directly
attributable incremental cost, is recorded in “Reserves” and the amount is
presented as a deduction from total equity.

2.13 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Financial assets

2.14.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI
or through profit or loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded
in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FvaCl).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business
model for managing those assets changes.

2.14.2 Recognition and derecognition

110 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Financial assets (continued)

2.14.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal
and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in ‘Other gains — net’ together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the
income statement.

e  FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or
loss and presented net within ‘Other gains — net’ in the period in
which it arises.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Financial assets (continued)
2.14.3 Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group's management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in
other gains/(losses) in the income statement as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

2.14.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, see Note 3.1(b)
for further details.

For other financial assets at amortised cost, the loss allowance provision
as at 31 December 2019 was assessed immaterial, please refer to Note
3.1(b) for further details.

2.15 Offsetting financial instruments

112

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and applicable variable selling expenses.

2.17 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for software sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment.

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less, and bank overdrafts, but excludes pledged bank deposits. In the
consolidated statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities.

2.19 Share capital and shares held for employee share scheme

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s share capital
(treasury shares), for example as the result of a share buy-back or
a share-based payment plan, the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted
from equity attributable to the Company’s owners until the shares are
cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effects, if any, is included in
equity attributable to the Company’s owners.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.20 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for products or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.21 Borrowings

114 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
differences between proceeds (net of transaction cost) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

The fair value of the liability portion of a convertible bond is determined
using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond.
This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or maturity of the bond. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the conversion option. This is recognised and
included in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of financial
position when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or
finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity
issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the
liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.
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* NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO SRR MR
2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 HBEGHBFRNE (&)
2.21 Borrowings (continued) 2.21 &% (#)
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has GRIAEEAERERABNEEECEEE AR

an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

2.22 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

2.23 Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprised
convertible bonds that could be converted to share capital at the option
of the holder, and the number of shares to be issued did not vary with
changes in their fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument was
recognised initially at the fair value of a similar liability that does not
have an equity conversion option. The equity component was recognised
initially at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial
instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component, which
was included in shareholders’ equity in other reserves. Any directly
attributable transaction costs were allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound
financial instrument was measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The equity component of a compound financial
instrument was not re-measured subsequent to initial recognition except
0N CONVErsion or expiry.

The liability component of a convertible instrument was classified as
current unless the Group had an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.24 Current and deferred income tax

(a)

(b)

116 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position
date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the statement of financial position
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property that is
measured at fair value is determined assuming the property will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.24 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an agreement in place
that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation to
taxable temporary difference arising from the associate’s undistributed
profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates only
to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in
the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxed assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

2.25 Employee benefits

(a)

Retirement benefits

The Group provides defined contribution retirement plans based on local
laws and regulations. The plans cover full-time employees and provide
for contributions at certain percentage of salary as determined by the
respective local government authorities. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.25 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

118 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by
the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a)
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
(b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the
case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period are discounted to their present value.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-
sharing, based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company's shareholders after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there
is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the statement of financial position
date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.26 Share-based payment
(a) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation
(including share option schemes and share award plans), under which
the entity receives services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (including share option and awarded shares) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant
of the options is recognised as an expense over the vesting period.

For grant of share options, the total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted, which includes any
market performance conditions (for example, the Company’s share price);
but excludes the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and
includes the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to hold shares for a specified period of time).
For grant of award shares, the total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the market price of the Company’s shares at the grant
date. The Group also adopts valuation technique to assess the fair value
of other equity instruments of the Group granted under the share-based
compensation plans as appropriate.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of shares under options and awarded shares that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the
income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services
in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value is
estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during the period
between service commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital and share premium.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ORI RME

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.26 Share-based payment (continued)
(b) Cash-settled share-based payment transactions

(c)

The Group granted certain shares to the eligible employees in 2018, which
are to be settled in cash based on the share price of the Company’s shares
(see Note 21(c) for details). The Group measures the employee services
received and the liability to pay at the grant date at the fair value of the
liability. The fair value of the employee services received is recognised as
an expense over the vesting period. Until the liability is settled, the fair
value of the liability is remeasured at the end of each reporting period and
at the settlement date, with any changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss for the period.

Share-based payment transactions among group entities

The grant by the Company of its equity instruments to the employees of
subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital contribution.
The fair value of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an increase
to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

2.27 Provisions

120 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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* NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORI ERRME

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.28 Revenue recognition

The Group derives revenue separately or in combination, from ERP
business (including sales of software, sales of hardware, provision
of implementation services, software solution consulting services,
maintenance services, upgrade services, and other supporting services)
and cloud services (mainly including enterprise cloud, finance cloud,
industry specific cloud and mobile office cloud).

Softwares mainly include Kingdee EAS, Kingdee K/3 WISE and KIS, which
are sold either through distributors or to the end customers directly.
Cloud services mainly include Kingdee Cloud, Guanyi Cloud and Jingdou
Cloud, which are sold to the end customers directly.

The Group enters into contracts with end customers that can include
combination of standard software, hardware and services which are
accounted for as separate performance obligations because they are
capable of being distinct and generally there is no significant modification
or integration and they are not highly dependent with each other. The
Group only sells standard software to distributors. Both distributors
and end customers are regarded as direct customers of the Group as
distributors can control the software and further resell it or sell combined
with other product and related services to end customers.

The transaction price is the price after discount and is a fixed amount
upon signing the contract. The products cannot be returned unless
significant problems found, which rarely happens. The transaction price
in an arrangement is allocated to each separate performance obligation
based on the relative standalone selling prices of the products or services
being provided to the customer.

The Group recognises revenue when control of the promised products
or service is transferred to the customer. The customer obtains control
of a product or service if it has the ability to direct the use of and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits from that pro duct or service.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.28 Revenue recognition (continued)

(a)

(b)

122 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Sales of standard software and hardware

Standard software is a right to use license because the software has
standalone functionality and the customer can use the software as it is
available at a point in time. Licenses are typically delivered by providing
the customer an activation code with access to download the software.
The Group recognises revenue for such licenses at a point in time when
the customer has received licenses or the activation code and thus has
control over the software and the Group has present right to payment.
In case there is an update of the standard software, end customers or
distributors are required to pay additional consideration to buy upgraded
version.

Sale of hardware and related products are recognised at a point in time
when the products are delivered and the end customers have physical
possession, that is control over the hardware and related products.

Software implementation contracts

Sometimes, customers will request customisation of software based on
customers’ demands and business operations.

Revenue of software implementation contract is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the progress of work performed,
which is established according to the value of efforts put in each task
over total value of efforts of the implementation project with support by
progress reports acknowledged by the customers. The corresponding
implementation costs are recognised as incurred under cost of sales.

Variations in implementation work and incentive payments are included
in transaction price to the extent that would have been agreed with the
customer.

The Group recognises receivables for performance obligations
satisfied over time gradually as the performance obligation is satisfied.
Judgement is required in determining whether a right to consideration is
unconditional and thus qualifies as a receivable. When the performance
obligation satisfied over time while a right to consideration is conditional,
contract asset is recognised. Contract liabilities primarily reflect invoices
due or payments received in advance of revenue recognition. They are
recognised as revenue upon transfer of control to the customers of the
promised license, products and services.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.28 Revenue recognition (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Cloud and other services

Cloud services, software solution consulting, maintenance, upgrading,
training and other supporting services are provided mainly in the form of
fixed-price contracts. Revenue related to these services are recognised
ratably over the service contract period.

Rebates to distributors

The Group offers rebates to distributors based on the respective purchase
volume of distributors. The rebate is not in the form of cash, but as a
coupon to be used on future purchase order, thus it is regarded as a
customer option that provides material right and be treated as a separate
performance obligation. The contract price allocated to the rebates is
recognised as a contract liability which is then transferred to revenue
when the coupons are used or expired after 12 months from grant date.

Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period
between the transfer of the promised software products to the customer
and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of
money.

Incremental costs of obtaining customer contract

Incremental costs of obtaining customer contract primarily consist of sales
commissions are capitalised as an asset. The Group amortises assets
recognised from capitalising costs to obtain a contract on a systematic
basis to profit or loss, consistent with the pattern of revenue recognition
to which the asset relates.

Micro-credit business

The Group’s micro-credit business revenue derives from interest income.
The Group generates interest income from providing micro-credit loans
to borrowers. Interest income is recognised and accrued based on the
effective interest rate agreed with each borrower over the loan period.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.29 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to owners of the Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other
than ordinary shares by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in
ordinary shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of
basic earnings per share to take into account:

e the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

2.30 Interest income

124 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the income statement as realised
gains on financial assets at FVPL within “other gains”.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned from
financial assets that are held for cash management purposes, see Note 30
below. Any other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.31 Leases

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its accounting
policy for leases where the Group is the lessee. The new policy is
described below and the impact of the change in Note 2.2.

Until 31 December 2019, the Group did not lease any property, plant and
equipment where the Group as lessee, had substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership which were classified as finance leases.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership were not transferred to the Group as lessee were classified as
operating leases (Note 36). Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available
for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these
as a single lease component.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.31 Leases (continued)

126 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable

e  variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options
are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the
case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.31 Leases (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing was received

e yses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does not
have recent third party financing, and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country, currency
and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the lease
liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments
based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and
adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received

e any initial direct costs, and

° restoration costs.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.31 Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group
revalues its land and buildings that are presented within property, plant
and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings
held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of office are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Until 31 December 2019,
the Group did not enter any low-value assets lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial
direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over
the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the statement of financial position based on their
nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting
for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

2.32 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and the Group
will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included
in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

2.33 Dividend distribution

128 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Dividends distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or board of directors, where appropriate.
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(a)

Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The directors
review and agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised as follows:

Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

The functional currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries
is RMB. The majority of the revenues of the Group are derived from
operations in the PRC.

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss resulting from changes in foreign
currency exchange rates. Fluctuations in exchange rates between RMB
and other currencies in which the Group conducts business may affect
its financial position and results of operations. The foreign exchange
risk facing the Group mainly comes from movements in the US dollars
(“USD”)/RMB and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”)/RMB exchange rates.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

At 31 December 2019, if the RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against the HKD with all other variables held constant, profit before tax
for the year would have been higher/lower by RMB6,279,000 (2018:
RMB4,723,000), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of HKD denominated cash at bank and in hand.

At 31 December 2019, if the RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against the USD with all other variables held constant, profit before tax
for the year would have been higher/lower by RMB18,332,000 (2018:
RMB7,058,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of USD denominated borrowing and cash at
bank and in hand.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
to its borrowings, details of which have been disclosed in note 22.
Borrowings carried at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk whereas those carried at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest-rate risk.
The Group currently does not use any interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk. However, the Group will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
As at 31 December 2019, borrowings of the Group which were bearing
at floating rates amounted to approximately RMB85,625,000 (2018: nil).
As at 31 December 2019, if the interest rates had been 50 basis point
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the years ended 31 December 2019 would has been
approximately RMB385,000 (2018: nil) lower/higher.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash flows
of debt instruments carried at amortised cost, at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL) and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well
as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables.

(i)  Risk management

130 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

The management manages the credit risk of cash and cash equivalents,
pledged and short-term bank deposits and wealth management products
(classified as financial assets at FVPL) by transacting with state-owned
financial institutions and reputable commercial banks which are all high-
credit-quality financial institutions in the PRC and Hong Kong.

In relation to trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has two
kinds of distribution channels, one is sales to distributors and the other is
sales to end customers.

For distributors, the Group has assessed the credit quality of the
distributors, taking into account their financial position, past experience
and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The
compliance with credit limits by distributors is regularly monitored by
management.

3.1
(a)
(it

(b)

Annual Report 2019
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3.1
(b)

(i)

Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Risk management (continued)

For sales to end customers, the Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk in trade receivables since the balance of trade receivables is
composed of numerous individual small items and the exposure spreads
over a large number of customers.

The Group’s investments in debt instruments, including loans to third
parties and related parties are considered to be low risk investments. The
credit ratings of the investments are monitored for credit deterioration.

For other receivables, management makes periodic collective assessment
as well as individual assessment on the recoverability of the receivables
based on historical settlement record and past experience. The directors
of the Company believe that there is no material credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding balances of other receivables.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has four types of financial assets that are subject to the
expected credit loss model:

e Trade receivables

e Contract assets

e Loans to third parties, and

e (Qther financial assets at amortised cost

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables and contract assets.

For contract assets, the loss allowance provision for contract assets as at
31 December 2019 was assessed immaterial.

For trade receivables, it is grouped by aging to measure the expected
loss rates, and the expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles
of sales over a period of 36 months before 31 December 2019 and the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2019 was determined as follows for trade receivables:

RERRER (&)

HERMER (W)

SR ()

SHAERE ()

BREFTIAAEE (8)

Bl BEZT-NET-AST-AR=E-AET
“AET-R - BUERERAEE - ARET

Over
31 December 2018 —E-N\f+=-A=+—-H 0-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years Total
—FlR —E@E MEZE ZENE &
Expected loss rate HHERELE 4.72% 42.99% 87.36% 100.00% N/A
TEA
Gross carrying amount IR — AR
(RMB'000) (AREFT) 125,482 12,744 7,467 110,673 256,366
Loss allowance (RMB'000) BREE (ARETT) 5,924 5,479 6,523 110,673 128,599
Over
31 December 2019 —Z-7Af¥+=B=+—-H 0-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years Total
—FlA —E@E MEZE ZENE &t
Expected loss rate BHERBAX 7.00% 61.00% 88.00% 100.00% N/A
TEA
Gross carrying amount IRE %R — RN
(RMB'000) (ANREFTT) 119,758 14177 8,740 117,230 259,905
Loss allowance (RMB'000) BEBE (ARBTL) 8,383 8,648 7,691 117,230 141,952
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" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORI ERRME

Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)
The loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets as at 31
December reconcile to the opening loss allowances as follows:

3

3.1
(b)
(it

MERRER (W)

MHERRER ()

ERRR (1))

cREERE (B)

BRI RE REE (&)
FEEREREFINEREERT A=+ —BNER
BABRBREREMYERRE  AEmT

Contract assets Trade receivables
AREE A
2019 2018 2019 2018
Z-h ZE-N —Z-n ZE-N
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000
ARETT ARETT  ARBTRT  ARET:
Opening loss allowance at 1 January —R—REMEEEE - - 128,599 17412
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss AEEHABENERBELRE

during the year o - - 50,009 41,800
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible REE SRR U ol f P E - - (36,656) (30,613)
Closing loss allowance at 31 December +ZRZ+—-AEFRE EERH - - 141,952 128,599

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor
to engage in a repayment plan with the group, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period of greater than 3 years past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets are presented
as net impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the same line item.

Loans to third parties

For loans to third parties, in order to minimise the credit risk, the Group
has established policies and systems for monitoring and control of credit
risk. The management has delegated different divisions responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
processes to ensure that follow up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, management reviews the recoverable amounts of loan
and interest collectively at each reporting date to ensure that adequate
allowance for impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

BASETAERM A RE MR - AR E
WEHAE REERE - RABEREEIALHRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO R M
3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 MEBERREE (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MBERRER (F)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EEERRE (]
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) (i) SMEERNE(B)
Other financial assets at amortised cost BESK AT EN AN HEE
Other financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank HteREEREReRASEEY ERNBTHE
deposits, short-term bank deposits, other receivables and loans to related P RBHRTER - HMBNEIE  ZEEFURRE
parties, which are also subject to the impairment assessment requirements S ER  REEREBEREENEINREER  Z
of IFRS 9. The impairment loss was assessed immaterial. HOBROAERABRAEEANTEES.
(c¢) Liquidity risk (c) mENMERPR
The Group exercises prudent liquidity risk management by reviewing AEEENETEEHBHBSHE  LILRTERD
forecast cash balances on a quarterly basis to maintain sufficient cash MBESEEER  ARTHANRSEREUAANE
levels and the availability of an adequate amount of committed credit ERENRREARSTNESTAREBESHEM
facilities to ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to meet any EFEAMINANERANREH R - AEETEENRBIE
unexpected and material cash requirements in the course of ordinary BB o
business. The Group has no significant exposure to liquidity risk.
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities that will be TRITASERARNS R A EZRBEBNE HA
settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the Al RIEHEERES N B ANFIABRETH -
remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual TRABBNSEAGNMERRAEERE - B8
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual RAFEIK B ETZE AR BHNEREERE
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their IRE(E o
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1year and2years and 5years Over5 years
—ELURA —EmF MELF AFEHE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARKFT AR%TT
At 31 December 2019 A _E-NE+-A=1+—H
Borrowings (including interests) EF (ZEMFE) 206,713 = = =
Trade and other payables (excluding VAT and ~ FEFTIEZ R E e 5 (75
other tax payable and salary and staff RERREMHSE - BN
welfare payables) FeMETRER) 325,308 - 69,028 =
Lease liabilities HEBRRE 24,856 13,391 1,215 1,999
556,877 13,391 16,243 1,999
At 31 December 2018 RIE-N\E+ZHA=+—-H
Borrowings (including interests) B (ZEMFL) 307,607 - - -
Trade and other payables (excluding VAT and ~ FEFTIEZ % E M E 5 (75
other tax payable and salary and staff EERLEMHS B
welfare payables) HeMEIEF) 307,616 - - -
615,223 - - -
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* NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORI ERRME

3 Financial risk management (continued)
Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for owners and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to owners, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the
basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including “current
and non-current borrowings” as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position plus net debt.

3 MERREE (H)
ReRkeEd
TEENESEERE
BRI G EEM B ELER S ARG
REMNEREBUREE KA -

RRBEEESEES AR
* FIBHER

BTRFIBRESER  ARETREHEIN TR
ROBFEE  ARREEER  BTHRIHEEE
ARIEETR

HERNEMAR K AREFRERABBELRERE
BA - It RIRRERFERABEARTE - EHFE
RBER (BEAHMBRARMIN RBRERD
fE) BERENRAEEEY - REAXR [ (0
AGETBRRRA)) MERFE -

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were as follows: EZZ-NERZZE-\F+A=1+—0 A5EHK
ARBEEENT

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Total borrowings (Note 22) @I (F1322) 199,625 301125

Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 16) /Jjé CRe RSB (M:16) (1,898,770) (1,452,848)

Net cash Re28 (1,699,145) (1,151,723)

Total equity HiEga 6,145,671 5,532,667

Total capital HEx 4,446,526 4,380,944

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the Group is in net cash position. In~ HEZZT-—N\F+ZA=+—HBNZZ-AF+ZA=1—

the opinion of the directors, the Group’s capital risk is low.

B KRERNFRSMRE - EZMRALKENERAARE
&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Y
3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 MERREE ()
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 OnEEHEH

The table below analyses the Group's financial instruments carried at fair TREBETE AR BENGERMTMERZNEA

value as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 by level of the inputs to valuation BER  PMAEER=_Z-NE+=-A=+—HEA

techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into NEEARNERIA ELHAKRBAREBELS
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows: BRIT=E:

-~ Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or - HRAEEXEBEEEEMSNME CREHE)
liabilities (level 1). (B1E) -

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are - BRIFIEMEENOREN ZEENMAER
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) BEMEMBA - TAEE AfIMER) KfE
or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). & (AUREEB) ($2E) -

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable - EEMBGEVFEEBEIHEMGERMBA (B
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). FAEREA) (F3E) -

At 31 December 2019 R-E-hE+ZB=+—H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E1E E2E 3B 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTRE AR%TR ARBTRT AER%TR
Financial assets at fair value through profit URnBETEEEZETA
or loss BarepiE
— Investments designated at fair value through ~ — SEE AU AL BETEEEE
profit or loss B ABRNRENSREE 59,139 - 965,803 1,024,942
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\F+ZHA=+—H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E Y= ER] Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBFT ARBTT ARETR
Financial assets at fair value through profit UanBETEEEZEA
or loss BafemiE
— Investments designated at fair value through ~ — fEE AU AL BETEEEE
profit or loss I ABENRENSREE 66,480 - 572,406 638,886

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value

(mA) -

FIAFELUE -

an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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* NOTES TO THE CONSOLID

ORI ERRME

Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value estimation (continued)

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

—  Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments. =

—  Discounted cash flow analysis.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the

year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

3 MERREE (H)

3.3 2feAEfH ()
ANBESRTANSEHERITEHE

- BBRRSERH -

REHTANTEREXARFHRE -

TREME_Z-NFN_Z-\F+-A=+—H
FFEFESRITANED -

Financial assets at

fair value through

profit or loss

BAREEHER

HEWH AR

eRMEE

RMB’000

AR%TR

At 1 January 2019 R-Z—-n&—HA—H 972,406
Additions =) 3,068,500
Disposals RE (2,708,664)
Gains recognised in profit or loss TEREEERNFE 33,561
At 31 December 2019 R-E-hE+=-A=+—H 965,803

Changes in unrealised gains for the year included in profit or loss BRETERNEERERIE

at the end of the year i 3,048

Financial assets at

fair value through

profit or loss

WARBEFEER

HEH ABRN

RMB'000

ARBTT

At 1 January 2018 R_Z—)\F—HA—H 453,157

Additions 0 3,816,244

Disposals RE (3,708,947)

Gains recognised in profit or loss TERREERNFIG 11,952

At 31 December 2018 R_E—N\FE+ZA=+—H 572,406
Changes in unrealised gains for the year included in profit or loss BRETPHEZANEEATENG

at the end of the year B EE 11,952

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

FREIE  FEEFE AL ESH -
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRME
3 Financial risk management (continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3

The following table summarises the quantitative information about the
significant unobservable inputs used in the major level 3 fair value

MERREE (§)
ARAERET ()

TREETHEIENEMMOAABEAETERANER
WA EENBANTERES

measurements.
Range of inputs
Fair value at (probability-weighted average)
BAEEE
RERfifREE (BEMEEY)
Relationship of unobservable
Description 31 Dec 2019 31Dec 2018 Un-observable inputs 2019 2018 inputs to fair value
k- Sy R:3 -0 ARBEERFTHRBAED
WE +ZA=+—-H +ZA=1T-8 FUBRMBAE —2-AF —T-\% BE
RIMB’000 RMB'000
AERTRE  AR¥TET
Preferred shares 254,491 253,456 Business enterprise value/ 6.0x 6.6 The higher the multiple, the higher
Sales multiple the fair value
ExR 254,491 w346 EBEEEE/ HERREY 6.0x 66 EEBE  ArEEES
Lack of liquidity discount 25% 25%  The higher the risk-free rate, the
lower the fair value
B MEMARE 25% %% HREES DALEEWE
Wealth management products 687,312 288,347 Expected annual return rate 2.36%-5%  2.92%-5%  The higher the expected annual return
rate, the higher the fair value
EEEEER 687,312 8347 BEF I YiEE 2.36%5%  29%5% EHRELUEEYE  Lh
BEES
4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments 4  RBEHEHRAE

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 41

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)
Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties is determined by using valuation
technique. Details of the judgments and assumptions have been disclosed
in Note 10.

Recognition of software implementation revenue

Revenue from software implementation contract is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the progress of work performed and
acknowledged by the customers. For the year ended 31 December 2019,
revenue of RMB488,476,000 is generated from software implementation
contracts (2018: RMB482,209,000). The Group has to estimate the
progress of work performed. If the progress of work performed were to
differ by 10% from management’s estimates (for example, 33% instead of
30%), the amount of revenue recognised in 2019 would have been higher/
lower by approximately RMB48,848,000 (2018: RMB48,221,000).

Estimated useful lives of capitalised development costs

The useful lives of capitalised development costs are estimated based on
historical experience, which include actual useful lives of similar assets
and changes in technology. If the estimated useful lives of capitalised
development costs were to shorter or longer by 10% from management’s
estimates, the amortisation charge for 2019 would have been higher
by approximately RMB35,959,000 (2018 RMB31,566,000) or lower by
approximately RMB31,096,000 (2018: RMB25,827,000).

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.11. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units (“CGU") have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. Details of the impairment
test are set out in Note 9.

4.1
(a)

(b)

(d)

mEBEs G RAE (&)
WEEH S RER ()
RRMEMEOLAAE

REUMENARBEERHERMERT  FENHEH
FRERE M FE10 -

LALE-3 L PN oL

Y RRRAEARMANLBIEERNEEREE
B2 - R-_E-NEF+-A=t—BZKADHLEER
T ARH488,476,0007C (ZZ— )\ : ARK482,209,000
) EEFEMGENIEZIAE - NEEHNER
HREEEEENMEFHBI0%B0EE (K 33%m
TRN%)  AEFRAERSEBEN (FHD) HA
FR#48,848,0007C (ZZ—/)\F : AR¥E48221007T) °

Rt AFLAREEHERFR

ERCHABERANERFRBEELECRET - 81
REEEMNERTEAFTRERTOEL - BEXERE
BRANESATEAFHEERENEAERRER
0% BI—Z—AFFABENERSETsROAR
135,959,000t (ZZ—/\F : AR¥31566,00070) skiK
49 AR 131,006,000 (ZZ—\F = AR¥25,827,000
) °
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4.1
(e)

4.2
(a)

(b)
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Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)
Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions. Significant
judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group were each entitled to a preferential
enterprise income tax rate for a specified period subject to certain
conditions. Management generally applies the applicable preferential tax
rate to calculate current income tax and deferred income tax (Note 31) on
the assumption that the subsidiaries will continue to meet the conditions
and qualify for the preferential treatment as evidenced by past records.
The consequence of any failure to meet the conditions and any change
in the applicable tax rate is adjusted in the year when the information
becomes known.

Critical judgment in applying the entity’s accounting policies
Capitalisation of development costs incurred on upgrading

of existing software products and developing new software
products

Costs incurred in upgrading existing software products (primarily relating
to upgrade of the existing features or additions of new features/modules)
and developing new software products are capitalised as intangible
assets when recognition criteria as detailed in Note 2.11(b) are fulfilled.
Management has applied its professional judgement in determining
whether these software products could generate probable future economic
benefits to the Group based on the historical experience of the existing
products and the prospects of the markets. Any severe change in market
performance or technology advancement will have an impact on the
development costs capitalised.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB63,334,000(2018: RMB59,846,000)
had not been recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of RMB633,345,000 (2018: RMB598,459,000)
of certain subsidiaries in the PRC as these earnings are expected to be
retained by the PRC subsidiaries for reinvestment purposes and would
not be remitted to their overseas holding companies in the foreseeable
future based on management’s estimation on the Group’s overseas funding
requirements.

L STATEMENTS
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Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued)

Critical judgment in applying the entity’s accounting policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in the tables
in Note 3.1(b).

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as executive
directors of the Company. The executive directors review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The executive directors consider the business from product perspective.

The Group has identified the following operating segments:

ERP business — Including sales of software and hardware products,
provision of software implementation services,
software solution consulting, maintenance, upgrade
and other supporting services

Cloud services business - Including enterprise cloud services, finance cloud
services, industry cloud services and other cloud
Services

Investment properties
operating business

—Operation of investment properties

The chief operating decision-maker assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on the profit for the year of each segment.
Substantially all of the businesses of the Group are carried out in the
PRC.
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5

Segment information (continued)

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2019 is as

follows:

5 SBRA ()

HEZ-NFT-_A=T—RLFENBEHLT :

Investment
properties
Cloud services operating The Group
ERP business business business Total
LEER REY
THHEEY ZSBRYTEE DEEEEE £@Ea
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREBTRT ARETRH
Revenue (from external customers) WA (REIIMBEF) 2,011,995 1,313,595 - 3,325,590
— Products transferred at a point in time -EREX-BHYEE 945,631 - - 945,631
— Services transferred over time - RBEXRRHES 1,066,364 1,313,595 - 2,379,959
Operating profit/(loss) #ERH /(ER) 505,615 (195,065) 113,237 423,787
Finance income BUp e 19,080 688 - 19,768
Finance costs BB A (13,393) (1,005) - (14,398)
Finance income/(costs) - net MEBA /(BF)- 28 5,687 (317) - 5,370
Share of losses of associates FEMERENBERNE (33,026) - - (33,026)
Profit/(loss) before income tax MEmERIAE (H8) 478,276 (195,382) 113,237 396,131
Income tax (expense)/credit s (BR),/ wE (42,414) 23,405 (11,324) (30,333)
Segment results DHRER 435,862 (171,977) 101,913 365,798
Segment assets AHEE 5,853,028 710,925 1,856,200 8,420,153
Segment liabilities SHER 1,394,060 754,542 125,880 2,274,482
Investments in associates HBEAAEDERE 282,649 = = 282,649
Additions to non-current assets (other than g EE (T EE
financial instruments and deferred income TRITEKELERIE
fax assets) BiE) 282,177 336,431 - 618,608
Depreciation and amortisation e N EH 255,239 229,806 - 485,045
Impairment charge of goodwill EERRERTIR 31,187 - - 31,187
Net impairment losses on financial assets and £ BEEMN A REEH
contract assets FREBRK 47,092 1,324 - 48,416
Fair value gains on investment properties REEMEN LA BENG = = 39,994 39,994
Share-based payments PAB D B EREH S 103,306 642 - 103,948
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5 Segment information (continued)
The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2018 is as BHEZ

follows:

5 ﬁﬁﬁlﬂ(ﬂ)

—N\F+-A=

T-BLEFELHERDT :

Investment
properties
Cloud services operating The Group
ERP business business business Total
®EN
TEER ES G
EEHERR ERBES ESi SEAE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AR®TT ARET:R
Revenue (from external customers) WA (REINBEE) 1,959,402 849,256 - 2,808,658
— Products transferred at a point in time - EntE-HEEEY 936,620 - - 936,620
— Services transferred over time - RBEERRREY 1,022,782 849,256 - 1,872,038
Operating profit/(loss) EEEY(BR) 435,052 (149,202) 167,457 453,307
Finance income B 28,081 1,363 - 29,444
Finance costs BT RKR (30,179) (302) - (30,481)
Finance costs/(income) - net HERE (GA)- B8 (2,098) 1,061 - (1,037)
Share of losses of associates FEBRERENBERNTE (4,240) - - (4,240)
Profit/(loss) before income tax HKFREREAE (BiE) 428,714 (148,141) 167,457 448,030
Income tax (expense)/credit 8% (BR),/ hE (45,887) 23,873 (16,746) (38,760)
Segment results DEER 382,827 (124,268) 150,711 409,270
Segment assets RHEE 5,473,094 289,253 1,816,206 7,578,553
Segment liabilities PEALE 1,717,526 208,392 119,968 2,045,886
Investments in associates HEEg A2 DERE 234,403 - - 234,403
Additions to non-current assets (other than FEERBEE (TRE
financial instruments and deferred income tax assets) &R LA RIELEFKIBEE) 365,832 50,828 - 416,660
Depreciation and amortisation WE R 324,744 29,143 - 353,887
Net impairment losses on financial assets and SREENEREEMN
contract assets FRERL 47,255 442 - 47,697
Fair value gains on investment properties REUMENDABENSG - - 94,516 94,516
Share-based payments VAR BERS I 90,474 1,028 - 91,502
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5 Segment information (continued)

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands while the Group
mainly operates its business in the PRC. Revenue from external
customers from the PRC and other locations is RMB3,294,756,000 (2018:
RMB2,787,912,000) and RMB30,834,000 (2018: RMB20,746,000),
respectively, for the year ended 31 December 2019.

There was no single customer that contributed to over 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

5 SBREM &)
AREGENASHSARATREHETE - HE=
T-NFL-A=T-ALFE RETEHEAN
BEFRHELENBRARD AR 294,756,000 (=
T—N\F: AR®2,787,9120007) » 3K B &M 95N
BEPBABARE084000T (ZB—NF: AR¥
20,746,0007T) °

(a) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers (a) HEFARAMMEEMAR

BE_Z-NFN_Z-N\F+-_A=1t—HILFEL
BAEE-FFPYUEBENKARREBI0% -

At 31 December

W+=-B=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETF T

Current contract assets relating to software BEERARABNRSEREE
implementation contracts 451,685 494,662
Costs for obtaining contracts (i) BREEMRA() 60,667 -
Loss allowance BRER - -
Total BERBE 512,352 494 662
Contract liabilities — ERP business AREE - CEEREEFEEK 454,203 548,738
Contract liabilities — Cloud services business ERBE -ERBES 542,793 298,017
Total BREEERREE 996,996 846,755
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5 Segment information (continued)

(a) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers
(continued)

(i) Costs for obtaining contracts

Management expects the incremental costs, primarily sale commissions
paid/payable, as a result of obtaining the cloud services contracts
are recoverable. The Group capitalised these incremental costs and
amortised them in “Sales promotion” expenses when the related revenue
is recognised. There was no impairment loss in relation to the costs
capitalised.

(ii) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the
current reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

(ii)

SERM (#)
HEFEAAMHRENAR (K)

SRARGHEF

EEER dREBSERBARAMELNEENA
(FEREN /ENNHEMRS) RAKEH - ZEH
RELBERAEAL  YEMBABRAL  HEE

HARMEHE BA - BEXMLOKARL  RERER
4.
HAWARTRERBHKA

TRETENRSHANDEINRATREEARAR
HRRNEE

Year ended 31 December

#F+-A=1+—-H
2019 2018
ZB-0¥F —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETFTT
ERP business PEERERAZER 548,738 367,338
Cloud services business ERBEES 251,698 186,406
800,436 553,744

(iii) Unsatisfied long-term cloud services contracts

The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligations resulting
from long-term fixed-price cloud services contracts.

(i) KETHRMERHSH

TRERTRAEEEBROEREESRDRETNED
& -

At 31 December

®+=BR=+-H
2019 2018
—Z-n%¥ —T-N\E
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

Aggregate amount of the transaction price allocatedto R+ =B =+—HAEHE PO 2 BRET
long-term cloud services contracts that are partially HRBEREERANBRFER

or fully unsatisfied as at 31 December 182,274 85,543
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 SEEM (&)
(a) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers () HEFAREMHEENAE (H)
(continued)
(iii) Unsatisfied long-term cloud services contracts (continued) (i) KRETHRMERBEA (F)
Management expects that approximately 42% of the transaction price ERERT  RZE-NE+-RA=+—H2EEXE
allocated to the unsatisfied contracts as of 31 December 2019 will be TERKR ZERE%EE T —ERE HRERBA
recognised as revenue during the next reporting period (RMB76,900,000). (AR™76,900,0007) + H £258% (A R 1#105,374,0007T )
The remaining approximately 58% (RMB105,374,000) will be recognised BRZZEZ—FHR - LIKEBESE TR EOROT
in the 2021 financial year. The amount disclosed above does not include HHE-
variable consideration which is constrained.
All other cloud services and ERP business contracts are for periods of FAEEMERBEMCEEREEFEEBERNERA
one year or less or are billed based on time incurred. As permitted under —FHE—FUAR - SR BEAERETMRE o R [ ERE
IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is BREER] ERMNER - EENABNERNX S
not disclosed. BRRARHEE -
6 Land use rights 6 THERE
The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating lease AEEEHE R TP ARNERERNEEHEE
payments and their net book value are analysed as follows: o REREFESTROT
2019 2018
—E-h& —T-N\E
RMB’000 RMB’000
N AREFT
At 1 January ®—A—H - 69,405
Amortisation charge #HBR = (1,860)
At 31 December ®»+=-A=+—-8H - 67,545

146 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

The land use rights are located in the PRC and held on leases of between
32 to 43 years, and for self-use.

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 16 (Note 2.2), land use rights have
been reclassified to right-of-use assets since 1 January 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO SRR MR
7 Property, plant and equipment T THE IBRRE
Computer
and related Office Motor ~ Leasehold  Construction
Buildings ~ equipment  equipment vehicles improvements  in process Total
2ER i
BF  HERE 0 BORE E§  WERE  mRIE ait
RMBO00 RMBO00 RMB000 RMBO00 RMB000 RMB000 RMBO00
ARETTL  ARETT ARETT  ARETR  AREfR  ARETR  ARETR
At1 January 2018 R=%-)\5-B-A
Cost A 534,507 105,067 25,5% 21935 48967 - 142092
Accumulated depreciation ZihE (107.141) (59,590) (16672) (15,344) (33,13) - (231879)
Net book amount REBE 47,366 b 894 12,591 15,88 - 510213
Year ended HEZS-0\%
31 December 2018 TZA=T-ALEE
Opening nst book amount BNEEFAE 427,366 A 8,924 12591 19,85 - 510213
Additions R 99 17364 2501 2766 6317 - 29,940
Disposdls BE () (1559) (543 (1) - - 026)
Depreciation charge e (2403) (11,09) (2.064) (.17 (6,889) - (47,691)
Closing net ook amount BREESE 404318 49691 §618 1212 15,283 - 490236
At 31 December 2018 RIE-N\E+ZA=1-A
Cost A 527,268 102,35 24 567 29564 55,304 - 739,09
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (122970) (52,664) (15,769) (17439) (40021) - (248.862)
Net hook amount FERE 404318 49,691 8,618 12,126 15,263 - 490236
Year ended HEZZ-AE
31 December 2019 TZR=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 404,318 49,691 8,818 12,126 15,283 - 490,236
Additions R 157 19,260 2,909 1,614 8,107 69,028 101,275
Disposals RE = (4,637) (302) (506) (3,410) - (8,855)
Depreialion chrge i (14200)  (11631) (488 (3683 (4,050) -3
Closing net book amount HRIEERE 390,195 52,683 8,937 9,751 15,930 69,028 546,524
At 31 December 2019 RZS-NE+ZA=1-A
Cost i 524,848 113,510 26,195 29,451 60,001 69,028 823,033
Accumulted depreciation ZiiE (134653 (60827) (17288  (19700)  (4,07) - (a09)
Net book amount FERE 390,195 52,683 8,937 9,751 15,930 69,028 546,524
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(a)
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of approximately RMB8,900,000 (2018: RMB13,915,000),
RMB6,031,000 (2018: RMB5,994,000) and RMB21,201,000 (2018:
RMB27,782,000) has been charged to selling and marketing expenses,
development costs and administrative expenses, respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, none of the property, plant and equipment was
used as security for bank borrowings (2018: nil).

Leases
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating
to leases:

7 FBE-  IRRKRE (8)

AR#89000007T (ZZ — A5 : AR#13915,0007T)
MTEERFAHERERER - AR¥6,031,0007T
(ZZ—N\F - AR5,99400070) BT EERTARR
REBRAARARE,201000 (ZF—N\F: AR
#§27,782,0007T) VE BB ATTHER -

BE"Z-NFT-A=t-RLEUIDE  ITHR
RBERERORTER (ZT—N\F: §) -

8 #HR
KU EREARN AR BEREEANBESN

(a) MHERARAERHEE
BHRRRER T ERERRN TSR

1 January
2019 2019*
—Z-hE
—E-hE —A—H*
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR%TR

Right-of-use assets ERERE
Land use rights (i) T () 65,685 67,545
Buildings ERE 41,184 31,777
106,869 99,322

Lease liabilities HEAR

Current Vi) 21,341 15,608
Non-current IETRED 20,282 15,606
41,623 31,214

* For adjustments recognised on adoption of IFRS16 on 1 January, please
refer to Note 2.2.

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2019 financial year were
RMB32,158,000.

(i)  The Group has land lease arrangement with mainland China
government. The land use rights are located in the PRC and held on
leases of between 32 to 43 years, and for self-use.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Leases (continued) 8§ R (@&
Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss (h) HEREARIHLSE
The income statement shows the following amounts relating to leases: BRRIITH T eBEHERMHE
2019
—E-0E
RMB’000
AERBTT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ERRERENTERMA
Land use rights 14 A E 1,860
Buildings EE 22,751
24,611
Interest expense (included in finance cost) FEBA GIAMBER) 3,019
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in cost of sales and BAEARBHEEYN IMEEEEEMEHREN
administrative expenses) BB GTAHENALERER) 16,971
The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was RMB38,114,000. ZE-NFARERANESREAMAARE
38,114,0007T
The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for (c) FEENEETDREASHER
The Group leases various offices. Rental contracts are typically made for AEELRZERLE -HEARBERETHR 2
fixed periods of 2 months to 8 years, but may have extension options as ERAZESFASE - BB T )Ml MEREEE -
described in (d) below.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide HEKRRCEBNER LIBEN - A3 5BTRAMK
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not FHGE - REBABRBRNREEENERERN A
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets ERFTHMERREY - BEEETESERBRER -
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security BE019F12A3E - AEEHAETHAAGTER
for borrowing purposes. Until 31 December 2019, the Group has not EXNEHRIRHBEERTENRESR -
entered into any lease contract with variable lease payment arrangement
or residual value guarantee arrangement.
Extension and termination options (d) HFEREENRLASREE

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property
leases across the Group. These are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group’s operations.
The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable
only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

AEEREAERMERSEMERENK IEERE
& NEASELEMANEEEE T ARARELER
BEENEEN - AEERANATNERRRENL
HEREREMAKETE - MEmERNLEAT
[
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SO R MR
9 Intangible assets 9 EKEE
Trademarks, Computer Acquired
Development licenses and  software for customer
Goodwill costs copyrights ownuse relationship Total
il X BH

he MEBE BEEEE SRR EFRE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT ARETR ARBTE ARETT ARETn

At1 January 2018 AZE-N\E+ZA=1+-H
Cost KA 181,24 2,409,959 185,169 36,798 26,149 2,839.320
Accumulated amortisation Py - (1818,812) (163,969) (29,646) (9589 (2022,036)
Net book amount HERE 181,245 591,147 21180 7,152 16,560 B17.284

Year ended 31 December 2018 BECZ-\F
+ZA=+-HLEE

Opening net book amount R FE 181,245 591,147 21,180 7152 16,560 817,284
Additions B - 319,237 1,703 5,780 - 386,720
Amortisation charge A - (264,094) (6915) (8,097) (5,230) (304,336)
Closing net book amount BRIEmSE 181,245 666,290 15,968 4835 1,330 899,668

At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+ZA=1+-H
Cost KA 181,245 2,189,196 186,872 42578 26,149 3,226,040
Accumulated amortisation 2:HEH - (2102,906) (170,904) (37.743) (14819)  (2326372)
Net hook amount IRERE 181,24 666,290 15,968 4835 11,330 899,668

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-Z-N%
+ZRA=+—-HLEE

Opening net book amount HREFE 181,245 686,290 15,968 4,835 11,330 899,668
Additions 1B = 471,654 6,000 1,521 - 485,175
Amortisation charge =4t - (413,982) (8,571) (2,550) (5,230) (430,333)
Impairment FE (31,187) - - - - (31,187)
Closing net book amount HRIEERE 150,058 749,962 13,397 3,806 6,100 923,323

At 31 December 2019 RZE-nE+ZA=+-H
Cost AR 181,245 3,266,850 192,871 44,098 26,149 3,711,213
Accumulated amortisation 2t - (2,516,888) (179,474) (40,292) (20,049)  (2,756,703)
mpairment HE (31,187) - - - - (31,187)
Net book amount IRERE 150,058 749,962 13,397 3,806 6,100 923,323
Amortisation charge of RMB16,351,000 (2018: RMB20,242,000) AR16,351,0000 (ZZF—N\F = AR20,242,0007T)
and RMB413,982,000 (2018: RMB284,094,000) has been charged to MEHEERC A ATHER - ARK413982,0007T (=
administrative expenses and research and development costs, respectively. T—\F : ARHE284,0940007T) B ESEE B 5 A

R -
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Intangible assets (continued)
Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill arises from the Group’s acquisition of Shanghai Guanyi
Cloudcomputing Software Co., Ltd. (“Guanyi”) and was determined at the
date of acquisition on 29 February 2016, being the difference between
the purchase considerations and the fair value of net identifiable assets of
Guanyi. Goodwill has been primarily allocated to the CGU of Guanyi for
impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow forecasts based
on the financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Management determined a forecast period of five years based on
expected development trend of Guanyi and industry experience. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
terminal growth rate stated below. The terminal growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the enterprise management
cloud services business in which the CGU operates. The discount rate
used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant industry.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations for 2019 and
2018 are as follows:

9 H|ERE (H)
AREE
BERERAREY LBE S EAERMNBRARMNK
BOHEEZZAFA-TNBRERER - Z8E
REFEURRFEELABEEXNYENER - Y
EOAHELNBECKRAREELETET TRE
A,

REELBTNI RS BREEREENE - A5
AFBRARERERR - KEEEEM RO TFHY
BEE - EEERANDERERRIREE ZNAK
FREDUARTEERAE - BEXDFHNRER
SRAUATHROMF O KBEEREELEE - ZER
ETEBASELBTRENEREEERFEHNR
MY ERE - IRAZRREHAMGRRE - BRE
BRETRMARER -

“E-NEREEAEEANIBREMT

2019 2018

—Z-hE —E-N\F

Revenue growth rate during the forecast period BRI E R AL R & 22% = 32% 15% — 38%
EBITDA margin during the forecast period FEREA S BT EHHR A B X 14% - 26% 18% - 30%
Terminal growth rate KB RE 3% 3%
Pre-tax discount rate TRATBEIE & 19.88% 20.58%

EBITDA margin equals to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation divided by total revenue.

The recoverable amount of the Guanyi would equal its carrying amount if
the key assumption were to change as follows:

BRITELHANMNEZKARTRENE BB FER
BEFMBRNERE

MRBRBRAENT - BEEZNTRQSEHER
HEEEE

2019 2018
ZB-0F —T-N\F
From To From To
1] E e E

Revenue growth rates during the forecast period  FERIER RN AE R =X

EBITDA margin during the forecast period FRE N BT EH R AR
Terminal growth rate KEERE
Pre-tax discount rate BRIAR X

22%-32% 23%-34% 15%-38%  15%-33%
14%-26% 15%-29% 18%-30% 17%-27%
3% 6% 3% 2%
19.88% 17.55% 20.58% 23.04%

The directors of the Company have considered and assessed reasonably
possible changes for other key assumptions and have not identified any
instances that could cause the carrying amount of the Guanyi CGU to
exceed its recoverable amount.

ESREEERERLAEAMEIRBRAEFLNGER
B WRBHREMILERESORAEEBRETKE
cBAER -
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(a)

(b)

152 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Investment properties 10 BERYME
2019 2018
—Z-hE —T-N\&F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TT ARETT
At fair value LRRE
At 1 January ®—A—8 1,816,206 1,721,690
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss ERBRTHRANAAEES 39,994 94,516
At 31 December ®»+=-BR=+—H 1,856,200 1,816,206
Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment properties (a) RERMECERSAEDHNE
2019 2018
—Z-hE —T-N\5F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
Rental income iEEON 75,148 74,838
Direct operating expenses from property that EEHSRANRERENERE
generates rental income LeER (1,905) (1,897)
13,243 72,941

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties was
performed by the valuer, Avista Valuation Advisory Limited, to determine
the fair value of the investment properties based on highest and best
use as at 31 December 2019. The Group’s investment properties, which
comprised office buildings in the PRC, were carried at fair value and
measured using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at 31
December 2019 and 2018.

Leasing arrangements

The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating leases with
rentals payable monthly. Lease payments for some contracts include CPI
increases, but there are no other variable lease payments that depend on an
index or rate. Where considered necessary to reduce credit risk, the Group
required the tenants to provide deposits for the term of lease contract.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual value at the end
of the current leases, the Group typically enters into new operating leases
and therefore will not immediately realise any reduction in residual value
at the end of these leases. Expectations about the future residual values
are reflected in the fair value of the properties.

For minimum lease payments receivable on leases of investment
properties, refer to Note 36.

“T-AFTAZ+—B AEENREHNERE
MUREMAsta B AER AR (ZF—\F - B
Bt A HERDE]) TBULGE  UETE
DABE - FEARRAEEANEEREUNE  RE
ATABERA (F3E) BEA_S—NFN=T-N
F+-A=Z+-BMAREE-

() HARH
REMEARERENALEAAET  BeRAXN -
—UAFANESBEEBENERRER  BREEM
FREAMEBREEXNAERE - FEERRBLRRE
ERARRE  EXEFEREARSNRERRAES -

HAREEEZHHERERE  eEHRRREENE
£ BEAREBESEAFNNCEREY it - £1E
LHENERE  AERETEVAERIFREENT
AL - HRRFHBENBARREFHENDAE
(L

RENFHENKERKAS R0 -
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Investment properties (continued)
Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s finance department includes a team that reviews the
valuations performed by the independent valuers for financial reporting
purposes. This team reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO).
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held among the CFO,
the valuation team and the valuers at least once every six months, in line
with the Group’s interim and annual reporting dates.

At the end of each reporting period the finance department:
—  Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

—  Assesses property valuations movements when compared to the
prior year valuation report;

—  Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

As part of this discussion, the team presents a report that explains the
reasons for the fair value movements.

Valuation techniques

For completed office buildings, the valuation was determined using income
approach based on significant unobservable inputs. These inputs include:

10

BrRLEHME (])
sREMGEERE
ARERBHRE AN EERMBEREBOY

BUMEMOGEETES - W NAERRERUE
BCFO)ER - ARAAEENTHMFEREAH -
CFO - fi(& J\iﬁﬁﬁiﬁfﬁﬁﬂiﬁ‘d\l/‘dﬂ ME—R i1
HERENBEER

EESEMBFEER  MBHHE
- REBUMERSNAEERENKR

- HEMEAERLFERERSERTNED

- EEVHEMETHR

SELTRREEREE  BELAABEZHORRA -

fEER
BERAMARENBENAREE  REATTEES
AEFE - BLBABRHE

Relationship of
Unobservable unobservable
inputs Description Range of unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
FAUBREA s FABRBANEE AUERBAHLREENRE
Term yields Based on yields extracting from terms of current leases 4.5-5% (2018 4.5-5%) The higher the term yields rate, the lower
the fair value
RAAEE RESHEFTORERNET  MEERNNEE 455% (ZZ—\F : 455%) BRANEEES DL EEWE
Reversionary yields Based on expected yields after expiry of any current lease 5-5.5% (2018: 5-5.5%) The higher the reversionary yields, the lower
the fair value
BEIMEE REENERTORESNET Bt mBERREN  555% (25— \F : 5-5.5%) BESMEEES - DA EEWE
Wak
Fair market rents Based on the actual location, type and quality of the propertiesand ~ RMBA49-RMB133 per month per square The higher the rental value, the higher the
supported by the terms of any existing lease, other contracts and meter (2018: RMBA7-RMB128 per month ~ fair value
external evidence such as current market rents for similar Per square meter)
properties
e BENENERDE  BUANER  TRAMRFEEYN STKEAAREOT -1 mEleHs  ArBEER

{57 A A RMINE
RE) fds

& (PIIMBUMENE A5

(Z2-N\%: §¥HREA
ARBATTL—12870)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

FRBERMLEZE
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11 Investments in associates 1 BRERR
2019 2018
—Z-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TT ARETT
At 1 January ®—HA—H 234,403 31,420
Additions (a) #n(a) 110,241 185,191
Disposal (b) BE((D) (26,401) -
Conversion from a subsidiary to an associate (c) feFRElBREEA() - 16,000
Dilution gain (c) WERE(C) - 714
Revaluation gain upon losing of control (c) AR EVEHIR Y & (B IS (o) - 5,318
Dividend received el (50) -
Share of losses of associates (d) ZHEBERERNEERME() (35,544) (4,240)
At 31 December B+=A=+—H 282,649 234,403
(@) It mainly included the following investments in associates during the year:  (a) FEBEFANHBLEARNTIIEE
Principle Investment  Equity interest
activities and amount acquired by  Measurement
Name of associate place of operation (RMB’000) the Group  method
FEZHN RESE FREWE
BRELFEE EBRH (AR®TRT) HEE HERHE
Citic Consumer Finance Co., Ltd. Provision of consumer financing service in the PRC 90,000 30.0%  Equity method
FIEHESRARAT HHEREEEERERS BE@E
Shenzhen Kuaixue Education Development Provision of online education service in the PRC 15,000 5.0%  Equity method
Co., Ltd.
TN REHXBHRERAA HRERMER FHE RS Bk
(b) 1t mainly represented the disposal of the Group’s 45% interest in Qingdao (b)) TEREXAEEREEEEHELERAR U TEE
Xinrun Real Estate Limited (“Qingdao Xinrun”). In September 2019, [EE8H]) Lk —T—NFNA EEBER
the Group disposed of all its 45% interest in Qingdao Xinrun to an EEEHBYNBRNEBLELBLE=F -
independent third party.
(¢) In December 2018, Qingdao Xinrun, a then subsidiary of the Group, (t) —ZT—/\F+-F A£EEREFARSEERN

154 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

received RMB17,111,000 of capital injection from certain third parties and
as a result, the Group’s interest in Qingdao Xinrun diluted from 80% to
45%, resulting in a dilution gain of RMB714,000; in addition, the Group
lost control over Qingdao Xinrun upon the dilution and the investment
had been accounted for as an associate since then. The Group’s interest
in Qingdao Xinrun after the dilution was remeasured to fair value upon
losing of control and a revaluation gain of RMB5,318,000 was recognised
accordingly.

Annual Report 2019
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(e)

(f)

Investments in associates (continued) 11 BERE (#)
(d) During the year, RMB2,518,000 of the Group’s share of loss of an  (d) F& - ABIFEERHAR2518,0007T BN E K
associate in excess of its investment cost which was recognised against AeMBEBENER  RRABY HEHRE 2EK
the loan to the associate in prior years was fully recovered as a result of o
the full settlement of the loan to the associate during the year.

Individually immaterial associates (e) FERBERH
In the opinion of the directors, none of the associates is material to the AEESERR  AEERESAOBERE - %R
Group. Summarised aggregate financial information of the individually ERERFEABEREANMBEMESNT -
immaterial associates that are accounted for using the equity method are
as following:
2019 2018
—Z-n%¥ T N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARBFT
Aggregate carrying amounts of individually immaterial  FEE AMEHRESHIEEEBE
associates 282,649 234,403
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of: AEEMERMDEE
Loss for the year AEEBAR (35,544) (4,240)
Other comprehensive income HEipmales - -
Total comprehensive loss fo=ghéniot] (35,544) (4,240)

All the associates of the Group are unlisted and operate in Mainland  (f) AEEEFAHERFERLET - WERERMLEE

China. e
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SO R MR
12 Financial instruments by category 12 BRENESHERIR
The Group holds the following financial instruments: AEERANTEMIA :
2019 2018
ZE-h¥E ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTF T
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost DERRFENEMNEE
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments and — JEURZ R H e (R EFEMN R
VAT recoverable) (Note 14) AREBZIER) (E14) 232,836 194,678
Loans to third parties (Note 14) BYE=FEZ (ME14) 243,219 107,660
Loans to related parties (Note 14) BYBEAER (ME14) = 721,513
Pledged bank deposits (Note 16) ERRITER (F316) 128 152
Short-term bank deposits (Note 16) RENRITE R (MI3E16) 687,667 359,674
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 16) ReRRSEEY (H:E16) 1,898,770 1,452,848
3,062,620 2,836,525
Financial assets at fair value DoREEHENEMNEE
Financial assets at FVPL (Note 13) AR EBETEBZETABRN
SREE (M13) 1,024,942 638,886
Financial liabilities eMEfR
Liabilities at amortised cost DERRFENEMAR
Trade and other payables (excluding VAT and other taxes  JEfTIRZR SR EL b BN 3 (R B8 ET: M E A
payables and salary and staff welfare payables) (Note 24) & - FER¥r& B TREA) (FiF24) 394,336 307,616
Borrowings (Note 22) 2 (F3E22) 199,625 301,125
Lease liabilities (Note 8) HE&R () 41,623 -
635,584 608,741
The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the financial AEEEMAIDFHRTEHERIAERNSER
instruments is discussed in Note 3.1(b). The maximum exposure to credit B REBHRTREERRNFAMO A LS EER
risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of each class EEMNIRAEER -

of financial assets mentioned above.
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SO R M
13 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 13 LDOAREHEAREBHAREHNEMEE
(a) Classification of financial assets at fair value through profit or (a) LARBEHAELEEBHHARESHEMEESSE
loss
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group classifies the following RZZ-NF+-A=1+—0 FEEEUTEREE
financial assets at FVPL: N BUAREBEMEEHEMHTAERZNSREE -
e Debt investments that do not qualify for measurement at either o TREERKALAAEBEZHH ALMESN
amortised cost or FVOC! i ERENRBERE
e Equity investments that are held for trading, and o ARSMEAMRERE UK
e Equity investments for which the entity has not elected to recognise o AEESBEZBBANEBEEYI ALMEA
fair value gains and losses through OCI. Wt EMRRERE.
Financial assets measured at FVPL include the following: WARBEAZEEDSAERNEREEREUTR
g
2019 2018
—Z-hE —T-N\&F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TT ARBTT
Investments designated at fair value through profit or loss EELARBEESBHEABSHRE
Wealth management products (i) BEEEER() 687,312 288,347
Preferred shares (ii) B SRR (i) 254,491 253,456
Listed stock il 59,139 66,480
Unlisted equity investment FELTRERE 24,000 24,000
Unlisted convertible bonds FLETMATEBRES = 6,603
1,024,942 638,886
Less: non-current portion A IEREH (428,791) (427,456)
596,151 211,430

This represented the Group’s investments in various wealth
management products issued by commercial banks and state-owned
financial institutions. These products have a term ranging from 3
months to 36 months. They have an expected annual return rate
ranging from 2.36% to 5%. No single wealth management product
investment accounted for over 5% of the Group’s total assets. The
fair values of these investments were determined based on income
approach, details of which refer to Note 3.3.

It mainly represented the Group’s investment of 535,643,887
Series E Preferred Shares issued by Facishare Co., Ltd., which is
mainly engaged in the business of social network working platform
for precise interactive marketing and enterprise collaborative
management. The fair value of the investment was determined based
on market approach, details of which refer to Note 3.3.

() HAAEEEENABRRIETNZEEEE
BER AGEHRENEATE - GLEE
EEEMNBHEHRAE236%/5%2F - BA
—HEAEEREMRENREAEEN UL o
ELEEEEEMOARBERERSEZER L
EER - FE2RMESS .

(i) WATKERENERZDHEHNZARELR
A (FRUEREEHTHROEHRERNL
RMETIET R £ B1TH535,643,087AKEH &
Tl WRENDABERRET AT
12 RME33 -
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B ORI RME

13 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss
The gains were recognised in profits or loss are as following:

13 MARREMEARSHAARRHNEMAE
(#)

() WRBRIHSHE
THRERAFAEER AR -

2019 2018
ZE-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFTT
Fair value gains on investments at FVPL recognised in AR R BBt 28 EEEFH ABRNLHE
other gains (Note 28) ENAREEZNE (:28) 26,220 44,334

14 Trade and other receivables, and loans to third and

14 BEEREAMELR RETRESREZS

related parties HR
2019 2018
—Z2-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREF T
Trade receivables (a) FEUTER TR () 259,905 256,366
Less: allowance for impairment of trade receivables (Note 3.1(b) &l - FEMRERE R (FiHEE3.1(h)) (141,952) (128,599)
Trade receivables — net FEMER S — 38 117,953 121,767
Notes receivable W ERE 32,039 21,643
Advances to employees (b) miEEREERAZ(D) 11,369 4,945
Consideration receivable from disposal of an associate BEHENAIEKMEE 28,125 -
Prepayments SEINE 61,843 42,104
VAT recoverable AlRIE 7 ER 35,474 49,833
Interest receivables FEUH B 2,610 21473
Receivables from related parties (c) (Note 37) MR A FUR(e) (FI3E37) 15,309 9,193
Others Hi IR 25,431 9,657
330,153 286,615
Less: non-current portion BE - IERETH (22,000) -
Current portion MENER 308,153 286,615
Loans to related parties (Note 37) LT B E R (FE37)
— Current portion — nEEm = 256,976
— Non-current portion — MBI R - 464,537
- 721513
Loans to third parties (d) BIE=HER)
— Current portion — RBHH 230,869 88,720
— Non-current portion — 3B AR 12,350 18,940
243,219 107,660
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(a)

(b)

(c)

Trade and other receivables, entrusted loans and loans 14 EREREEMELRR SXERRETRES
to related parties (continued) B (#)
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their fair YRS R E BN  RERESEIESEBNDAR
value. The Group’s trade and other receivables are mainly denominated in BE - FAEERKERREMEKREZAARE
RMB. Be
Sales are generally made without prescribed credit terms in the sales  (a) AEEHEEEARTEENERERTEHS  BEF
contracts but customers usually take 1 to 3 months to settle the BRE—2=EARNINFE - ZE-\FRZT—N
receivables. At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the aging analysis of trade F+ZA=T—BREERORR AT -
receivables based on invoice date were as follows:
2019 2018
—Z-hE “E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER%TT ARETFT
0-90 days 0—90X% 13,841 75,353
91 - 180 days 91 =180k 12,637 11,153
181 - 360 days 181 — 360K 33,280 38,976
Over 360 days HBi@360K 140,147 130,884
259,905 256,366
Advances to employees (h) mMERREHHAS
The amounts advanced to employees were restricted for business purpose REEREMNEASERNATEE  fINAREER
only, such as advances for selling expenses. Such advances were %o ZERSHRE  BEARENEREEE - HIE
interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand. During the years ended )\ GERZZT-NFTZA=T—H  FEET
on 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group did not advance any cash to BREFEIAMATE -
the directors for use on business activities.
Receivables from related parties were unsecured, interest-free, and  (¢c) JEMBESZEVW EBERLENE  REEREES

repayable on demand and denominated in RMB.

B UARMEHE -
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14

(d)

160 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Trade and other receivahles, entrusted loans and loans
to related parties (continued)

Loans to third parties

ERERERMELR  REERRETFRES
& (8)

KBFPEZFHER

2019 2018

—E-hE —NE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Loans to third parties BYE=FNER 245,434 108,747
Less: Provision for collective impairment assessment W BERREEE

of the loans (2,215) (1,087)

Loans to third parties, net of provision “HNMER - FE 243,219 107,660

Less: non-current portion /Ué : ﬁméba‘ﬁf (12,350) (18,940)

Current portion mEEH 230,869 88,720

The loans to third parties represented loans made under the micro-credit
business, which bear interest from 4.28% to 24.00% (2018:4.28% to
18.00%) per annum and are repayable with fixed terms agreed with the
customers, and all denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2019, RMB50,690,000 of loans to third parties was
pledged for a short-term borrowing.

The fair values of the loans to third parties approximated their carrying
amounts and the fair value hierarchy is level 2. The interest accrued was
due within 12 months and presented in interest receivables.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of
asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on
an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition.

As at 31 December 2019, due to the actual loss rate of loans was less
than 0.1% and no significant change in credit quality, the Group performs
collective impairment assessment of loans to third parties by grouping
together all its loans to third parties with similar credit risk characteristics,
a general provision of 1% of the principal was provided against the loan
principals.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO SRR MR
15 Inventories 15 #§
2019 2018
—Z-h&E —N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
Software products and related parts BREm KRB 1,351 8,436
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in FERATEARBEBALINA HEKE] S BHZ
“cost of sales” amounted to approximately RMB150,363,000 (2018: #) AR #150,363,0007T (ZZ— N\ F : AR105,393,00
RMB105,393,000) (Note 27). 5) (FE27) -
16 Cash and cash equivalents 16 BReRBREERY
2019 2018
—Z-hE —N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTFT
Cash at bank and in hand (a) BIREFHRS() 2,586,565 1,812,674
Less: Short-term bank deposits (b) o RERITER(D) (687,667) (359,674)
Pledged bank deposits (c) ERRITER() (128) (152
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREZEY 1,898,770 1,452,848
(a) Cash at bank and in hand was denominated in the following currencies: (a) RAKEFREUATIERTE:
2019 2018
—Z-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AEETFT
RMB AR 2,406,491 1,642,095
UsSD e 112,143 141,152
HKD et 66,444 27,988
Others Hif 1,487 1,439
2,586,565 1,812,674
(b) The weighted-average effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits ~ (b)  31E A Z12{8 A 4% BRITF KA E R FIE 53.66% (=
was 3.66% (2018: 3.52%) with terms ranging from 3 months to 12 T—\F : 352%) °
months.
(c¢) The bank deposits were pledged to banks as required in certain projects  (c) REREHINESNER - WERE

the Group was tendering. Such pledged deposits will be released upon the
closure of the tendering.

JTE ’W‘% 2EE
FRRE

ZZ-N

FFEH RERRGREERAT
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17 Subsidiaries 17 FA&F
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019: UATAR-E-AFE+=-A=+—-BFEFA7:

Proportion of Proportion of
ordinary  Proportion of ordinary
shares ordinary shares
Particulars directly shares  held by non-
Place of incorporation Principal activities of issued held by held by controlling
Name and kind of legal entity  and place of operation share capital parent (%)  the Group (%) interests (%)
HELAFER HEEE mEmNER
BRESIMER TERH BRTRF HEOBER RKEOLER BEORER
£1 ] EEEREN REEHE 1 LL(%) L (%) LEB(%)
Kingdee Software (China) Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited liability Development, manufacturing RMB530,000,000 100 100 -
("Kingdee China") company and sglling of software and
hardware products and
provision of software-related
services in the PRC
SREH (B ERAA hE BREANE R BEREETMH  ARES0000000 100 100 -
(Ie%HE ) REFEER  MRIEHR
P RBRITRE -
e
Kingdee International Software Group Hong Kong, limited liability  Sales of software products (SD1,000,000 100 100 -
(HK) Co., Ld. company in Hong Kong
cRERRAER (BF) BRAR  FF BREARR  BHEoHE BB F711,000,000 100 100 -
(Ie%&%))
Carterton Group Limited BV, limited liability company  Investment holding in the B! USD1,000,000 80 80 0
Carterton Group Limited HBGTES RESR  ZREREE  F71,000,000 80 80 2
BREAAT
Kingdee International Software Group Singapore, limited liability ~ Sales of software products 56D100,000 100 100 -
(Singapore) Pte Ltd. company in Singapore
SREREH GTE) BRAR MK BREALR  REELHEES MR HASE100,000 100 100 -
Crotona Assets Limited BVI, limited liability company  Marketing and promotion of 1SD50,000 100 100 -
software products in the BV
Crotona Assets Limited ABGRHE BhERTAEE 7050000 100 100 -
EREELT ABARES
Shenzhen Kingdee Tianyan Middleware Corp., The PRC, limited liability Sales of software products RMB40,000,000 - 40 60
Ltd. (*Kingdee Tianyan Middleware”) corporation in the PRC
(Note (a))
RSERERNEHERAA WE - ROHERRR  BHERHEE - RE AR E40,000,000 - 40 60
M)
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AU BRHE
17 Subsidiaries (continued) 17 F2F (#)
Proportion of Proportion of
ordinary  Proportion of ordinary
shares ordinary shares
Particulars directly shares  held by non-
Place of incorporation ~ Principal activities of issued held by held by controlling
Name and kind of legal entity  and place of operation share capital parent (%)  the Group (%) interests (%)
HEBAFESE HEEE mERmnER
EMbER TEEH BETRT HBE0LER RSEOLER HBEOELER
a8 HEERER REEHE 34 LL (%) LE (%) LE (%)
Kingdee Technology Holding Limited BVI, limited liability company ~ Sales of software products USD1 100 100 -
in Hong Kong
Kingdee Technology Holding Limited KE&REE HHERHEE 75 E 100 100 -
EREAAT
Shanghai Kingdeg Degking Cloudcomputing ~ The PRC, limited liability Sales of software products RMB20,000,000 - 100 -
Co., Ltd company in the PRC
FEERREEHEARDA HE - BREARR  BHERHE - 20,000,000 - 100 -
Xiamen Kingdee Software Co., Lid. The PRC, limited liability Sales of software products RMB10,000,000 - 100 -
company in the PRC
ERREHARAR mE BREARR  BAELEE ¢ ARH10,000000 - 100 -
Shanghai Kingdee Software Technology The PRC, limited liability Sales of software products RMB10,000,000 - 90 10
Co., Lid. company in the PRC
FREREHRBEERLA hE - BREARA  BHEREE 4 ARH10,000,000 - %0 10
Kingdee E-commerce Technology The PRC, limited liability Provision of onling financial RMB30,000,000 - 80 0
(Shenzhen) Co., Lid. company services in the PRC
SREFABRM (RY) BRAE  wE BREARR  KEBBRE + ARH30,000000 - 80 2
Guangdong Kingdee Software Co., Lid. The PRC, limited liability Sales of software products RNB30,000,000 - 100 -
company in the PRC
BREGEMHMBERAA hE BREARF  BAERHEE ¢ ARH30,000000 - 100 -
Taiwan Kingdee Software Co., Ltd. Taiwan, limited liability Sales of software products TWD10,000,000 - 100 -
company in Taiwan
REERTNERAR hEAE ERECAE RAERHE EAE  A%10,000,000 - 100 -
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17 Subsidiaries (continued) 17 F2F (#)
Proportion of Proportion of
ordinary  Proportion of ordinary
shares ordinary shares
Particulars directly shares  held by non-
Place of incorporation ~ Principal activities of issued held by held by controlling
Name and kind of legal entity  and place of operation share capital parent (%)  the Group (%) interests (%)
HBARESE HEEE mkEmNER
EREIER TEEH BETRT BE0WLER SEOLER HBEOBER
& EEERER REEHE 3 LA (%) LE (%) LL (%)
Yiyang Kingdee Software Co., Lid. The PRC, limited liability Sales of software products RMB10,000,000 - 100 -
company in the PRC
wheREHAERAR (BHe%)) +8 BREARA  BHERHE  TH 10,000,000 - 100 -
Hunan Kingdee Software Technology Co., Lid. The PRC, limited liability Sales of software products RMB20,000,000 - 100 -
company in the PRC
REEREHRMERAA hE BREARR  BBEREE ¢ ARH20,000,000 - 100 -
Kingdee Deeking Cloudcomputing Co., Ltd ~ The PRC, limited liability Sales of software products RMB50,000,000 - 100 -
("Kingdee Deeking") company in the PRC
SHReEHERRLA WE - EREARR  HHERHE - H ARH50,000,000 - 100 -
(le%%2))
Kingdee Vehicle Network Technology Co.,  The PRC, limited liability Development of internet RMB100,000,000 - 56 4
Ltd. (*Kingdee Vehicle”) company technology in the PRC
SRAEMERBEERLA hE BREMNA  GEERMFEZ - PE  ARE00000000 - 56 i
([e%A&])
Guanyi The PRC, limited liability Sales of software products RMB10,000,000 - 91 9
company in the PRC
) HE - BREFLH HHERHEE F AR 10,000,000 - 91 9
Guangzhou Deeking Small-Loan Co., Ltd The PRC, limited liability Provision of online financial RMB100,000,000 - 100 -
company services in the PRC
ENTRe NEETERAT mE - EREARA BEBRE -+ AR 100,000,000 - 100 -
Shenzhen Kingdee Jingdou Cloud Internet — The PRC, limited liability Sales of software products RMB12,000,000 - - -
Technology Co., Lid. (Note (b)) company in the PRC
RBAZBERBERAAMED) B AREERF  HHERHE TE AR 12,000,000 - - -
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17 Subsidiaries (continued)

17 F2F (&)

Proportion of Proportion of

ordinary  Proportion of ordinary

shares ordinary shares

Particulars directly shares held by non-

Place of incorporation ~ Principal activities of issued held by held by controlling

Name and kind of legal entity  and place of operation share capital parent (%)  the Group (%) interests (%)

HEBAFESE HEEE mERmnER

EMbER TEEH BETRT HBE0LER RSEOLER HBEOELER

& ] L RETHE B At EEK) A%

Beijing Kingdee Government and Public The PRC, limited liability Sales of software products RMB50,500,000 - - -

Software Co., Ltd. (Note (b)) company in the PRC

IRTERFBRAERAAMNED) E BREARF  BHERHE  PE ARA50,500,000 - - -

Kingdee Credit Co., Lid. (Note (b)) The PRC, limited liability Development and service of RMB50,000,000 - - -
company software in the PRC

SRAEERAANED) hE BREARA  BARWEE  dE RH50,000,000 - - -

Shenzhen Kingdee Pay Technology Co., Ltd.  The PRC, limited liability Development of online pay MB100,000,000 - - -

(Nate (5)
A mEE T HREER AN ED)

company
HE - EREALT

technology in the PRC
g EXRERB AR AR %100,000,000
- H

The directors of the Company considered that the non-controlling
interests in respect of the subsidiaries are not material to the Group, and
therefore, no summarised financial information of the relevant subsidiaries

is presented separately.

B3 -

AREERAAEETREMFIEHH RS EEME
WAEK - Bt - HEFARNSBEERLL REB
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17 Subsidiaries (continued)

Note:

(a)

166 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Although the Group owns less than half of the equity interests in
Kingdee Tianyan Middleware, it is able to gain power over more than
one half of the voting rights by virtue of an agreement. Consequently, the
Group consolidates Kingdee Tianyan Middleware and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Beijing Kingdee Middleware Software System Co., Ltd. and
Shanghai Kingdee Middleware Software Systems Co., Ltd.

The Group does not have legal ownership in the equity of these operating
companies. The Group has entered into several contractual arrangements
with them and their equity holders since their incorporation. These
contractual arrangements are irrevocable and enable the Group to:

- exercise effective financial and operational control over these
operating companies;

- exercise more than one half of the equity holders voting rights of
these operating companies;

- receive substantially all of the economic interest returns generated by
these operating companies in consideration for the business support;

- obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right to purchase the entire equity
interest in these operating companies from the equity holders;

- obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of these operating
companies from their equity holders as collateral for all the payments
due to the Group and as security for performance of obligations under
the contractual arrangements.

As a result of such contractual arrangements, the Group has rights to
variable returns from its involvement with them and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over these operating companies (“VIES")
and is considered to control them. Consequently, the Group regards them as
controlled structured entities in the consolidated financial statements.

Nevertheless, the contractual arrangements may not be as effective as direct
legal ownership in providing the Group with direct control over these VIEs
and uncertainties presented by the PRC legal system could impede the
Group’s beneficiary rights of the results, assets and liabilities of these VIEs.
The Group believes that these contractual arrangements are in compliance
with relevant PRC laws and regulations and are legally binding and
enforceable.
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18 Share capital and share premium 18 BRFMBFEE
Number of Share Share
shares capital premium Total
BEHE BRGREE BERE &t
(thousands) RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Tk ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR
At 1 January 2018 —Z-\§E—H—H#& 2,904,553 71,599 1,681,289 1,752,888
Employee share option scheme BBk
— Value of employee services received - BIREER - - 5,290 5290
— Exercise of share options (Note 21) — {T{EmEARE (HI3E21) 47557 987 95,367 96,354
Share award plan i SEmET =
— Value of services received - RIGEE - - 81,628 81,628
— Transfer shares to the awardees upon - REBREROHEBLERDA
vesting - - (29,047) (29,047)
Conversion of convertible bonds (Note 22) R #8(E8R (Pi3E22) 348,075 6999 1068932 1,075,931
At 31 December 2018 —-\§+=A=+-B&E 3,300,185 79585 2903459 2,983,044
At 1 January 2019 “E-hE—H—A&R 3,300,185 79,585 2,903,459 2,983,044
Employee share option scheme BIBRETS
— Value of employee services received -BIRKEE - - 1,032 1,032
— Exercise of share options (Note 21) — 1P R (FEE21) 20,505 452 53,732 54,184
Share award plan Btn S mEt &
—Value of services received - IR&EE - - 86,660 86,660
— Transfer shares to the awardees upon - REBREROHEBRERDA
vesting - - (81,787)  (81,787)
At 31 December 2019 “E-AE+ZA=+—HER 3,320,690 80,037 2,963,096 3,043,133
(a)  The total authorised number of ordinary shares as at 31 December 2019 was @ BEZZE-NAFH-A=1+—0 LTBROEEHA f»@

4,000,000,000 (2018: 4,000,000,000) shares with a par value of HKD0.025
(2018: HKD0.025) per share. All issued shares were fully paid.

%A /34,000,000,0008% (=%
FREERERST (ZF

— V% +4,000,000,0008%) -
—N\F ﬁﬂﬁ@fﬁ/ﬁ%ﬂ%

)« AREFTOAERNBEZBAR

“TNFFR SRERBHEERRAF
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19 Other reserves 19 RtGEos
Statutory Shares
surplus Financial held
Merger Capital reserve Property  Conversion  asselsal for share Other
reserve reserve fund  revaluation option FVOCI  award plan  Translation reserves Total
RiiEm
EERE RS
AfEE  EEOR LRe Eff WERES HERE U] k) -] ait
RMB000 RVB000 RMB000 RMB000 RVB000 RMB000 RVB000 RMB000 RVB 000 RMB000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETH
Note (3) Note (b) Note (c) Note (d)
HiE (o) Bt (b) Bz (o) i (0)
At 1 January 2018 ZE-)\§
-R-R&& 6,570 253488 138762 476,049 8,696 - (162012) (913) (26230) 694 402
Curency ranslation e EE
diferences - - - - - - - 67,029 - 67,029
Transactions with B ERY
non-controling inferests 25 (FFE35)
(Note 35) - - - - - - - - 13,29 13296
Tansfershares e NREEERHEY
awardegs upon vesting L JEREIA - - - - - - 14,937 - - 14937
Shares purchased for share PR {7 SEBpst 2 pes
award plan i - - - - - - (244) - - (4m)
Conversion of convertble A (EEER
bonds - - - - (6,69) - - - 8,696 -
At 31 December 2018 ZB—)\E
+ZR=1-H
& 6,570 253488 138762 476,049 - - (371.480) 6,116 (4.246) 565,259
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* NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B |+ & N
AU BRHE
19 Other reserves (continued) 19 HthGafs (&)
Statutory Shares
surplus held
Merger Capital reserve Property  for share Other
reserve reserve fund  revaluation  award plan  Translation reserves Total
R
EERR HERE

MRe Eff & % £t fit
RVB000 RMB000 RVIB000 RMB000 RIB000 RVB000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETR
Note (c) Note (d)
HE () )

At 1 January 2019 ZE-pE-R-ARR 6,570 253,488 138,762 476,009 (371,480) 66,116 (4,246) 565,259
Clrrency translation iferences NEREER - - - - - 284 - 284
Transactions with non-confrolling nterests SR EIERNR S
(e 35) (h23) - - - - - N TN (VI TR )

Transfer shares to the awardess upon vesting ~ RNEBE RN ER

REEEA = = = = 56,207 - - 56,207
At 31 December 2019 k- 2y §:3

TZA=t+-Bf# 6,570 253,488 138,762 476,049 (315,273) 66,400 60,536 686,532

The merger reserve represented the difference between the carrying amounts
of the capital of the subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by
the Company and the nominal amounts of the Company’s shares issued as
consideration for the acquisitions.

The capital reserve arose mainly from the reinvestment of dividends into the
PRC subsidiaries and capitalisation of reserves of certain subsidiaries.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required to follow the laws and
regulations of the PRC and their articles of association. These subsidiaries
are required to allocate at least 10% of their net profits to the reserve fund
until the balance of such fund has reached 50% of their registered capital.
The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the shareholders’
meeting or similar authorities, to offset accumulated losses or increase
capital.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had purchased
34,579,000 ordinary shares in the Company for a consideration of
HKD253,375,000, equivalent to approximately RMB224,405,000, under the
share award plan (Note 21(b)). The carrying amount of the shares held as at
31 December 2018 was presented as a deduction against equity.

() AHREEMNELRRALTAWBEANEASREER
ARRBBERITHRNEEDEH -

()  AADEIBEHPERANFARNENBRENBN
FRRMERER -

() ARFERPEMERRRKETEOEERRTE A
MRRIERMAA - tEPEE LA RAREFERT
REAPMORBEARERS  BEEZRBESRARS
PREGMERN0% - FHEESEEFHERAREX
SH RN BIERR R ERIEMER -

0 #BHE-Z-)\E+-_A=+-HLHREHN K&
EAEMRM EEEET (FI5E21 (b)) LA #253,375,0007C
(#)5 NR#E224,405,0007T) H48 M [E8E B 34,579,0008 2
AEER - FAEARMNEDEBECRERBES
e -
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20 Retained earnings 20 BHELKE
RMB’000
AR®TR
At 1 January 2018 R-E-N\E—B—AH 1,548,051
Profit for the year FEEHE 412,106
Dividend distribution &5 BE (42,400)
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\E+ZHA=+—H 1,917,757
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE—NE—R—H 1,917,757
Profit for the year FEMHE 372,580
Dividend distribution RAHE (33,074)
At 31 December 2019 R-E—-h&E+ZA=1+—H 2,257,263
21 Employee share-based arrangements 21 RAIRKREH
(a) Share option scheme (a) HERRHERE

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 11 July 2005 (the “2005
Option Scheme”). At the general meeting of the Company convened on 8
May 2015, the Company terminated the 2005 Option Scheme and adopted
a new share option scheme (the “2015 Option Scheme”) with the validity
period of ten years, under which the directors may, at their discretion,
grant options to any qualifying participants to subscribe for shares in the
Company, subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.

The vesting period of the share options granted is 4 years and the vesting
schedule is 25% after 12 months from the grant date, 25% after 24
months from the grant date, 25% after 36 months from the grant date, and
25% after 48 months from the grant date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORI ERRME

21 Employee share-based arrangements (continued)

(a) Share option scheme (continued)

(i)

Movements in share options

Movements in the number of shares under the options outstanding and
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

REIRMREE (1K)

Bk EatE ()

REREER

HATTEARBRES R REBROIMETITEENE
gWT

2005 Option Scheme

2015 Option Scheme

2005B% g = 2015R% %
No. of No. of Total no.
Average shares Average shares of shares
exercise under the exercise under the under the
price options price options options
SEBFY MERET BERFY MR ET MBEET
TEE Y B B TERE MRS  MERHEH
HKD HKD
per share thousands per share thousands thousands
Gt Fat % Fit Fat
At 1 January 2018 R-E—-N\E—B—AH 2.14 119,922 4,60 38,900 158,822
Exercised (Note 18) BT (P7E18) 2.18 (42,369) 4.60 (5,188) (47 557)
Lapsed/Forfeited BRI,/ BRI 3.4 (1,309) - - (1,309)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—\F
+=-A=+—H 210 76,244 4.60 33,712 109,956
Currently exercisable as at AZB—\F
31 December 2018 +ZBA=+—HW{{E 2.10 76,244 460 23,988 100,232
At 1 January 2019 R_E-hE—HA—H 2.10 76,244 4.60 33,712 109,956
Exercised (Note 18) 217 (HiEE18) 2.21 (13,693) 4.60 (6,812) (20,505)
Lapsed/Forfeited BAM,/ BRI 1.23 (17,417) 4.60 (3,410) (20,827)
At 31 December 2019 R-B—hE
+=-B=+-—H 2.4 45,134 4.60 23,490 68,624
Currently exercisable as at RIEBE-h&
31 December 2019 +-B=+—H7{TE 2.4 45,134 4.60 23,490 68,624

As at 31 December 2019, the expected retention rate was assessed to be

70% (2018: 70%).

NZE-AF+-A=1+—0 BAEIREXAEN0%
(ZZ=N\F : 70%)

TE-NEER SRERE4KEERAT 11



P

21 Employee share-based arrangements (continued) 21 RIRRE (&)

(a) Share option schemes (continued) (a) FEBRHERTE (W)

(ii) Outstanding share options (i) RITMERERRE
Details of the expiry dates, exercise prices and the respective number of RIE-NE+ZA=+—BERZZ—\F+=ZA=+
shares under the options which remained outstanding as at 31 December —B ' MATENBERENTSHE TFEERSENE
2019 and 31 December 2018 are as follows: BEEBNT :

Number of shares under options

FR R T e B B
Expiry date within Range of exercise price 2019 2018
E/HA B fTEEGR —E2-hE —E-N\F
HKD per share thousands thousands
B /SR Fit Fit
2019 1.15-1.87 = 22,501
2020 3.11-4.25 1,721 10,978
2021 3.75-4.28 8,497 10,626
2023 1.31-1.34 16,072 17,840
2024 2.66 12,844 14,299
2025 4.60 23,490 33,712
68,624 109,956
Weighted average remaining HRSR AR 17150 Y B AR A 0 2
contractual life of options FHFBEREBR
outstanding at end of period 3.62 433
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORI ERRME

21 Employee share-based arrangements (continued)
(b) Share award plan

The board of directors adopted a share award plan (“2009 Plan”)
on 25 March 2009 for the purpose of recognising the rewarding the
contributions of the eligible persons. The Group adopted a new share
award plan on 4 December 2015 (“2015 Plan”) and the shares under 2009
Plan were transferred to 2015 Plan. The share award plan is valid and

effective for a period of 10 years commencing from the adoption date.

21
(b)

RIRA%EH ()

T T
ARTEFERBEAFZ A= THERBRARE
AWiE (HE-FTL) BBROHERERYE
ERARATIRHAER - EBR-F-HF+=AM
ARAFRGSMIE (HE-F-E)) HE-%
PAORGEHEHE-F T -

No. of shares
held for the share

No. of awarded

award plan shares Balance
B ipsEmEE BRipREEE

BREE BTHE #at

thousands thousands thousands

Fit Tt Fit

At 1 January 2018 —Z-\f¥—-HA-H 72,506 (54,762) 17,744

Purchased and held BEWHE 34,579 - 34,579

Awarded &l - (30,780) (30,780

Lapsed BRM - 2416 2,416

At 31 December 2018 —E-\F+-A=+-A 107,085 (83,126) 23,959
Weighted average remaining contractual life  HAR iR 7T1E B9 AR 17 £ ED &0

of the awarded shares outstanding at end IEEHFIGHA FER

of period 1.46

At 1 January 2019 —Z-n1¥—H—H 107,085 (83,126) 23,959

Awarded B¥ - (19,178) (19,178)

Lapsed B - 3,867 3,867

At 31 December 2019 —E-hE+=-B=1+—H 107,085 (98,437) 8,648
Weighted average remaining contractual life  HAZR i AR 17{2 B9 AR 52 )&

of the awarded shares outstanding at end INEE T A R HR
of period 1.43

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 19,178,000 shares (2018:
30,780,000 shares) were awarded to certain directors, senior management
and key employees of the Company.

As at 31 December 2019, the expected retention rate was assessed to be
100% (2018: 100%).

BE-Z-AF+-_A=+—H RAESNafE
1B A BE4%19,178,000 (= — J\4F : 30,780,000)f% 22 &)

Bedn o

RIBE-NF+ZA=+—H B E8IREBER
100% (ZZ—/\F < 100%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ORI RME

21
(b)

(c)

174 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited

Employee share-based arrangements (continued)

Share award plan (continued)

The fair value of the awarded shares was calculated based on the market
price of the Company’s shares at the respective grant date. The expected

dividends during the vesting period have been taken into account when
assessing the fair value of these awarded shares.

The weighted average fair value of shares awarded during the year 31
December 2019 was HKD6.90 per share (equivalent to approximately

RMB6.18 per share).

Details of the awarded shares awarded during 2019

(b)

REIRMREE (])

B RS Rh & (%)
ZREOHNLABEASEERARARNOTISHER
AE - EEEBROO AR BERE ERTRESSH
HOTRHIRCE. ©

E-Z-NFORSHAZBNRM METFH AL EE
RERERCIT (HAEBRARKEIST) -

ZE-hFRGREBM

Number of
awarded shares Average fair
Date of award awarded value per share Vesting period
B R iemat= BERFY
$EAH BTHE [REAEE THESH
(thousands) (HK$)
Fat b f o
11 January 2019 200 6.77 30 April 2019
ZE-NF-At+—H —Z-NAFMA=1+H
20 May 2019 2,000 7.89 30 April 2020 - 30 April 2023
“T-NFRAZTH —E_ZEMA=+AE_S-_=fMA=+A
9 July 2019 16,978 6.78 30 April 2020 - 30 April 2023
—E-NFtANAE —Z_ZFMA=+HE-_ZE_=FMA=+H

Cash-settled share award plan

The board of directors adopted a cash-settled share award plan on 8
August 2018 (being the 25th anniversary of the Group) to recognise the
contributions of the eligible employees. Pursuant to the plan, the Group
granted 7,104,000 cash-settled share awards to the eligible employees.
These awards will be vested to whom remains hired by the Group as at
31 December 2020. RMB16,939,000 were recognised in employee benefit
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2019 under the above plan.

As at 31 December 2019, the expected retention rate was assessed to be
80% (2018: 80%).
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* NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Y e
22 Borrowings 22 fE&®
2019 2018
0% —N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFT
Current bk i
Short-term borrowings, unsecured RHERRITIE R - BHEA 169,625 272,500
Short-term borrowings, secured (a) RHERRITIER - () 30,000 5,000
Current portion of long-term borrowings, unsecured RESRTEZPEBADN - BEA - 23,625
199,625 301,125
At 31 December 2019, all the Group’s borrowings were repayable within 1 BE2-_Z-NE+-A=+—0 £EMBHEZHE
year and denominated in RMB. FNEE  WAAREE -

The Group’s bank borrowings bear average interest rate of 4.69% (2018:

4.78%) per annum.

T—)\5F : 478%)

ARENRTETNERFOERFFEB469% (=

The carrying amount of the current borrowings approximate their fair BREAEAIERFERENTETK  REEROIE
value, as the impact of discounting using a current borrowing rate is not HAEEEAREBRR -

significant.

(a) As at 31 December 2019, Guangzhou Deeking Small-Loan Co., Ltd. @ BEZZ-NFTZA=1+—H BEMNESE

had short-term borrowings of RMB30,000,000 with interest rate
of 9.5%, which was secured by RMB50,690,000 of loans to third
parties held by itself.

The Group issued US$175,000,000 4.0% convertible bond on 14
April 2014. The bond matured in five years from the issue date. The
bond could be converted into the Company’s ordinary shares, at the
holder’s option at any time on or after 25 May 2014 up to the close
of business on the 10th day prior to the maturity date (both days
inclusive), at HK$3.90 (fixed in US dollars at US$0.50) per share.
The values of the liability component and the equity conversion
component were determined at issuance of the bond. The liability
component was subsequently stated at amortised cost until it is
extinguished on conversion or maturity of the bond. The residual
amount, representing the value of the equity conversion component,
was accounted for as a conversion option reserve included in equity.

During March and April 2018, the convertible bonds were fully converted
into approximately 348,075,000 shares of the Company of HK$0.025 each
at a conversion price of HK$3.90 per ordinary share.

EHARARFE—BEHER30,000,000T AR
ﬁ% F%95% LB FH55 950,690,000 A R
ZHERER-

b)) AKER-ZT-NENATOEZETRAEAR
70175,000,0007C * A Z4.0%H) AT E R FE 5 o b E
%#%ﬁﬁﬁﬁi#ﬂ@é@]%ﬁ c ABRELFRE

EERESBARKD  REL-FT-—DNF
ﬂﬂ “THRgZREEIHANTE (BEE
ERMA) £ RBRARE QL2 RERERERE
R BIRERERINESR (ATARERSE
ELR0S0ET) - BEREZERARRBHNE
ERFTEFRHET - AEAKSHRERAE
BRAGEEERFNRBRARND - T8A
EAFRBHNEENARSAKBHEENES
EBFIRAEBARSRE -

BT \FZAZNAHE - JERERD2HER
F#2348,075,0008 R AR - BAx0.0258% - BAER
AE%3.9075H -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR
22 Borrowings (continued) 22 f&® (&)
The convertible bonds recognised in the statement of financial position BN RERN T BRERTEWNT

are calculated as follows:

RMB’000
AR®TT
Liability component at 31 December 2017 RIE—tFE+ZA=+—HBAEHEBH 1,117,678
Interest accrued MNEER 5,259
Interest paid BAFIE (5,100)
Effect of currency translation INEFEERYE (41,906)
Conversion of convertible bonds BEIE (1,075,931)
Liability component at 31 December 2018 RIE-NE+ZA=+-—-HBAEHEBG -
Interest expense on the liability component of the bond was calculated at AERESNEBEENTHNFISERRAERERN X
the effective interest rate of 4.22% per annum. 4.20% =+ E & BEAEH
23 Deferred income tax 23 BEFRFR
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax EEMEHEAEMETMBHRAGEIHT
liabilities is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NE —Z-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT AREFTT
Deferred income tax assets: EILABREE
— Deferred income tax assets to be recovered after —BBI2EABKEETERERHEE
more than 12 months 31,094 27,893
— Deferred income tax assets to be recovered within —E1EARAREIMELESHREE
12 months - -
Total deferred tax assets BEFFBSREESH 31,094 21,893
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions (kBRI S48 EH SR FERI & & (31,094) (27,844)
Net deferred tax assets BEFRFREERHE = 49
Deferred income tax liabilities: EIEAERAE -
— Deferred income tax liability to be recovered after —BENEABERNELEMEHARE
more than 12 months (216,385) (204,714)
— Deferred income tax liability to be recovered within —EREARKRENELEMEHARE
12 months (1,788) (2,449)
Total deferred tax liabilities BEMBRARSH (218,173) (207,163)
Set-off of deferred tax assets pursuant to set-off provisions — {KIRIKSE AR E IR BT S B E 31,094 21,844
Net deferred tax liabilities BERBRARSEE (187,079) (179,319)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO SRR MR

23 Deferred income tax (continued) 23 REMBR (M)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the FNELEMEHREENEE ORAEREARFER—H
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the HEAKE) WEENT

same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Recognised

in the
At1 Recognised in At 31 income At 31
January — theincome  December  statement  December
218 statement 2018 (Note 31) 2019
3 R
N ZE-0\F EHREFRP “Z-1F

B\ ERERT +=A [ ] +=A
—A-H B2 Zt-R  (W#1) =+-H
RMB'000 RMB0OO ~ RMB’'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBETR ARETR ARRTR ARRTRT ARWTE

Deferred income tax assets ERFMEHEE
~ Impairment loss on financial assets - SREERERK 15,542 285 15,827 (1,203) 14,624
— Amortisation of computer software - Bl E 4305 (2,079) 2,246 (1,218) 1,028
~ Deferred government grant —- BREBITER 9,015 805 9,820 2,682 12,502
- Lease liabilties -HEEE - - - 2,940 2,40
26,882 (989) 21,893 3,201 31,004
Deferred income tax liabilities ERFMEHAR
- Deferred development costs —ERREKA (70,083) (13,129) (83,212) (4,081) (87,293)
— Fair value surplus of intangible assets - B BEEE (10,720) 6,737 (3,983) 1,897 (2,086)
~ Fair value gains on investment properties - REWMEL L BEKE (108,622) (11,346)  (119,968) (5,912)  (125,880)
- Right-0f-use assels - RRREE - - - (2914)  (2914)
(189425 (1773%)  (207,183)  (11,010)  (218,173)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards B EEEMA AT SEE AR AR RENE BER
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through the MR ENBERENTE  AZARRUERALE
future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2019, due to the B CEREERELHEHEE AR T N&F+
fact that the directors are not certain whether it is probable that future AT HERESELETRE REERKAENE
taxable profit would be available to the Group within the validity period REOBRANEE R ANEAHIE - AEEWE AR
of the deductible tax losses, the Group did not recognise deferred income RAE AR EEARE644121000T (ZE—-NEF+
tax assets of RMB135,722,000 (2018: RMB97,794,000) in respect of tax ZA=+—H: ARM459559,0007T) HEEFT B E
losses amounting to RMB644,121,000 (2018: RMB459,559,000) in certain EARE135,722000C (ZE—-NEF+=-A=+—8:
Group’s subsidiaries, which can be carried forward to offset against future ARM7794000T) BE-_ZE-_EFE T -_EMH
taxable income, all of which will expire in 2020 to 2024 respectively. R o

TE-NEER SRERB4KEERAR 177



24 Trade and other payables

24 EEfHIRRR R HE &

2019 2018

—Z-1%¥ —E-N\&F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AER®TT ARETT

Trade payables (a) and (b) JEfTIR SR (a)(b) 15,393 20,568
Salary and staff welfare payables ENEHERETER 218,556 183,344
Deposits payable [ERRE S 133,611 69,831
Accrual for expenses HRER 73,015 61,211
Value-added tax("VAT") and other taxes payables [EREERREMT S 71,732 89,756
Construction payable (d) [ TAZFN(d) 69,028 -
Government funds payable to project partners (c) EGEREANBRES() 24,851 -
Unpaid business acquisition consideration REHERIEEE Y E 8,175 88,180
Others Hity 70,263 67,826
684,624 580,716

Less: non-current portion (d) B FEREIA() (69,028) -
Gurrent portion mENEH 615,596 580,716

(@) The fair values of trade and other payables approximate their
carrying amounts. The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and
other payables are mainly denominated in RMB.

178 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited  Annual Report 2019

() ENRAREMENHZAABEROKRSERE
{BfE « AR ZRA KB R 50 5 E A B 3K
HZRABEEEUARKEE -



24 Trade and other payables (continued)

(b)

At 31 December 2019, the aging analysis of the trade payables
based on invoice date is as follows:

24

B RRR A MERR ()
b)) M-B-AF+-A=1+—0 KEBEEMIKRR
BEZEZAHNRRITAT -

2019 2018

—Z-hE —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETF T

0 - 180 days 0—180K 9,100 13,539
181 - 360 days 181 — 360K 669 3,768
Over 360 days FEEERIIPN 5,624 3,261
15,393 20,568

The Group entered into certain government development projects.
According to the underlying contracts of these projects, the relevant
government departments transfer the project funds to the Group
directly and the Group is authorized to allocate the project funds to
other third parties involved in the projects as the Group’s partners.

It mainly represents the Group’s payables to the construction
company for the construction costs incurred relating to Shenzhen
Kingdee Software Park Phase Il project.

(€ AKE2ETHAMHERR - REELABNG
RAE HBRGHHABEE A ERBBEE
REERERAREEDEGELIEARE
MaEBH2ERANEZT -

() FEXEEEAKEEAREAAXNOFRIIE
ERHE_RTROERER -
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25 Deferred income 25 SEEEWA

2019 2018
—Z-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARET T
Deferred government grants (a) EIEBIE B #iR() 125,450 102,081

(a) Movement of deferred government grants is as follows: @) EEHAEWAHEHNT
2019 2018
—Z-hE —E-N\E
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR AREFIT
At 1 January ®—BA—H 102,081 84,514
Additions i 27,139 38,827
Recognised in the income statement RERRER (3,770) (21,260)
At 31 December »+Z=-A=+—-8 125,450 102,081

It represents cash received from government for financing various  ZFIEBAEAEEREMEREE MEHTERNESY
research and development projects conducted by the Group. The 2 o ftFBBEMEME ER AL RIBEN EHHTLE
cash received will be recognised as income when the research and (BEREABENFELER TKE) BARBRE -
development cost are amortised in expense and certain stipulated

conditions required by government are met (usually when the

related development project is completed).
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26

Revenue from contracts with customers 26 HERZHMESRAEEMKA

The Group’s revenue includes revenues from ERP business and cloud SENKABECEEREENEXEBURERE X
services business. Revenue is stated net of applicable VAT in the PRC and %o WAEMBRBEROFEHEER WABEUTE
comprises the following: A

2019 2018

—Z-hE —T-N\&F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARYFT

ERP business CEEREEAEER 2,011,995 1,959,402

~ Sales of software and hardware products — HEHHRIFBER 945,631 936,620

— Software implementation services - B RERY 488,476 482,209
— Software solution consulting, maintenance, —BARR #EH B ARR

upgrade and other supporting services HEi SRR 577,888 540,573

Cloud business ERBES 1,313,595 849,256

— Enterprise cloud services — rEERS 927,375 605,095

— Finance cloud services - BBERS 169,873 85,724

~ Industry cloud services —TEERS 142,901 107,081

— Other cloud services — HERS 73,446 51,356

3,325,590 2,808,658
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' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A G R KIS
27 Expenses by nature 21 REHESENER
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses, SIRPSHERA - SHEREEER - HREKFAZRA
research and development costs, administrative expenses and net THERREREERGRABERBRELFENNER
impairment losses on financial assets and contract assets are analysed as AT
follows:
2019 2018
—Z-h& —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TTR ARETF T
Research and development costs MRERERAE
Amounts incurred B4 650,499 500,301
Less: development costs capitalised B B2 BB (477,654) (379,237)
Add: amortisation M BRI BER AR 413,982 284,094
586,827 405,158
Employee benefit expenses (Note 29) BTEFFAS (M3E29) 2,177,477 1,799,747
Less: amount included in development costs B BRRMERRAEREA &5 (584,632) (442,631)
1,592,845 1,357,116
Depreciation (Note 7) & (MizEr) 36,132 47,691
Less: amount included in development costs B BERMERBEERAZEE (6,031) (5,994)
30,101 41,697
Outsourcing services e RTE B 385,745 342,379
Sales promotion and advertising HEHRER A 194,728 194,617
Cost of inventories consumed (Note 15) EREFERAE (MF15) 150,363 105,393
Rental and utilities HekiEHER 23,321 45,025
Traveling EIRE 68,876 55,056
Office expenses WAE 30,779 47 462
Other taxes and surcharges Hb e KK m 42,781 44,582
Impairment charge of goodwill (Note 9) BERRER (F9) 31,187 -
Training costs &ilE 28,032 20,989
Professional service fees BERBKER 21,791 22,212
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENTE 24,611 -
Amortisation of trademarks, licenses and copyrights (Note 9) 791 - S ek sy (FiEH9) 8,571 6,915
Amortisation of computer software for own use (Note 9) BB E I (PHEE9) 2,550 8,097
Amortisation of customer relationship (Note 9) EPREEN (T:9) 5,230 5,230
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) T b RS (FisEe) = 1,860
Auditors’ remuneration BB # & 6,630 3,100
- Audit services — E5t R 3,400 3,100
— Non-audit services — FEH RS 3,230 -
Net impairment losses on financial assets and contract assets & B EEN & R EE R BB % EE 48,416 47,697
Others Hith 34,570 38,253
Total Bt 3,317,954 2,792,838
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* NOTES TO THE OLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Y e
28 Other income and gains - net 28 Rt ARFIF - B8R
2019 2018
—Z-h&E At:3
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARET T
Other income Hfttr A
VAT refund (2) BERIRE() 164,308 178,529
VAT input tax surplus deduction EETEIER MR 3,422 -
Government subsidy income BT R a5 31,317 43,347
Rental income — net (Note 10) ReWA — %58 (H:E10) 73,243 72,941
Interest income from loan to related parties BB R E A 19,311 -
291,601 294,817
Other gains HtuFl @
Realised and unrealised gains on financial assets IR EBETEBEZETABREN
at FYPL (b) CRHEEEERUE L AEREED) 26,220 44,334
Gains from dilution of investments in associates (Note 11) BECERERERERNS (1) - 714
Revaluation gain on investment upon losing of control RAREIEGIR M ERS K
(Note 11) GEDY - 5318
Gains on disposal of associates (c) BEHLRAFIEC) 47,426 -
Others Hip 10,910 (2,212)
84,556 48,154
376,157 342 971
(@)  According to the current tax regulations in the PRC, the development and @) REREARSREBRIRUCEE - HHERETHEE

sales of computer software are subject to VAT with an applicable rate of
16%. From 1 April 2019, according to the circular “2019 No. 39 Notice of
Ministry of Finance, the General Administration of Taxation and The General
Administration of Customs”, the applicable rate for software industry has
been changed from 16% to 13%.

In 2011, the State Council issued a circular regarding the “Taxation Policy
for Encouraging the Development of Software and Integrated Circuits
Industry” (Guo Fa [2011] No.4) (the “Circular”). Pursuant to the Circular,
software enterprises engaged in the sales of self-developed software in the
PRC are entitled to VAT refund to the extent that the effective VAT rate of the
sales of the software in the PRC exceeds 3% of the sales amounts.

It mainly represented investment return from wealth management products
that are measured at FVPL.

It mainly represented the disposal gain of RMB47,509,000 from disposal of
the Group’s 45% interest in Qingdao Xinrun (Note 11).

MEEER16%EEERE - B2019F4A18 1 R
(BB HEER,/ BEEENE019F H395%) -
HHELERTRH16%HEA13% -

E-Z——5F BBRARNE CE-SERATER
MEREREXBRE THRROBA) (BH2011) $4
SR o RIRARA EREARKNMERAHER
BTRSEESHERNEE  BEDEARAMESR
NHEEERERNERBENRT X BAREERN
3% - AIATER -

FZRIBRTULAL BEFEBEEZHHARGENOIE
EEREMOMBILA -

FRIERREASEESBEBNNNBERG B
187347509000 AR (FI5E11) o
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29 Employee benefit expenses 29 MIRFRX

2019 2018
—Z-n%¥ —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARET
Wages, salaries and bonus I #Eh RS 1,778,679 1,453,937
Staff welfare B IER 49,547 47,060
Pension scheme contributions (a) RIRGTERT() 245,303 207,248
Share-based compensation VAR BETE R REET 2 103,948 91,502
2,177,471 1,799,747

(a) Pensions - defined contribution plans (a) BHE-BRERFHE

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement schemes
organised by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC.
The Group is required to make monthly contributions to the retirement
schemes at rates ranging from 12% to 20%, depending on the location of
the subsidiaries, based on the basic salaries of eligible employees. The
local government authorities are responsible for the pension liabilities
to retired employees. Forfeited contributions made by the Group on
behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior to full vesting of the
contributions cannot be used by the employer to reduce the existing level
of contributions.
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* NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO SRR MR

29 Employee benefit expenses (continued) 29 MIWFIRFX (&)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (h) HESSHFHAAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for AEEAEBERUSREMOATRERL (Z2—N
the year include two (2018: two) director whose emoluments are reflected F M) EF - MM [E3 RITRBEOF
in the analysis presented under “Benefits and interests of directors AR | (M3T40) 2BAATRE - RFEELH =
and chief executive officer” (Note 40). The emoluments payable to the AL (ZZ—NF: =) ATHEFMOT :

remaining three (2018: three) individuals during the year are as follows:

2019 2018
—Z-hE —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER%TT AREF T
Basic salaries, housing allowances, other allowances and BEX%e  BRZEL - HEHA

benefits in kind EWFI=E 5,276 5,568
Share-based compensation rEREER 5,479 6,994
Bonuses ®e 3,009 4547
Contribution to pension scheme RIRE SRR 187 197
13,951 17,306

The emoluments fell within the following bands: BEHMETIESHBER

Number of individuals

AB
2019 2018
ZB-hE —T-N\F
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) iR (AEBHE)
HKD4,500,001 — HKD5,000,000 78 %4 500,0017 £ 78 #5,000,0007C 1 -
HKD5,000,001 — HKD5,500,000 78 #5,000,0017T & 78 #HKD5,500,0007T = 1
HKD5,500,001 — HKD6,000,000 5 15,500,0017C 2 4 #HKDS6,000,0007T 2 1
HKDS,000,001 ~ HKDS,500,000 6,000,001 2784 HKD6,500,0007 - -
HKD8,500,001 - HKDS,000,000 58,500,001 T2 7 A5HKD9,000,0007 - -
HKD9,000,001 - HKDS,500,000 9,000,001 T2 7 #5HKD9,500,0007 - 1
3 3
During the financial year, no any fee was paid or receivable by any of the HZMBEEN - Ll =ZEAIRIHRBRERE
said three individuals as an inducement to join or upon join the Company. B{EBMASEN S IALRARREE
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30 Finance income/(costs) — net 0 MBBABF-BE
2019 2018
—Z-hE —T-N\&F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TT ARETT
Finance income BB
— Interest income — FBHA 19,768 29,444
Finance costs BITERKR
— Interest on borrowings and lease liabilities - ERREEEBENTE (14,398) (17,624)
— Net foreign exchange losses on financing activities — BE R EINEFE B & - (12,857)
(14,398) (30,481)
5,370 (1,037)
31 Income tax expense 3 FRRER

Taxation on the PRC profits is calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the PRC.

TEREHBRREBETEARIMEENERNAE
Bk - WHAFEEHOBFRABER DETHER -

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETF T

Current income tax BEHIRTEH
— Current tax on profits for the year — REBFER KR EH 31,017 34,600
— Over-provision in prior year - RBEURIFE (8,493) (14,567)
Deferred income tax EEFTEH 7,809 18,727
30,333 38,760

(@) No provision for profits tax in the Cayman Islands and Hong Kong
has been made as the Group has no assessable profits for the years

in those jurisdictions.

(b) In 2016, a tax law [2016] No.49 has been enacted that entity can
register for the National Important Software Enterprise (“NISE”) in
tax bureau if the entity complies with relevant requirements. Based
on management’s assessment, it is highly probable that Kingdee
China will meet those requirements. Therefore, Kingdee China
used a preferential corporate income tax rate of 10% for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 10%) to calculate income tax. The
application of preferential tax rate stated above is subject to critical
estimates of the management of the Group (Note 4.1(e)).
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31

Income tax expense (continued)

(©)

Kingdee Deeking was qualified as a software enterprise by Shenzhen
Software Industry Association on 8 October 2015 and was entitled
to tax exemption for two years and thereafter to a preferential
rate at half of the corporate income tax rate for three years. In
addition, based on management’s assessment, it is highly probable
that Kingdee Deeking will also meet the requirements for NISE.
Therefore, Kingdee Deeking used a preferential corporate income tax
rate of 10% for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 10%) to
calculate income tax. The application of preferential tax rate stated
above is subject to critical estimates of the management of the
Group (Note 4.1(g)).

Kingdee Tianyan Middleware was consistently qualified as a
High-tech Enterprise from September 2017 and was entitled to a
preferential corporate income tax rate of 15% in 2019 (2018: 15%).

Beijing Kingdee Management Software Co., Ltd. was consistently
qualified as High-tech Enterprise from December 2017 and were
entitled to a preferential corporate income tax rate of 15% in 2019
(2018: 15%).

Guanyi was consistently qualified as High-tech Enterprise from
November 2016 and were entitled to a preferential corporate income
tax rate of 15% in 2019 (2018: 15%, a preferential rate at half of the
corporate income tax rate for new software enterprises).

Shanghai Kingdee Deeking Cloud Computing Co., Ltd. was qualified
as High-tech Enterprise from 2016 to 2019 and was entitled to a
preferential corporate income tax rate of 15% in 2019 (2018: 15%).

Kingdee Vehicle was qualified as High-tech Enterprise from 2018 to
2021 and was entitled to a preferential corporate income tax rate of
15% in 2019 (2018: 15%).

31

REREA (K)

()

“TNFFR SRERBHEERRAF

ERGEEEFEARAA (2RGEE) R_F—
EFETANBRAIEHTEHBER TRFER
BE UEEXMEZRFNEERE - 45 &
REERENGT  2RRERA/LANEERR
HEXRE-Alt BE-T-NAFT-A=
T-BHLENFE SRR RA0BHOEIHE
(ZF—N\F 1 10%) > LARAFHREEHEER
REEEEZBNEAME (ME416) -

SHEREMNBHR_Z—LFNARRBER
BxmiRimesx EEERMAS (2N
F 1% MEEREECEMER -

EREGERRMNBERAAN_T—LF+=
ABRERBRRHRMEE  EEERAI5%
(ZF-N\F  15%)MBBREAELEMEH -

LEERBHERHARATN TR+
- ARREARRANRELE  EEERA
6% BB 5 L RAT AR - (ZF—N\F
16%  HE SRR ORI E PR 10 R
)

LEERGEEHERRRAN T —RFE-
T-NFRRAERBRSHRMER - ERER
B15% (Z2—N\F 15N EEREAE LR
FREH -
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STATEMENTS

A PR R AR
31 Income tax expense (continued) 3 FRRER (&)
(e)  Other PRC subsidiaries of the Group applied the tax rate of 25%. ) EithEFRARERSB%NEEREHHE
The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the AEEERAFBER EHENMEHERRR
theoretical amount that would have arisen using the principal rate of hE ARERMBICERGHEER KT ENFE
the PRC corporate income tax due to the following: BETR - ABE2R TR
2019 2018
ZE2-hE —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TT ARETFT
Profit before tax BB AR 396,131 448,030
Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate of 25% BEERRB%TENTE
(2018: 25%) (ZZ—N\F : 25%) 99,033 112,008
Tax effects of: -7
Preferential tax rates EXEEMRE (70,095) (67,491)
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset WEBRRELRSHEENHK
was recognised B8 41,538 35,703
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TANBMER 12,092 7,286
Re-measurement of deferred tax due to a change in HMEEBEMFT2REMEHEE
applicable tax rate - (4,288)
Additional deductible allowance for research and ARG 2 BB
development expenses (43,742) (29,891)
Over-provision in prior year VAR E B3R TR (8,493) (14,567)
30,333 38,760
32 Dividends 32 BR
2019 2018
—Z-hE ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Proposed final dividend BIRFREA 37,000 33,000
A final dividend of RMB1.1 cents (equivalent to approximately HKD1.2 REEBROBRRBERS L $EERBL-ZT—N
cents) per ordinary share, totaling RMB37,000,000 out of the share FTFZA=T-HUEFERERGRBAARE SR
premium account of the Company, for the year ended 31 December 119 (BE125) B EARFNRKTEERSH
2019, is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting. 3 AR #537,000,0007T o ARA GBS MR R R AR L IE
This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in the JERIARE ©

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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33
(a)

(b)

Earnings per share 33 SBhka
Basic (a) &E=F
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable EAGREEREBEEBRARAENBFEANTE - K
to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary NERBETEBRMMETAHEFE  BTRER
shares in issue during the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased and RO REFEMEE RFEHLTAR -
held for share award plan.
2019 2018
—Z-hE —E-)N\F
Profit attributable to owners of the Company IRABBRFLRENIBEA
(RMB'000) (AR#FT) 372,580 412,106
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in BRTEERMOMEFHE (T
issue (thousands) 3,233,638 3,125,266
Basic earnings per share (RMB cents per share) EXEREBH (BRARES) 11.52 13.19
Diluted (h)y #®#E

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has two categories of
dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options and share awards. For
the share options and share awards, the number of shares that could have
been issued upon the exercise of all dilutive share options and share
awards less the number of shares that could have been issued at fair value
(determined as the average annual market price of the Company’s shares)
for the same total proceeds is added to the denominator as the number of
ordinary shares issued for no consideration.

BESRUERRMEAIBENEEEBRELARE
REBEDETERAROMNETIRYE - ARAE=8
ARBORETER - TERES  BRENRDRZE
AHE o TEREFRINTFRIREARTRR @
FHBERRALHENEERRNBE & - HRNBRE
M R E - RERTEMMBRNOERER &
ERDAEE (BEARARRDOFHEETE) 7
BANBNEE - A LHAHENROHEE - BERR
BRETENERDBTORNDEBELLER - FREE
RIEDE - (EREFREMETZEEBR -
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33 Earnings per share (continued) 33 Sk (&)

2019 2018
—Z-hE —E-N\&F
Profit attributable to owners of the Company IRABEBRELFESBEEA
(RMB’000) (AR®FT) 372,580 412,106
Interest expense on the convertible bonds (net of tax) AERELRFETE (MKRHE)
(RMB'000) (ARETT) - 5,259
Profit used to determine diluted earnings per share  FIEALEERBSRKE
(RMB’000) (AE%FT) 372,580 417,365
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue B {7 EREIMIET Y
(thousands) (AE%BTTR) 3,233,638 3,125,266
Adjustments for: o
— Assumed conversion of convertible bonds (thousands) - BB ATERESNER (T5) - 94,808
— Share options (thousands) — BIRAE (F51) 55,771 81,536
— Share awards (thousands) — ine@Et E (Fat) 32,565 49,874
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for HERESRESMHEER -
diluted earnings per share (thousands) MIEFLE (T 3,321,974 3,351,484
Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents per share) HESERKE (BRAR%S) 11.22 12.45
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34 Cash flow information
(a) Cash generated from operations

M EEELEMHSE
(a) WEEEEMAS

2019 2018
ZE-hf —E-)\fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREFTL
Profit before income tax BRET BRI 396,131 448,030
Adjustments for: HRER -
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment -THE  THRRENTE 30,101 41,697
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 8) - FREEENTE (W) 24,611 -
— Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment -RETBE  IRREENERE 2,791 1,285
— Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) - TifE R (o) = 1,860
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) - EMEESY (H:H9) 430,333 304,336
~ Finance (income)/costs - net (Note 30) - B ORA) / BR3E (FF30) (5,370) 1087
~ Share-based compensation (Note 29) - BREER (H:9) 103,948 91502
— Share of losses of associates (Note 11) AERELRRENEBMNE (Fn) 33,026 4240
— Fair value gains on investment properties (Note 10) - hﬁ EmELA EEEHUEE (H10) (39,994) (34,516)
~ Realised and unrealised gains on financial assets at FVPL - MUnf BB AELHH ABREN

(Note 28) LHEECERE RAERGS (F2) (26,220) (44334)
— Gains from dilution of equily in associates (Note 11) -BEESBERE (W) = (714)
— Revaluation gains on investment upon losing of control - REEEHIBNESRE (FE1)

(Note 11) = (6,318)
~ Interest income from loan to related parties (Note 28) — BB A B M (F528) (19,311) -
~ Impairment charge of goodwill (Note 9) - BERERNE (:9) 31,187 -
~ Net impairment losses on financial assets and contract asses - PREENERAFE 48,416 47,697
— Gains on disposal of associates (Note 26) - REBELFFIE (M) (47,426) -

962,223 796,802

Changes in working capital (excluding loans to third parties GEESEY (T2 BEEXBRE=FER

from the micro-credit business) MFRERM) -

- Inventories -zE 1,079 5,61

- Trade and other receivables - YRR R R (39,126) 2,143

— Contract assets and contract obtaining costs - ARABERARBERA (17,690) (61,860)

~ Contract liabilities -AABE 150,241 205,269

- Deferred income 12N 23,369 17567

~ Trade and other payables - BT REMENR 12,855 534
(ash generated from operations excluding net cash outflow in REEENES (15| BEELER

loans to third parties from the micro-credit business E-HERNFRENL) 1,002,951 1,009,904
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34 Cash flow information (continued)
(a) Cash generated from operations (continued)

(b)

In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal of

M BEEEMRSE (W)
(a) WEELHRS (H)

ERERERA  HETDE - ITRERBNAEHE

property, plant and equipment comprise: &
2019 2018
—Z-hE —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTF T
Net book amount (Note 7) WREFEE (M5E7) 8,855 2226
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment HETHE ITMNARERNER (2,791) (1,285)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment HERHE « THERERMER 6,064 941
Non-cash transactions (b) HBREXH
There were no significant non-cash investing and financing activities BT NEED AR E L A R H32,158,0007T &
except for the additions to the right-of-use asset of RMB32,158,000 in T \FHAEEERIN RERRNREEEANIE
2019 (Note 8) and the conversion of the convertible bonds in 2018 (Note EE%*X,Q/\? EE) (BIFE22 (b)) ©
22(b).
Net cash reconciliation (c) BEEBE

This section sets out an analysis of net cash and the movements in net
cash for each of the periods presented.

REEI SERRAMITFRENDTNEE -

Net cash 2019 2018
BHRE ZE-h#E —E-N\EF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETF T

Borrowings &% 199,625 301,125
Lease liabilities HERRE 41,623 -
Less: cash and cash equivalents W RERREEEY (1,898,770) (1,452,848)
Net cash FRE (1,657,522) (1,151,723)
Gross debt — fixed interest rates AR — EE % 155,623 301,125
Gross debt — variable interest rates BB — 8% 85,625 -
Less: cash and cash equivalents B BHERBSEEY (1,898,770) (1,452,848)
Net cash FHe (1,657,522) (1,151,723)
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34
(c)

Cash flow information (continued)
Net cash reconciliation (continued)

M EEEEMAS (W)

(c) f(R¥HES

Liabilities from financing

Other assets activities
HidE RBEEHMAEE
Borrowing due Borrowing due
Cash within 1 year after 1 year Total
— R HH —F &35

Re EEA EB @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFTL AREBFL AREFIL AREFL
Net cash as at 1 January 2018 RIE-\E—A—H3%g 1,056,675 (155,026) (1,193,503) (291,854)
Cash flows BenE 380,061 (146,099) 75,825 309,787
Interest accrued less interest paid FERFISHEAFE - - (159) (159)
Foreign exchange adjustments ERFE 16,112 - 41,906 58,018
Non-cash conversion of convertible bonds  3F33 & — Al &5 &AL - - 1,075,931 1,075,931
Net cash as at 31 December 2018 R-Z—N\F+Z-B=+—HFH& 1,452,848 (301,125) - 1,151,723

Liabilities from financing
Other assets activities
HttgE BRETHMAR
Borrowing due Borrowing due
Cash within1year  after 1 year Leases Total
— RIS —FHIH

Be BR B® HE by

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AERBTE AR®TRT AER®TRTE AR%TT AR®TR

Net cash as at 1 January 2019 R=ZB—hE—A—HB85H& 1,452,848 (301,125) - (31,214) 1,120,509
Cash flows RenE 442,924 101,500 - 22,312 566,736
Acquisition — eases kg —HE - - - (32,721) (32,721)
Foreign exchange adjustments fE R HE 2,998 - - - 2,998

Net cash as at 31 December H-ZB—h&E+ZA=+—H

2019 Bh& 1,898,770 (199,625) - (41,623) 1,657,522
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35 Transactions with non-controlling interests

(a) Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss of control in
2019

In January 2019, the Group’s disposed of 20% equity interest in a
wholly-owned subsidiary, Kingdee Internet Finance Co. Ltd. (the “Kingdee
Internet Finance”) at a cash consideration of RMB10,000,000, to a limited
partnership. After the disposal, the Group’s equity interest in Kingdee
Internet Finance was decreased from 100% to 80%. The effect of changes
in the ownership interest of Kingdee Internet Finance on the equity
attributable to owners of the Company during the year is summarised as
follows:

35

HERRNRERNTH
RES-AFFRERFBMRETLREES

“E-NF-A SERZEFARREMASE
BEARE CATEEEERASR ) 20%H B
W0ETREHEHEL—RaBh%k - HER  &F
EERERBLRMNRERI00%MHE00% - R T
SRMERESNECEZFERRNARMEE D
VBRI

2019

“B-nEF

RMB’000

AR®TT

Consideration receivable for the 20% equity interest HE20%E W E R E (B 10,000
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests being disposed of R IR EEE (6,479)
Gains on disposal recognised within equity EERPERLENE 3,921

In November 2019, Kingdee Internet received a capital injection of
RMB100,000,000 from an independent third party. The Group’s equity
interest in Kingdee Internet Finance was diluted from 80% to 64% after
the above capital injection and the Group continues to retain control over
Kingdee Internet Finance as the Group still has more than 50% of its
voting rights. The effect of changes in the ownership interest of Kingdee
Internet Finance on the equity attributable to owners of the Company
during the year is summarised as follows:

“E-NFT-R SREMESRESEYE=1
BIETARE - ELUIB%  SEELGEHRES
R RERB0%NHIEZ64% - RENREH S KREMA
SRMEHIE - BREB0LNREE 2 HRERES
BB RESNZ(CHZFERBRARMAEELH
FEBENT

2019

—Z-hE

RMB’000

AR®TT

Deemed consideration received for the 16% equity interest HE16%7E 2 R £1(E 64,000
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests being disposed of FHERERIREEE (2,739)
Gains on disposal recognised within equity EEZTHEILEFNS 61,261
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35

Transactions with non-controlling interests (continued)

(b) Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss of control in

36

2018

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s subsidiary, Kingdee
Vehicle, received a capital injection of RMB35,000,000 from a third party
— Beijing Souche Network Technology Co, Ltd. After the transaction, the
Group’s equity interest in Kingdee Vehicle was diluted from 70% to 56%
and the Group continues to retain control over Kingdee Vehicle as the
Group still has more than 50% of its voting rights. The effect of changes
in the ownership interest of Kingdee Vehicle on the equity attributable to
owners of the Company during the year is summarised as follows:

0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35
(b)

HERHANERNTS (§)
RIS-N\FEETLRARR (FRERHE)

BE 2 \F+_A=+—RIFE  25EFRA
ERERF =N RRERRRBRAERRA ATH
BIEREE]) BEARES00000THRE - X5
TR - REREE S 575 A0 R th70% % B Z56% -
WEERBHSHTENRA LORFRE - FER
BREAESNERHFANRBRARRENFE AL
BENPEREDT :

2018

—E-N\E

RMB'000

AREBFT

Deemed consideration received for the 14% equity interest HE14% KA E 35,000
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests being disposed of FERERMIEERERE (21,704)
Gains on disposal recognised within equity ERERFERLENE 13,296

Non-cancellable operating leases commitments
The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating leases

with rentals payable monthly. For details of the leasing arrangements,
refer to Note 10.

36

HEHARE - SESKAAMHAA
REMEARERETALEARR  HERAXN -
AREELRHNFE - F2MMEI0-

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\&F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of REMEFRONKEEIASOT -

investment properties are as follows:

Within 1 year THER—F 72,821 45522
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years BE—FETNBBERF 89,261 64,904
162,082 110,426

The Group leases various offices under non-cancellable operating leases
expiring within 9 months to 8 years. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. Upon renewal, the terms of the
leases are renegotiated.

ARBUTTHHENEERE T AHARMER  £EHE
EYEAANZEBFEE - MABTRMKR - AREFMER

1

BER  BOBRRBERAA -
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36 Non-cancellable operating leases commitments 36 #EHERE-SEBREAMBBAA (8)
(continued)
From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use assets for
the operating leases where the Group is a lessee, except for short-term
and low-value leases, see Note 8 for further information.

BE-T-NF-A-Rk ARECAAKEAZBEA
MEEHERATEAEEE  ERAEENEEREE

BIRON - FERMIEES

2019 2018
—Z-hE —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR AREFT
Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable EIBREPAERANRENEN T
operating leases of investment properties not TEHEETHNEERESZNT
recognised in the financial statements are receivable
as follows:
Within 1 year THB—F - 21,753
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years BR—FEATNEARF - 17,652
- 39,405
37 Related party transactions 3 RMEFRR

Mr. Xu Shao Chun, who owned 22.18% of the Company’s shares as at 31
December 2019, is the Company’s single largest shareholder.
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SO R M

37 Related party transactions (continued) 37 WEARS (@)

(a) Transactions with related parties (a) HREHFXZHLE
Save as disclosed in employee share-based arrangements (Note 21) and BE-Z-NF+-A=1T—0 KRT&MHHBRXZ
directors’ emoluments (Note 40) in the consolidated financial statements, E\IJ‘M‘*?F (321 RESRSREEEMS (M
the Group had transactions with related parties for the year ended 31 T40) 5N AEBHMBEERHFIROT -

December 2019 as follows:

2019 2018
—Z-hE —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETFT

Sales of products EmiEeE
- Associates — 15,292 14,578
— Companies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun — BB DERA TR T 2,416 150
17,708 14,728

Sales of services RS HE
— Associates — e 9,461 13,034
— Companigs controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun — R EREREGI S 620 -
10,081 13,034

Rental income EERON
- Associates - 1,910 2,207
— Companies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun — BB DERATIEEIR T 15,282 13,782
17,192 15,989

Interest income FIEWA
— Associates — e 16,422 1,601
— Companies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun -~ ARPFELEMEI M 2,889 5,249
19,311 6,850
Products and services are sold based on terms agreed with the mMRBOEERREERFHFELREBEBRET
counterparties in the ordinary course of business, and the rental rates and BEERETETH  BeMAERb2URENH AR

interest rates are determined in the same way. TER o
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37 Related party transactions (continued) 37 WEARS (@)
(b) Purchases of products and services (h) RERERKHER
2019 2018
—Z-hE — N\
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT AREFT
Purchases of products EnEE
- Associates — B 10,892 5129
— Companies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun - ARPFELEES 998 284
11,890 5,413
Purchases of services REEE
— Associates — g 26,067 21535
— Gompanies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun — AGBDBELEMEHNEE 219 81
26,286 21,616
Products and services purchased from associates and companies EMAREENEENRAMARLELEMEHNE

controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun are carried out on terms agreed with the

counterparties in the ordinary course of business.

(c) Balances with related parties

(c)

BEEN  WIZKE

T o

[

HREHRAEENFRER

RERFEBBRET T EEM R

2019 2018
—2-0¥F —FN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
Receivables from related parties (Note 14) e R E 7 R (MsE14)
- Associates YN 12,047 5117
— Gompanies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun — BGROEFLERTE IR e 3,262 4,076
15,309 9,193
Payable to related parties recorded in “Contract liabilities” :24%4E [ AR & & ] d & fE R EERE 3%
~ Associates =N 9 1,056
Payable to related parties recorded in “Trade payables”  24%7E [ FERT IR 20 ) A0 fE (T BB R /7 208
— Associates —BE QT 132 792
— Companies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun —ABRDEEEIEHIRN T 8 -
140 792
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37 Related party transactions (continued) 37 WEARS (@)
(d) Key management compensation (1) FHREEARMSE
Key management comprise the Company's directors and senior BREZAEBBERAEZRSAEEAE - NARE
management. The compensation paid or payable to key management for BEAEXHEREERBNENKEMNMESMT

employee services is shown below.

2019 2018
ZE-h#E T N\E
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREF T
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits HeLhHMEHESEN 16,413 20,599
Share-based payments AR D BETER S 19,634 20,066
36,047 40,665
(e) Loans to related parties (e) HFRMEHER
2019 2018
ZE-h#E —ZE-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%®TT AREFIT
Loans to companies controlled by BFHROEEEMESD
Mr. Xu Shao Chun FHRER
At 1 January n—AF—H 104,979 104,979
Repayments received from ultimate controlling party L BEREMERIMERKENER (104,979) -
At 31 December WN+-—RA=+—H - 104,979
Loans to an associate RPHELERR
At 1 January n—A—H 616,534 59,160
Loans advanced during the year FREHOER 300,000 587,374
Share of losses of an associate in excess of HEtENBERR
investment cost 2,518 -
Repayments received from related parties BT ER (919,052) (30,000)
At 31 December W+-—RA=+—H - 616,534
Total loans to related parties RYREFERSH = 721,513
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38 Statement of financial position and reserve movement of

the Company

38 FRFMMBRARRERED

As at 31 December

M+=A=+—8
Note 2019 2018
BizE ZE-h#E —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETTT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ARABEFTEEEEFA
BRNTREE 254,491 260,059
Interests in subsidiaries BT NRIRIRE 2,607,529 2,537,538
2,862,020 2,797 597
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables H At FE YR 39,133 38,454
Cash and cash equivalents HERBELZEY 142,776 23,486
181,909 61,940
Total assets HEE 3,043,929 2,859,537
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities FRBARE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERFAR] 304,219 210,196
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables Hin R 60 4
Total liahilities HaR 304,279 210,238
Net assets BEE 2,139,650 2,649,299
Equity e
Share capital %N 80,037 79,585
Share premium WA 2,963,096 2,903,459
Other reserves i () (319,878) (376,085)
Retained earnings B (a) 16,395 42,340
Total equity HEa 2,739,650 2,649,299

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 18 March 2020 and was signed on its behalf.

Xu Shaochun

e 308
Director

EF

NR#E  TRREFEHE -

Lin Bo
L2 ¥
Director

EF

200 Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited  Annual Report 2019

ERARNMBRRREMEFTEN T _TF=A+
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38

(a)

39

Statement of financial position and reserve movement of
the Company (continued)

38 FXFMMBRARREMRED (F)

Reserve movement of the Company (a) AFEBEDH

Retained earnings Other reserves
gl E [
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTF T
At 1 January 2018 —EZ-\f—H—H 70,236 (166,617
Profit for the year FREEM 14,504 -
Shares purchased for share award plan ARHBEFEEENRE - (224,405)
Transfers shares to the awardees upon vesting REBEBRNHEBHRERDA - 14,937
Dividend distribution A AL (42,400) -
At 31 December 2018 —Z-)\f+=-R=+—H 42,340 (376,085)
At 1 January 2019 —E-h¥—HA—H 42,340 (376,085)
Profit for the year FERF 7,129 -
Transfers shares to the awardees upon vesting N BEREROEBAEREA - 56,207
Dividend distribution RS (33,074) -
At 31 December 2019 —E2-nE+ZHA=+—H 16,395 (319,878)

Event occurring after the reporting period 39 TEREHCESFEDNEH

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19 outbreak”)
in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control measures have been
and continued to be implemented across the country/region. The Group
will pay close attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak
and evaluate its impact on the financial position and operating results
of the Group. As at the date on which this set of financial statements
were authorised for issue, the Group was not aware of any material
adverse effects on the consolidated financial statements as a result of the
COVID-19 outbreak.

E-Z-ZENBRENEBMRBRER 2K BX /it
BEEIRERER—RBHMEHEE - ZEEH
ORI UERRERRENER - YT HAHEE
MBRRANEERROTE - BEAMBHRRERESR
MzB  AEEL A MERRHLCTRESHEOEED
HANMBRRELNERNEANTE -
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40 Benefits and interests of directors and chief executive 40 EERTHEZHFISMES
officer
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is set out BUERERITBAHOETMMT
below:
For the year ended 31 December 2019: BEZZ-NFTZA=1T—BLFE:
Employer’s
Allowances  contribution
Discretionary  and benefits to a retirement
Name %] Fees Salaries bonuses in kind (a)(i) benefit scheme Total
Hftiaslm BFES
fHitE%  HENEE
e e hiEgs {BE(a)i) ek et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE AR®TR AER®TRE AERRTE AERRTRT ARRTT
Chairman EY:
Mr. Xu Shao Chun BOBERE 150 2,646 1,783 8,966 53 13,598
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Lin Bo R 150 1,386 796 5,174 53 7,559
Non-executive directors HHITEE
Ms. Dong Ming Zhu ERKUL 150 - - 5 - 155
Mr. Shen Yuan Ching (a) (i) BB S () (i) 176 - 5 - - 176
Independent non-executive directors BV EE7TEE
Mr. Gary Clark Biddle Gary Clark Biddle 524 246 = - ] - 251
Mr. Liu Chia-Yung ARERE 176 - - ) - 181
Mr. Cao Yang Feng (a) (iif) e (a) (i) 176 - - - - 176
Total CH 1,224 4,032 2,579 14,155 106 22,096
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40 Benefits and interests of directors and chief executive
officer (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018:

40 EBRTHREZNFZNER (K)

&

EE-N\FTA=T-HIEFE:

Employer’s
Allowances  contribution

Discretionary  and benefits to a retirement
Name ;3] Fees Salaries bonuses inkind (a)(i) benefit scheme Total
Eftiafley HiL Yot )
fEHE%  HEMEE
e e migke  HEQ () ek et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTLT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%Tn
Chairman FE
Mr. Xu Shao Chun ROERE 150 2,730 1,691 7,961 59 12,591
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Lin Bo W 150 1,164 1,007 4232 59 6,612
Non-executive directors HNTEF
Ms. Dong Ming Zhu BTt 150 - - 2% - 175
Mr. Zhang Chen (a) (ii) RELA() (i) - - - 5 - 5
Mr. Shen Yuan Ching (a) (i) AT EE S A (a) (i) 150 - - - - 150
Independent non-executive directors B B FTEE
Mr. Gary Clark Biddle Gary Clark Biddle st &£ 200 - - 2% - 225
Mr. Liu Chia-Yung ARERE 150 - - 2% - 175
Mr. Wu Cheng (a) (i) REF () (i) - - - 5 - 5
Mr. Cao Yang Feng (a) (iii) N2 (a) (i11) 150 - - - - 150
Total At 1,100 3,804 2,698 12,218 18 20,088
(@)  Directors’ emoluments @) E5HH

(i) Includes share options and share award plan, estimated monetary
value was based on the annual charge of the share-based payment in
accordance with IFRS2.

(i) Mr. Zhang Chen resigned as a non-executive director of the Company
on 13 March 2018 and Mr. Shen Yuan Ching was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company on the same day.

(i) Mr. Wu Cheng resigned as an independent non-executive director
of the Company on 13 March 2018 and Mr. Cao Yang Feng was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on the same day.

(0

(i)

(i)
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Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination benefits for the
year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Inducement to join the Company

During the financial year, no amount was paid or receivable by any Directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Company.

Waiver

During the financial year, no Director had waived or agreed to waive any of
his/her emoluments.

Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’
services

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, there are no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors.

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

The Group’s transactions with the companies controlled by Mr. Xu Shao
Chun, the chairman and executive director of the Company, are set out in
Note 37.

Save for the aforementioned transactions, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.
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